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Chairman’s Statement
Over the past year we have faced a tidal
wave of Covid-19 which has had a major
impact on our patients, staff and services.
Our hospitals have coped extremely well in
very difficult circumstances, with the NHS
meeting its biggest challenge since its
inception in 1948. The effects of the
pandemic will be felt for very many years,
perhaps a decade, as we face a large back
log of elective work and potentially hidden
demand amongst patients who have yet to
come forward for treatment.
It is particularly saddening to have lost our
Emergency Department Nurse Estrella
Catalan to this deadly virus. Many other staff
have been sick themselves or lost friends or
family members to this disease.
Our staff have performed an amazing task in
coping with the pandemic, taking on new
roles and challenges at a moment’s notice
and delivering the best possible care under
very stressful conditions.
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Board leadership
During this year of upheaval, our Trust board
has benefitted from stable and strong
leadership and we have also received
unwavering support from our Council of
Governors. We were also pleased to
welcome Anita Prem to our board as an
associate non-executive director as part of a
new programme, NeXT Directors, which is
designed to support the next generation of
talented leaders from diverse backgrounds
and to improve senior representation in the
NHS. This runs alongside other schemes to
support diversity in our workforce.
Community support
One of the themes that stands out this year
is the outstanding support we have received
from our local community which has
sustained us throughout this period. On
behalf of the Board, I would like to say a
personal thank you and want to
acknowledge how important this was in
maintaining staff morale knowing that our
local community was right behind us.

The assistance we received has come in a
variety of ways and from a wide range of
people. Local firefighters helped to train our
staff in the fitting of PPE masks, retired
health and social care workers volunteered
to help in our vaccination centre, children
sent us cards and paintings and we were
overwhelmed with goodwill messages and
gifts donated to the Norfolk & Norwich
Hospitals Charity. Indeed, the charity has
come into its own during this period, being a
vital link with the local community and
helping us to benefit from national support
through the NHS Charities Together, which
includes the money raised by Captain Sir
Tom Moore.
Future plans
Now we must look ahead and tackle the
legacy from the pandemic such as long
waiting times and supporting patients whose
conditions may have deteriorated as services
were disrupted to care for patients seriously
ill with Covid-19.
There has been significant change to
working practices over the year as many
routine outpatient appointments were
conducted over the telephone or on video
calls. These changes have been welcomed
by patients in many cases, reducing the
need to travel to hospital and bringing
forward positive changes that might
otherwise have taken many years. We have
also launched our first Virtual Ward where
patients are monitored at home using
telemedicine which has been described as a
‘game-changer’ by one of the first patients to
use the service.
This raises the issue of how our services will
have to change in future to meet the
challenges of increasing demand and
financial constraints. We have an underlying
deficit which we are tackling and it will
require further significant changes to set us
on a path of financial equilibrium.
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Integrated Care System
The Health and Social Care White Paper,
published in February 2021, describes how
higher quality care will be provided to
communities through health and care
services working more closely together. A
new era of collaboration has emerged after
many years of competition amongst
organisations.
This last year with our colleagues at the
James Paget University Hospital and the
Queen Elizabeth Hospital King’s Lynn, we
launched the Acute Services Integration
Programme which established two joint
services - a single clinical team runs the
Norfolk and Waveney Urology Service
across JPUH, NNUH and QEHKL; and
JPUH and NNUH run the Norfolk and
Waveney Ear, Nose and Throat service.
Being part of an Integrated Care System will
help us to progress closer working further
with other providers, community services
and primary care as we move to new models
of care for patients.
Working with commissioners and others, we
will be tackling health inequalities and
contributing to the Government’s levelling up
agenda. One of the key elements will be
equal waiting times across the ICS footprint
to create fairness for our local population. In
practice this may require considerable
change in linking up services, IT systems
and testing the willingness of patients to
travel to different centres across the county.
We are in an era of enhanced co-operation
where we move beyond organisational
boundaries and wrap our services around
our patients.
The next few years will see significant
change in the NHS and, coming hard on the
heels of the pandemic, it will be a
challenging time for our staff and services.

Tribute to staff
Once again, I would like to pay a tribute to
our amazing staff, volunteers and the local
community for coming together in this most
difficult of years.
The exemplary leadership shown by our
Chief Executive Sam Higginson and the
executive team as a whole has seen us
brave the toughest period in our history. The
senior team has kept our organisation on a
solid footing and set the course for a
successful future.
I am indebted to them for all their hard work
and also thank my colleague Non Executives
who have provided the necessary assurance
and support during this eventful time. I am
very proud of our hospitals and the superb
teams who care for our patients.
In 2022, we will be celebrating the 250th
Anniversary of the Norfolk and Norwich
Hospital which saw its first outpatients in
1772. We look forward to marking this
auspicious occasion with everyone who has
supported us this year.

David White
Chairman
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Covid -19 pandemic
Our critical care capacity was increased from
20 beds to 80 beds spread across four areas
and we accepted critical care patient
transfers from other hospitals, in our role as
Regional Surge Centre.
Our staff have been through huge pressures
and it has been a time of worry, fear and
great sadness. The death of our much loved
colleague Estrella Catalan, who worked in
our Emergency Department, was
devastating to her family, friends and
colleagues and the effect was felt across the
whole organisation.

Chief Executive’s Statement
This year has been dominated by the Covid19 pandemic and our response to the
massive challenge posed by a new, deadly
and highly infectious virus.
During the first wave, we were on a steep
learning curve along with the rest of the NHS
and the risks of this new virus were just
emerging. At the peak of the first wave in
April 2020 we treated 87 patients with Covid.
Our staff performed magnificently, acting
with great leadership and resilience
In the second wave, the demand on our
services was much greater with 350 patients
being treated in hospital at the peak in
January 2021, which represented 40% of our
total adult bed base with the remaining 60%
being reserved for crucial services including
children, maternity, stroke and cardiology.
In early 2021 we had to temporarily postpone
our elective programme, with the exception
of lifesaving surgery, as staff were
redeployed to cover our Covid wards and the
Critical Care Unit.
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Overall, we cared for nearly 2,400 patients
during the last year. Sadly we have seen
over 650 patients lose their lives during this
period. The vaccination programme has
been one of the great achievements of the
year with a huge organisational effort we
have given more than 50,000 vaccinations to
our community, which includes older
patients, our own staff and other local health
and care staff.
I would like to express my admiration for all
my colleagues and offer my heartfelt thanks
to everyone who played their part in caring
for patients and keeping our services running
during this difficult period.
We must also recognise the incredible
support we have received from the local
community, military colleagues and system
partners (more detail on page 32). The
efforts of the University of East Anglia and
Norwich Research Park deserve special
mention. At the start of the unfolding COVID19 pandemic in March 2020, the
organisations across NRP came together to
collaborate on an immediate response which
has helped to reduce the impact of COVID in
the local community, providing a national
standard Covid-19 testing service which has
benefitted the whole of Norfolk and
Waveney. NNUH and UEA staff also
succeeded in establishing an antibody assay
(testing procedure) before to the introduction
of this process across the NHS.

This continues to be used for an ongoing
research project into the presence of
antibodies in care home residents.
There are many other ways in which the
hospital benefitted from NRP support, from
scientist volunteers, to supplies of hand
sanitiser, and accommodation for our staff at
UEA. We are fortunate to have such skilled
and enthusiastic partners who came to our
aid when we needed it most (see page 32 for
more details).
Staffing and culture
We have made great progress in developing
a culture of openness, developing the
Freedom To Speak Up service, consulting
staff and discussing difficult subjects.
We have a clear direction for what we need
to achieve and the right people at NNUH to
do it. We are on an improvement journey to
provide the best possible care for patients
and experience for staff that we can. In the
last few months we have made good
progress on our journey to Outstanding with
some very solid foundations in place.
Our focus on equality and diversity has been
reinvigorated over the last 12 months and to
support this we have created a framework of
equality standards and actions to measure
our progress, as well as a number of hugely
enthusiastic staff networks to help us drive
this forward (see page 68 for more details).
We recognise the huge impact of the
pandemic on our staff and the importance of
a supportive environment to aid healing and
recovery. We have a range of support in
place including ward visits by the Clinical
Psychology team, reflective groups,
telephone support services and counselling
sessions. This is going to be a matter of
growing importance as we move into the
next phase following the second wave of the
pandemic.
More work needs to be undertaken following
the publication of the national NHS Staff
Survey conducted in 2020. Four of the ten
theme scores are lower than 2019: Quality
of Care, Immediate Managers, Staff
Engagement and Team Working. These are
12

the results that give us most cause for
concern, and are the areas where we are
taking immediate steps to address the issues
raised.
A series of Listening into Action events are
being launched in Spring 2021 to involve our
staff in determining where we need to do
better and what will make a real difference to
staff experience (more information on page
73).
Performance
Treating patients for Covid-19 has had a
significant impact on the achievement of
performance targets as the conditions
caused by the pandemic needed us to focus
on those patients needing emergency and
clinically urgent treatment.
Throughout this period, we have made it a
priority to treat patients with cancer, utilising
the independent sector with Norwich Spire
providing facilities for urgent surgery and
chemotherapy (see page 32 for more
details). The less urgent elective
procedures will take much longer to address
and our recovery plan will need a multiple
year approach rather than measured in
months.
We review our waiting lists by prioritising
clinical need and preventing harm to those
who are waiting for treatment and we contact
patients to monitor their health.
Nevertheless, it remains upsetting and
frustrating for patients and staff that waiting
times have increased across the board.
In March 2021, our focus moved on to
recovery with elective care restarting as we
tackle the huge backlog of cases – more
than 60,000 patients on the waiting list who
need our care and 10,000 of those have
been waiting for more than 52 weeks.
To boost capacity and help us with our plans
for restoration and recovery, we have
overseen the biggest construction
programme for the N&N Hospital in 20 years
and many of the new developments, such as
the new ward block, Norfolk Centre for
Interventional Radiology, two new adult day

theatres are due to go live in the summer
and two new paediatric theatres will be
coming on stream in the autumn.
The COVID-19 outbreak will remain with us
as we move into 2021/22 and we are
preparing for a third wave. Whilst we will
have a significant task ahead to reset
services and address the treatment needs of
patients whose care was postponed, we
have also learned many lessons and brought
in new ways of delivering care.
Research and innovation
We have played our part in three significant
studies during the pandemic - the Novavax
Vaccine Trial, national RECOVERY trial and
the SIREN study into Covid-19 immunity.
We recruited 500 participants to the Novavax
coronavirus vaccine trial, including myself,
and this trial has reported successful results,
showing 89.3% effectiveness. The national
RECOVERY trial was aimed at identifying
treatments for COVID-19. The first
significant results from the study found that
the use of the steroid dexamethasone cut the
risk of death by a third for patients on
ventilators and reduced deaths by a fifth for
patients on oxygen. The SIREN study was
Public Health England’s national study
investigating Covid-19 immunity which aimed
to find out whether previous coronavirus
infection in healthcare workers results in
future immunity to reinfection.
This participation confirms our commitment
to supporting national research as well as
running our own studies. Our partnership
with the University of East Anglia is vitally
important in terms of our research
programme and producing skilled health
professionals for our expanding services.
During the pandemic, many final year
students at UEA volunteered to help on our
wards, boosting staff numbers at a vital time.
The pandemic has driven many innovations
including moving 50% of outpatient
appointments to phone and video
consultation in a matter of weeks – the
aspiration for this in the NHS Long term Plan
was five years. We have also established a
Virtual Ward enabling patients to continue
13

their recovery at home whilst wearing a
monitoring device which relays their vital
signs, backed up with regular contact from
the clinical team.
Use of resources
During the year, we carried out a Financial
Governance Review to assist us with
tackling our underlying deficit and make our
finances sustainable in the longer term.
Many of our services have seen reduced
levels of activity because of Covid-19 which
has meant some lower costs for staffing and
consumables. There is continued focus on
delivering the actions identified in the review
and our Cost Improvement Programme.
Good progress is being made to place us on
a stable financial footing and we remain on
track to meet our objectives with a surplus of
£7.2m against a planned deficit of £11.4m.
Regulation
In April 2020, the CQC report was received
which rated the Trust as Requires
Improvement overall. The inspectors
recognised the sustained and significant
improvements that had been made in patient
care and recommended that the Trust was
removed from special measures. This
happened in May 2020 after confirmation by
NHS England and Improvement.
The CQC praised many aspects of care from
End of Life Care which is rated as
Outstanding, Outpatients which is rated
Good and notable improvements in Urgent
and Emergency Care and Surgery. The
domains of Effective and Caring are rated as
Good, and the Safe, Responsive and Wellled domains are rated as Requires
Improvement.
We were very pleased that the report
recognised the improvements that our
fantastic staff had made in patient care.
Teams across the whole Trust had worked
tirelessly with skill and dedication to
continuously improve and develop services.
This was better than the previous report and
was a testament to the huge amount hard
work, innovation and professionalism from
staff.

The Requires Improvement rating shows the
Trust still has improvements to make and
marks good progress on the journey to
outstanding.
Indeed, there was a further visit by the CQC
to the Emergency Department in December
2020 which raised concerns about triage,
infection control, staffing levels and
performance against the four hour target. In
terms of addressing these concerns, we
have increased our nursing numbers and
recruited a number of new consultants to
help bolster the improved culture and stable
leadership acknowledged by the CQC.
Overall the ED team was rated as good for
being caring and effective, with an overall
rating of Requires Improvement.
In December 2020, a team from the Health
and Safety Executive visited the NNUH to
conduct a spot check on our Covid
assurance measures. They visited offices
and clinical areas to assess our Covid
compliance.
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We received positive feedback on the day
and an action plan is in place to address
issues which were raised relating to social
distancing and ventilation.
It has been an unprecedented year for the
NHS and for our own organisation as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic. The response
from our community has been remarkable
and we met the challenge thanks to the
incredible efforts of our committed staff right
across the entire organisation.
At the time of writing, the pandemic is still
ongoing, but I have every confidence in the
resilience and adaptability of the
organisation, its people and its services to
provide good quality care for our local
population.

Sam Higginson
Chief Executive

Overview of Performance
Welcome to our 2020/21 annual report which describes our achievements during the year,
covering our service improvements, finances and performance in key areas.

Purpose of the overview section
This overview section gives a short summary of the organisation, its purpose, the key
risks to the achievement of its objectives and how it has performed during the year.

Purpose and Activities
We are one of the biggest teaching Trusts in the country with more than 10,000 staff – the
N&N is our main hospital, and importantly we have a small hospital in Cromer that delivers a
great service to our patients in North Norfolk.
We have world-class facilities here and many specialties at tertiary level, from roboticassisted surgery, one of the most advanced centres for interventional radiology and our
Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital - meaning that our patients receive the best service possible,
without having to travel further afield.
We are always looking to improve our services and patient experience which means
launching new services, such as the mobile chemotherapy unit which takes vital cancer
treatments to our patients near their own homes in Norfolk.
As a teaching trust, research is really important to us to work with our partners on the
Norwich Research Park and we have developed a strong and thriving partnership
between us, the University of East Anglia and Quadram Institute Bioscience. This has
already enabled us to deliver world-leading research, such as the Norfolk Diabetes
Prevention Study which looked at how diet and exercise interventions could prevent
diabetes. The research programmes benefit our communities and the wider population
and we are committed to continuing high quality, high value, research to improve health
outcomes and people’s lives for decades to come.
The Quadram Institute itself is a collaboration between the Trust, the University and the
previous Institute for Food Research. Our endoscopy unit, the largest in Europe, is sited in
the Institute, as is our Clinical Research Facility.
We work closely with our partners, particularly the other acute hospitals in the county, the
James Paget at Lowestoft and the Queen Elizabeth at Kings Lynn. Last year we launched
a urology service between all three hospitals and an ENT service between ourselves and
the James Paget, and we’re actively working on and developing other joint projects.
These joined up services benefit patients with equitable access to care across the county,
plus shared expertise and quality standards.
The Norfolk and Waveney STP has become an Integrated Care System in shadow form
as we wait for the legislation to formalise the arrangement. We anticipate that this will
deliver more opportunities to work together to improve services for patients and to
improve staff experience.
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Brief History
The Norfolk and Norwich Hospital celebrates its 250th anniversary in 2022 - the hospital
saw its first outpatients on 11 July 1772 and first inpatients on 17 November 1772.
The hospital became a teaching Trust when it was rebuilt in 2001 and moved from the St
Stephen’s site in Norwich to Colney Lane on the outskirts of the city. We were authorised
as an NHS Foundation Trust on 1st May 2008 in accordance with the National Health
Service Act 2006. The NHS Foundation Trust succeeded the NHS Trust formed in 1994.
Strategy
The Trust’s existing strategy reached its final year this year and under normal
circumstances we would have published our next five year strategy including objectives
and priorities. However, the impact of the pandemic has meant that we have decided to
extend the current strategic objectives with some renewed priorities until April 2022. This
will allow us to better engage our staff, patients, the public and wider stakeholders to
understand their experiences of giving and receiving care in the past year, and seek their
views on what the shape and vision of the hospital will be for the next five years.
Along with Cambridge, we continue to be one of the main centres for specialist work in the
East of England. Patients can access many tertiary services at our hospitals rather than
having to travel further afield thanks to investment in services such as robotic surgery,
interventional radiology, critical care and cardiology. The pandemic saw us become a
regional surge centre with critical care capacity expanded from 20 beds up to 80
depending on demand (see more about the effect of the pandemic on page 31). These
types of specialist services are delivered alongside caring for people of all ages with a
wide range of more general medical and surgical conditions, particularly the signficant
older population that is unique to Norfolk, many of whom come to us with one or more
long term conditions.
The national introduction of Integrated Care Systems (ICS), means we are seeing a real
change in the way that all health and care providers work together to deliver services. We
are part of the Norfolk and Waveney ICS, and are committed to working with our health
and care partners to achieve the national aims of improving services, preventing ill-health
and ensuring the efficient use of healthcare resources.
Partnership working has already been dramatically accelerated because of the pandemic
and saw a strong collective effort between us and our neighbouring hospitals to ensure
patients were safely treated. We will continue to work more closely with the James Paget
and Queen Elizabeth hospitals to provide solutions for equitable and high quality care for
our populations now and in the future. As part of the existing Norfolk and Waveney
Hospitals Group we have set up a Committees in Common. The Committees in Common
are sub-committees of the Acute Trust Boards and we are confident this will be a positive
way to review, plan and improve services, health outcomes and experiences for patients
needing hospital care across Norfolk and Waveney. Our Norfolk and Waveney Urology
and ENT services are good examples of how these arrangements have been used to
support integration and resilience. These services now have single medical teams
working together to share expertise and capacity across the three hospitals.
We are very much aware that the majority of healthcare that people experience happens
outside of hospital and our commitment to partnership working includes working with
primary and community care colleagues to ensure that people stay healthy and only come
to hospital when they absolutely have to.
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In addition to our healthcare partners we particularly recognise the need to build on our
strong links with the University of East Anglia and the Norwich Research Park to develop
the vital role they both play in our academic mission and research programmes.
In spite of the pressures of the pandemic, our hospitals have continued to see significant
development over the last year, helping us to expand capacity and upgrade our
facilities. Here is a summary of our progress:
x

A new £7m Norfolk Centre for Interventional Radiology (NCIR) was completed in
September 2020. The NCIR is the first in the country to house two C-Arm robots
and quadruples the number of interventional suites, placing NNUH among the
foremost centres in the UK for interventional radiology.

x

A new £14m 100-bed ward block was also opened in September 2020, housing
the Acute Medical Units and stroke teams on the first two floors, with the third floor
being used to treat high dependency patients during the pandemic.

x

£8m is being invested to replace vital imaging equipment, thanks to the Aged
Asset’s national scheme, which will see the replacement of four MRI scanners a
CT scanner at the Trust. An additional CT scanner will also be added in the
Radiology department.

x

A highly specialised negative pressure isolation unit (NPIU) was built and
equipped with the latest technology for patients on high infection risk pathways.

x

Purchase of a second surgery robot to carry our complex procedures for urology,
gynaecology and colorectal surgery.

x

Nearly 500 new beds have been delivered to NNUH as part of a rolling programme
to replace equipment used across the hospital.

There are also a number of construction projects underway in 2021:
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x

The North Norfolk Macmillan Cancer Support Centre at Cromer Hospital which is
due to open in summer 2021.

x

Work has started on a £2.9m walk-in day procedure unit at NNUH as part of the
trust’s building improvement programme. This project will see cutting edge
equipment housed in three neutral pressure treatment rooms, as well as
associated support areas to enhance services for ambulatory patients attending for
procedures.

x

Building began in March 2021 on a £6.5m dedicated children’s theatre
complex. Due to be completed over two phases, in phase one we will provide a
twin paediatric theatre suite, a six-bay recovery unit, as well as associated
supporting facilities. Combined with the new facilities this will create a high
standard of children’s surgical capacity to meet the needs of NNUH younger
patients, both now, and well into the future.

x

Work started in February 2021 on our cutting-edge Data Centre, which will house
the majority of Digital Health’s IT infrastructure. The development has been made
possible thanks to a £1m grant from NHSI’s Critical Infrastructure fund

x

Work has started on a new two-storey modular training facility at the hospital which
will primarily be used for our Clinical Skills, Resuscitation, Manual Handling and
Healthcare Assistants training.

Key issues and risks
We are working to improve our use of resources, ensuring that our services are efficient
and sustainable for the future. We have been reviewing operational and business
planning processes to ensure we optimise the use of substantive staff and reduce
temporary staffing costs. Making the best use of our elective beds, reducing length of
stay and improving discharge processes are key parts of our plan. New models of care
such as the Virtual Ward will help us to deliver good outcomes for patients using proven
techniques of remote monitoring that allow people to be at home rather than in hospital.
Becoming more efficient will involve harnessing digital technologies to help drive
transformation and improve efficiency. For example, the digital transformation of the
outpatient experience has been greatly accelerated as a result of the pandemic with many
people now being able to access specialist care and opinion without the need to come to
the hospital. The EDMS (Electronic Document Management System) is replacing paper
records with electronic ones on our first step to becoming a paperless hospital. It means
staff will spend more time on patient care and less time on administration with all the
information in one place. Work is also progressing on the Electronic Patient Record
(EPR) programme. We will be looking at learning from the issues experienced in
implementation of EPR systems in other Trusts across the country. We will be aiming to
implement a system that will assist communication and system-wide working across
Norfolk and Waveney.
As it has across the country the pandemic has had a significant impact on our waiting lists
and waiting times. As part of our recovery process, we are planning a return to preCOVID levels of elective care for cancer, urgent and paediatric patients. We continue to
review waiting lists in order to ensure that action is taken to prevent harm to those patients
who are waiting for treatment. Each patient has been contacted by the hospital to discuss
their condition and to determine if their symptoms indicate that they should be seen
sooner.
In May 2020, the CQC rated the Trust as requires improvement overall, an improvement
from the previous rating of inadequate. The inspectors recognised the sustained and
significant improvements that had been made in patient care. The CQC recommended
that the Trust was removed from special measures and this happened in May 2020 after
confirmation by NHS England and Improvement. We continue to make improvements in
our services, supported by our five year Quality and Safety Improvement Strategy which is
the driving force in sustaining a culture of continuous learning and improvement.
There is more work to do on developing our workforce and ensuring our hospitals
continue to attract and retain high calibre professionals. We want our hospitals to be a
great place to work and develop, to train and have a long and fulfilling career. There is a
commitment to invest in the leadership training and development of our managers (see
more information in the Staff Report on page 97).
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Work starts on new North Norfolk Macmillan
Cancer Centre at Cromer Hospital

This project was
supported by:
Work to build a state-of-the-art cancer care and
support centre at Cromer and District Hospital began
in June 2020.

The North Norfolk Macmillan Centre is being built in partnership between
Macmillan Cancer Support, the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and the Norfolk & Norwich Hospitals Charity.
In the latest local cancer strategy, potential demand for cancer services within the
Trust was forecast to increase by over 200 per cent over ten years.
Currently most people from the Cromer area have to travel to Norwich for
treatment and the new centre will enable more people to access cancer treatment
and support closer to home.
The building work on the £4.85million project is expected to finish in summer 2021.
It is being funded in a partnership between Macmillan Cancer Support the Norfolk
& Norwich Hospitals Charity and the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust.
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As we reach the final year of our current strategy, here is the purpose and
objectives that we have been working to over the 2020/21 period:
Our purpose
x
x
x
x

We will be a provider of high quality health and care services to our local
population
We will be the centre for complex and specialist medicine for Norfolk and the
Anglia region
We will be a recognised centre for excellence for research, education, innovation
and workforce development
We will be a leader in the redesign and delivery of health and social care services
in Norfolk.

Our current 18 month objectives
Goal 1 – To be a provider of high quality health and care services to our
local population
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

Operating a segregation of elective and non-elective pathways to help achieve a
safe environment for staff and patients and maximise efficient delivery of an
elective care programme.
Maintaining the Trusts capability to manage infection surges requiring up to 100
HDU beds.
Ensuring a return to pre-COVID levels of elective care for cancer, urgent and
paediatric patients.
Enabling a return to pre-COVID levels of non –elective
Fast track the outpatient transformation programme
Achieve a rating of Good from the CQC in the anticipated 2021/22 inspection
Have secured approval for the new Diagnostic and Assessment Centre,
replacement Aseptic Unit and additional surgical capacity.
Undertake a redesign planning process for the Emergency Department.
Marking the Trust's 250th anniversary

Goal 2 – To be the centre for complex and specialist medicine for Norfolk and
the Anglia region
x
x
x

To become a commissioned centre for thrombectomy and major trauma services
Secure the Trust’s positon as the centre for complex cancer work across Norfolk
and the surrounding area.
Successfully open the new IRU facility and continue refurbishment of Cath Labs.

Goal 3 – To be a centre of excellence for research, education and staff development
x
x
x
x
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Ensure working policies and procedures are in place to support staff who are able
to work remotely
Develop and begin implementation of a plan to improve staff rest wellbeing
facilities and services.
Ensuring Covid-19 Secure hospital, supporting people back to work through
adaptations to the workplace, changed working practices and public transport
which support restoration of services
Consolidate and deepen the special partnership with the University of East Anglia
and Quadram Institute of Biosciences and continue to appoint more clinical
academic posts.

x
x

Deliver agreed strategic digital projects including infrastructure, cyber, e-Obs and
electronic document management and measure impact on productivity and safety
benefits.
Build on the digital changes made during COVID-19 to support subsequent waves,
recovery and future efficiency and quality improvements.

Goal 4 – To be a leader in the redesign and delivery of health and social care
services in Norfolk
x
x
x
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Progress with the strategic programme of Electronic Patient Record with partner
Acute Trusts to Final Business Case and Procurement
Continue to work closely with its acute partners to develop joint clinical teams,
shared posts, aligned policies and investment plans.
To collaborate with Primary Care Networks (PCN), and our community and social
care system partners

New era for robotic-assisted surgery at NNUH

This project was supported by:
More patients are set to benefit from
cutting-edge surgery at NNUH following a
£1m donation from the Norfolk and Norwich
Hospital’s Charity.

Two new robots will help double the number of robotic-assisted surgeries at the NNUH,
which offer more precision for surgeons and help to reduce the time spent in hospital for
patients, to up to 600 a year.
For the last four years the hospital has been using one robot for urological surgery and 18
months ago we began carrying out robotic colorectal procedures at weekends. This robot
is now being replaced by two newer models.
The Urology team were the first to use one of the new robots in August 2020, followed by
complex urology and colorectal procedures plus some gynaecology, thoracic and head
and neck surgery.
Vivekanandan Kumar, Consultant Urological Surgeon, who carried out the first surgery
using the new robot, said: “This new robot is sleeker and more versatile with added
features compared to the one we have used and it makes a huge difference to our theatre
capacity.
“Robotic surgery also offers far greater accuracy when removing a tumour, which means
better outcomes for our patients. A number of surgical procedures require an amount of
stitching and plumbing work inside the patient which is quite challenging. With a robot the
patient is left with very, very small scars which is a marker of the very good services we
are providing.”
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Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response’ (EPRR)
We need to be able to plan for and respond to a wide range of incidents and emergencies
that could affect health or patient care. These could be anything from extreme weather
conditions to an infectious disease outbreak - such as the Covid-19 pandemic - or a
major transport accident or a terrorist act. This is underpinned by legislation contained in
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
This work is referred to in the health service as ‘Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and
Response’ (EPRR).
All NHS funded services must have robust and well tested arrangements in place to
respond to and recover from these situations. The minimum requirements which
commissioners and providers of NHS funded services must meet are set out in the current
NHS England Core Standards for EPRR (Core Standards). The Trust is audited annually
on these core standards and in 2020 The Trust was fully compliant.
Going Concern
After making enquiries the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the services
provided by the Trust will continue to be provided by the public sector in the foreseeable
future. For this reason, the directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing
the accounts, following the definition of going concern in the public sector adopted by HM
Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

23

How we measure performance
Our services are clinical led with four divisions: Medicine, Surgery, Women and Children’s
Services, and Clinical Support. There is a Chief of Division role in each who is the overall
lead for the division, with all roles within the division ultimately reporting to them. The
Chief is accountable for the performance of the division. Each division also has a
Divisional Operations Director whose primary role is to direct and control operations to
deliver the division’s business plan including recruitment and training of staff,
management of service line budgets and ensuring service quality. There is also a
Divisional Nursing/Clinical Services Director whose role is to direct and control divisional
clinical staff including maintaining patient safety and ensuring front-line teams are
appropriately motivated and trained.
The Chiefs of Division report to the Chief Operating Officer and are part of the
Management Board with the Executive Directors. The Management Board is responsible
for the operation and performance of the Trust, reporting to the Trust Board. The
divisional structures are show below:
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Integrated Performance Analysis
A monthly integrated performance report is produced by the Trust which provides details
of how the Trust is performing on key targets such as infection control, cancer waiting time
targets, the A&E target, and the 18 week RTT target, plus finance and staffing issues.
It is shared widely with the Trust Board, Management Board, the Council of Governors
and with staff. The aim is to keep everyone informed on how the Trust is performing and
describe our progress towards meeting targets or introducing new quality initiatives.
Example of a summary slide from the integrated performance report:

During the year, we have been meeting with our regulator NHS England and NHS
Improvement to review our performance and have focused on the Trust’s improvement
plans, financial position and long term strategy.
KPIs, Risk and Uncertainty
The Trust has a Risk Management Strategy which sets out the accountability and
reporting arrangements to the Board of Directors for risk management within the Trust.
Risk is assessed at all levels in the organisation from the Board of Directors to individual
wards and departments. This ensures that both strategic and operational risks are
identified and addressed and risk assessment information is held in an organisation-wide
Risk Register. A risk scoring matrix is used to ensure that a consistent approach is taken
to assessing and responding to clinical and non-clinical risks and incidents.
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Those risks with a high residual risk rating (following the impact of appropriate mitigating
actions) are detailed in a High Risk Tracker – reported to both the Board of Directors and
Management Board through the Integrated Performance Report.
The Hospital Management Board oversees the identification and mitigation of key risks
arising from or relevant to the operation of the Trust. Each of the Management Board
committees and governance sub-boards have Terms of Reference and they report
regularly to the Management Board on areas of risk or issues that require escalation.
There are eight Governance roles across the Divisions. These Leads will play a key role in
promoting a safety first culture, and disseminating and best practice learning across all
staff groups.
At board level, the Board Assurance Committees will review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the structures, processes and responsibilities within the Trust for
identifying and managing key risks;
The Board has established the following Committees of the Trust:
x Audit Committee;
x Quality and Safety Committee;
x Finance, Investments and Performance Committee;
x People and Culture Committee
x Nominations and Remuneration Committee;
x Committee in Common (meeting as part of N&W Hospitals Group)
x Charitable Funds Committee.
For more information, see the Annual Governance Statement on page 123.
CQC Inspection report
In April 2020, the CQC report was received which rated the Trust as Requires
Improvement overall. The inspectors recognised the sustained and significant
improvements that had been made in patient care and recommended that the Trust was
removed from special measures. This happened in May 2020 after confirmation by NHS
England and Improvement.
The CQC praised many aspects of care from End of Life Care which is rated as
Outstanding, Outpatients which is rated Good and notable improvements in Urgent and
Emergency Care and Surgery. The domains of Effective and Caring are rated as Good,
and the Safe, Responsive and Well-led domains are rated as Requires Improvement.
This was an improvement from the previous report and represents a huge amount hard
work, innovation and professionalism from staff.
The Requires Improvement rating shows the Trust still has improvements to make and
marks good progress on the journey to outstanding. Other highlights in the report include
good examples of innovation across the Trust; the positive impact being made by the
Older Persons Emergency Department, and a focus on research and development as well
as the creation of a quality improvement faculty.
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Emergency Department
Over the year, a programme of improvements and modified processes at the front door
have been implemented which have started to result in improvements in ambulance
handover times. Improvements to patient flow and discharge have also been made.
The CQC undertook an unannounced inspection of the Emergency Department in
December 2020, triggered by the Trust not meeting the four hour target and issued an
enforcement notice after breaches of infection control procedures, staff shortages and
delays in triage.
The Trust took immediate action with dedicated staff supporting patient triage available
24/7, improved infection control measures, an increase in nursing numbers and
recruitment of eight new consultants due to join in Spring 2021.
Quality Improvement

The five year Quality and Safety Improvement Strategy
details some of the ways in which the organisation will embed
a culture of continuous quality improvement. It is focused on
developing capacity and capability for teams so that Quality
Improvement (QI) becomes where staff are able to listen to
patients and implement changes that make a real difference
to patient care and experience and also test and implement
change ideas to improve staff experience. Rather than being
a short-lived trend, QI is a consistent part of our culture that gives us and the people we
serve confidence about the long-term sustainability of the quality of care.
We want to ensure that everyone in our local community who may use our services has
absolute confidence that our care and treatment is safe, effective and completely patient
centred.
Our definition of quality encompasses three equally important elements of care: Patient
and staff experience, Safe systems and Effectiveness Our Quality Strategy underpins our
quality objectives to continually improve patient experience, safety and effectiveness of
care.
x
x
x
x
x
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It will ensure that challenges facing the Trust are met without compromising quality
of care
Ensure that lessons are learned when things go wrong and meaningful actions
taken
Allow us to recognise when quality is not as good as it should be and empower
staff to change it for the better
Help teams and individuals see the contribution they make to improving quality
We will demonstrate delivery of national and locally defined quality priorities by
clearly defining and measuring what we aim to achieve by when

Our Quality and Safety Improvement Strategy describes our strategic intent for Quality
Improvement (QI) and sets an ambition to build a culture of learning and continuous
quality improvement at all levels.
x

Our staff will feel empowered to be creative and innovative, always looking for
ways to improve their services and the care provided.

x

Our leaders create the conditions and commitment to QI that is shared across
the organisation

x

The focus on quality and safety first will be a consistent part of our culture, from
ward to Board

Our aims:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

Reduce the level of patient harm from failures in care and failure to
rescue
Evidence that we are listening and responding to patients and their
carers/ families
Evidence that we are adhering to evidence based good practice
We will be rated as an ‘outstanding ‘ organisation with a culture of
continuous quality improvement
Improved scores in key questions national patient and staff surveys
Improving response rate and feedback real-time patient and carers
surveys
Increased response rate from children, young people and their families
Evidence that themes from serious incidents and complaints and
mortality reviews and utilised to prioritise our improvement
programmes.

Quality improvement Capacity and Capability
Building capacity in our staff is vital if the aims outlined in our strategy are to come to
fruition. Whilst we want to create a movement, success will be limited if we are
empowering and enabling staff to take control of these improvement projects without the
skills to bring their plans to fruition. In order to achieve our aims, we are investing in the
education and training of our workforce.
Our first cohort of staff have enrolled with the NHS Improvement QSIR College. This
programme develops candidates to a level where they are assessed and accepted as
associate members of the QSIR Teaching Faculty and go on to skill up people within our
own organisation and wider health system. Our aims include delivering the QSIR training
programme to staff and building a support network for staff undertaking QI projects.
Staff completing improvement work will be supported throughout their project they will
then be expected to become ‘champions for quality improvement’ themselves.
There is an understanding that support given to achieve improvement is then shared with
peers, through learning and development. This will enable the network of expertise to
expand throughout the organisation.
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Equality of service delivery
A core element of our services is respect for dignity, protection of vulnerable patients and
of human rights. This is reflected in the specialist work of our Learning Difficulties and
Safeguarding team. Through a series of Trust policies and protocols, awareness raising,
input on the wards and through staff training the dignity and autonomy of patients is
enhanced. This is illustrated, for example, in relation to the deprivation of liberty
safeguards, reporting of female genital mutilation, protection against domestic abuse and
facilitated decision making for patients with dementia. Regular reports on these issues
are received and reviewed through the Trust’s Caring and Patient Experience Governance
Sub-Board.
The patient experience team has worked on improving engagement with local, seldom
heard communities through social media, organising virtual events focusing on listening
to our minority groups/communities and carers. Support has also been given to our
Women and Children’s division to improve engagement with children and young people by
increasing feedback opportunities (see more information on page 41)
Improvements in end of life care
The Palliative Care Team at NNUH was a finalist in the HSJ End of Life Care Award at the
Patient Safety Awards 2020. It comes after personalised end of care plans were
developed by the NNUH and have been adopted across Norfolk and Waveney after
becoming a beacon of best practice.
The team have overseen a number of initiatives to improve the quality of end of life care at
NNUH, including the introduction of a seven day a week palliative care service and an
individual plan of care for end of life (IPOC) to guide best practice.
They have ensured that syringe drivers are always available to patients who need them
and improved end of life training at the Trust. Extra support has also being given to
families with a carer passport, open visiting, glide-away beds and comfort packs so that
they can stay overnight and the introduction of Butterfly Volunteers to the hospital. The
changes have resulted in an improvement in national end of life audits for the Trust.
Learning disabilities
A specialist nurse was appointed two years ago for children and young people with
learning disabilities and autism. This role leads the improvement of effective, accessible
quality care delivery for children and young people with learning disabilities and/or Autistic
people, working across the Trust and liaising closely with schools, family advocacy
groups, other hospitals and community services.
The aim of the role is to support the delivery of equitable healthcare, by providing
specialise advice, co-ordinating care, supporting staff understanding and improving the
support to families through better processes and education.
There are approximately 350 new referrals for children each year, providing bespoke care
planning for children and their families though outpatient appointments, surgery and
emergency admissions. A rapid risk assessment tool has also been rolled out for
emergency and elective areas so that appropriate adjustments can be put in place to
improve patient safety. There is also a hospital team supporting adults with learning
disabilities.
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NNUH Norfolk Centre for Interventional Radiology
opens

This project was
supported by:
In September 2020, NNUH opened the doors to the £7m
Norfolk Centre for Interventional Radiology (NCIR) which
quadrupled the number of interventional suites, placing
NNUH among the foremost centres in the UK for
interventional radiology.

In turn this will transform the Trust into a national beacon of excellence and a regional
training centre in this field.
NCIR Project Manager Ray McFee said: “It is really rewarding to see this Centre open.
Years of planning, designing and building this unit have come to fruition. What has been
created here is an interventional radiology facility housing some of the most advanced
technology in the world. As a trust we have taken a quantum leap in terms of the
technology we have put in place.
The Centre sits on the roof of the east block and houses the two freestanding robots and
a further two ceiling mounted Artis-Q C-Arms. They are at the centre of the new 1,450sqm
space, which will comprise of four large treatment rooms, a fully kitted out 16-bed
recovery unit, nurse bases, an anaesthetic room, offices, staff rest rooms, pre-assessment
bays, prep rooms, scrubs, toilets and a main reception with waiting area.
Such has been the popularity of the unit that a recruitment drive had to be cut short due to
the large numbers of interested people wanting to join NNUH to enhance our
interventional radiology research portfolio.
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Long term trend analysis
The NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, spells out how new service models
will be designed in which patients get more options, better support, and properly joined-up
care at the right time in the optimal care setting. There will be wider action on prevention
to help people stay healthy, more online services to avoid visits to hospital and greater
digitilsation of patient records. These elements will feature in plans to refresh our strategy
during 2021 as we engage with patients, public, staff and partners.
We are also part of an Integrated Care System which is formalised from April 2021,
building on the progress already made. ICSs bring together local organisations in to
deliver the integration of primary and specialist care, physical and mental health services,
and health with social care. They also will have a key role in working with Local Authorities
to make shared decisions with providers on population health, service redesign and Long
Term Plan implementation.
The launch in 2019 of the Acute Services Integration Programme established two joint
services - a single clinical team runs the Norfolk and Waveney Urology Service across the
James Paget University Hospital, NNUH and the Queen Elizabeth Hospital at King’s Lynn
which has already led to successful consultant appointments in the Urology Service; and
JPUH and NNUH run the Norfolk and Waveney Ear, Nose and Throat service.
During Covid-19 we worked more closely together and are now working together on other
projects such as a joint clinical strategy, aligning policies and guidelines and the Electronic
Patient Record, which is expected to transform services in the longer term, making paper
a thing of the past, improving efficiency and experience for patients and staff and
providing more information for primary care professionals, universally saving time.
With the planned digital improvements this would also mean that patients would only have
to give their medical history details once to access the care they need, rather than multiple
times as can sometimes be the case. Closer working and the development of
standardised pathways, guidelines and training, will also improve services for patients. It
will provide more opportunities for staff and will help support increased efficiency and help
clinical teams to solve practical issues such as balancing workloads, additional capacity,
recruiting to vacancies and supporting on-call rotas.
Covid-19 pandemic
The hospital’s services radically changed during the Covid-19 pandemic. In a few short
weeks during March and April 2020, we carried out most of our outpatient consultations by
telephone or video call, created a second emergency department, moved our cancer
centre to the Spire Norwich and became a regional surge centre for patients needing
intensive care.
Like all acute hospitals across the country, the Trust already had plans in place to expand
critical care capacity to meet potential surges in demand for local patients with
coronavirus needing this level of care. The regional surge centre has created extra
capacity on top of this to support patients from across the East of England.
The second wave of the pandemic which peaked in January 2021, saw demand soar.
The Trust’s normal capacity of 20 critical care beds was expanded to 80 as the hospital
experienced high levels of pressure as it moved to Local Covid State 5 with up to 350
patients needing hospital care for Covid-19. Over the course of the year, we saw nearly
2400 patients recover from Covid-19 and sadly over 650 patients died.
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During this time, our staff made a fantastic, collective team effort in stepping up to the
incredible demands that were placed upon them during these extraordinary times. Many
staff had to move into new roles and quickly adapt to new teams and working
environments.
The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is immense in terms of the loss of elective work
and the scale of the task in tackling the backlog. It has left a legacy of longer waiting times
and a significant increase in the waiting list – nearly 60,000 patients.
Our focus has moved to the restoration of elective surgery following the end of the second
wave of the pandemic in April 2021.
Cancer patients treated offsite
During the pandemic, an agreement between NNUH and Spire Healthcare has enabled
hundreds of Norfolk NHS patients with cancer to receive treatment in Spire’s Norwich
hospital, allowing NNUH to focus on caring for people with COVID-19.
The partnership between Spire Healthcare and the Trust was made possible under a
national agreement, which Spire, alongside the whole of the independent sector, has
signed to make its staff, equipment and facilities available to the NHS to help alleviate the
pressure caused by the pandemic.
Support from Norwich Research Park
At the start of the unfolding COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020, the six organisations that
constitute the Norwich Research Park, (Earlham Institute, John Innes Centre, Quadram
Institute Bioscience, The Sainsbury Laboratory, University of East Anglia and NNUH came
together to collaborate on an immediate response. Since then some of these
collaborations have become closer partnerships, enabling the east of England to reduce
the impact of COVID in the local community.
COVID-19 PCR Testing for Pillar 1
At the outset of the COVID-19 pandemic the NHS microbiology laboratories on the NRP
had only very limited PCR testing capacity for the whole of Norfolk and Waveney. NNUH
and University of East Anglia (UEA) sought and developed additional PCR technologies
for Pillar 1 capacity, in collaboration with colleagues at Earlham Institute (EI). This new
capacity was established in the haematology research facilities to substantially increase
testing capacity for health and care organisations in the Norfolk and Waveney
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership.
The test was approved for clinical use and has remained in use throughout 2020/21. Over
100 biomedical staff from across the NRP responded to a call for volunteers to support
extended hours for PCR testing. As a result, patients in Norfolk and Waveney had their
PCR results returned within 24 hours throughout the first wave whilst other areas were
waiting as long as seven days.
Laboratories across the NRP were able to offer additional testing support for neighbouring
hospitals including East Suffolk and North Essex NHS Foundation Trust and West Suffolk
Hospital.
NNUH and UEA staff also succeeded in establishing an antibody assay before to the
introduction of assays across the NHS. This continues to be used for an ongoing research
project into the presence of antibodies in care home residents.
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The Earlham Institute and NNUH are now offering NHS workers a more reliable test to
curb COVID transmission rates in the region. LAMP tests need only be taken once a
week, require a saliva sample rather than a nose and throat swab, and positive results
doesn’t require a confirmatory PCR test. LAMP offers much higher testing capacity than
the PCR platform.

Covid Research
RECOVERY study
NNUH researchers took part in the national trial aimed at identifying treatments for
COVID-19.
The RECOVERY trial (Randomised Evaluation of COVID-19 Therapy) was led by
researchers in Oxford and tested several medications that are safely used for other
conditions and have shown promise in helping to treat patients with the new strain of
coronavirus in other countries.
Since the launch of RECOVERY (Randomised Evaluation of Covid-19 Therapy), 53
patients at NNUH have been enrolled onto the study.
The first significant results from the study have been published, which found that the use
of the steroid dexamethasone cut the risk of death by a third for patients on ventilators
and reduced deaths by a fifth for patients on oxygen.
SIREN study
NNUH also joined Public Health England’s national study investigating Covid-19 immunity.
The SIREN (SARS-CoV-2 Immunity and Reinfection Evaluation) study aims to find out
whether previous coronavirus infection in healthcare workers results in future immunity to
reinfection.
The Novavax vaccine trial
The Novavax vaccine trial is a randomised controlled trial where half of the participants
will receive two shots of the vaccine and the other half will receive two shots of a placebo
NNUH played its part in the vaccine trial, which has reported that the Phase 3 trial in the
UK has been 89.3% effective. It was launched at NNUH in 2020, with support from the
National Institute for Health Research (NIHR).
More than 500 participants from NHS, Norwich Research Park and local community took
part in the trial in Norfolk, which was run at the NNUH-run Clinical Research Facility at the
Quadram Institute.
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Proud to be playing our part in important Covid-19
research

Researchers at NNUH are proud to be playing their part in a national trial that has
helped identify the first drug to improve survival rates in certain Covid-19 patients.
Since the launch of RECOVERY (Randomised Evaluation of Covid-19 Therapy),
53 patients at NNUH have been enrolled onto the study, which is run by
researchers in Oxford and is funded by the National Institute for Health Research
(NIHR).
The first significant results from the study were published yesterday, which found
that the use of the steroid dexamethasone cut the risk of death by a third for
patients on ventilators and reduced deaths by a fifth for patients on oxygen.
Dr Eleanor Mishra, NNUH Respiratory Consultant, said: “This is a very significant
development and we are proud to be playing our part in this significant study,
which is testing medications that are safely used for other conditions. The use of
low dose dexamethasone is going to reduce mortality worldwide, as this is a cheap
and readily available drug.
This is now available for treating patients on oxygen or who require ventilation at
NNUH because of Covid-19.”
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Development and Performance
Four hour standard
Meeting the four-hour performance standard remains an issue with NNUH being one of
the busiest hospitals for emergency admissions in the region. To improve our
performance, the Board agreed to an external team coming in to support staff in autumn
2020 as they looked to identify improvement initiatives and ensure a programme of work
was put in place to facilitate these effectively.
The team from PRISM IMPROVEMENT was on site for five months, assisting teams in
ED, AMU and the Operations Centre, as they progressed through a number of work
streams in line with our three priorities of addressing:
1. Admission avoidance
2. Demand management
3. Discharge processes.
This important piece of work was designed to improve patient experience and flow
through the hospital. It is a whole-trust issue as capacity throughout the trust impacts on
the Emergency Department and affects patients moving to the wards in a timely manner.
It is part of the Safer, Better, Faster: Emergency Pathways programme, that the teams
across the hospital have been putting into practice to support patient flow through urgent
and emergency pathways across the hospital.
In March 2021, the IMT (Incident Management Team) which was set up to manage our
handling of the Covid-19 pandemic was restructured to better reflect the work that now
needs to go on with all divisions represented at the daily meetings, which look at real time
data showing how the hospital is performing.
Team members look at the real-time situation in
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

ED
Bed capacity
Electives
Each division
Average length of stay
Infection Prevention and Control
62-day waits (over 104 days)
Financial position

A number of work streams have been created, including digital, to bring about
improvements. They are designed to meet the requirements of the seven new national
standards which are being introduced in April 2021. It follows a pilot scheme in 14
hospitals across the country and is broadly supported by clinicians. These standards
better reflect the patient journey and what should be achieved for patients.
The challenge for the Trust is that this will need to be a whole hospital approach; how do
we move patients across the whole hospital.
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Cancer
The number of cancer patients waiting 104 days increased in the first wave reaching 250
patients in July 2020. Between July and September we were able to reduce that number
and this has been maintained by utilising day case capacity. Patients waiting over 104
days also increased at end of December 2020 due to reduction of capacity as the second
wave of the pandemic started to surge. Surgery for P2 patients (required within a month)
was temporarily suspended on the main NNUH Site and moved to the Spire Hospital.
Electives
The effects of the pandemic will be felt for very many years and we expect the waiting list
will continue to grow because were unable to see and treat routine patients during the first
and second waves of the pandemic. Staffing and beds were needed to treat patients with
Covid-19 as we became a surge centre, accepting very sick patients into our expanded
critical care facilities from around the region.
In March 2021, our focus has moved to recovery with elective care restarting as we tackle
the huge backlog of cases – more than 60,000 patients on the waiting list who need our
care and 10,000 of those have been waiting for more than 52 weeks.
In terms of patients waiting for elective procedures, we review our waiting lists in order to
prioritise clinical need and prevent harm to those patients who are waiting. Each patient
has been contacted by the hospital to discuss their condition and to determine if their
symptoms indicate that they should be seen sooner.
New ward block opens
One of the major projects to address capacity is the new ward block which opened in
September 2020. The new £14m, 100-bed ward block opened with level one being
utilised in the first instance for the new Acute Medical Unit. During the pandemic, the
other two floors were also used to create extra capacity, including space to treat patients
needing critical care.
The new AMU space provided 34 additional assessment unit beds for emergency
patients. These included four six-bed bays, four rooms suitable for mental health patients
and four standard side rooms. Each bay has its own bathroom so patients don’t have to
leave their bay, which adheres to new Infection Prevention and Control standards.
As well as the new ward block, a highly specialised negative pressure isolation unit
(NPIU) was also built and equipped with the latest technology to treat patients ready to
take the region’s sickest patients
Interventional Radiology expansion
In September 2020, the £7m Norfolk Centre for Interventional Radiology (NCIR)
welcomed its first patients.
The NCIR is the first in the country to house two Siemens Artis Pheno C-Arm robots and
will quadruple the number of interventional suites, placing NNUH among the foremost
centres in the UK for interventional radiology. In turn this will transform the Trust into a
national beacon of excellence and a regional training centre in this field.
Interventional radiology is a minimally invasive alternative to open surgery that uses
radiological image guidance such as x-ray, ultrasound and CT to diagnose and treat a
wide range of conditions and patients from specialities including renal, urology, oncology,
vascular, obstetrics, gynaecology and respiratory.
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The new 1,450sqm space will comprise of four large treatment rooms, two recovery wards
with side rooms, nurse bases, anaesthetic rooms, offices, staff rest rooms, preassessment bays, prep rooms, scrubs, toilets and a main reception with waiting area.
Isolation Unit
Following the second wave of the pandemic, a revised pathway for the management of
risk assessing and admitting patients has been agreed which includes the use of our new
Hoveton isolation unit for actively positive Covid-19 patients.
The new pathway comes into effect from the end of March 2021 with the activation of the
£4m highly specialised isolation unit in use.
The nine-bed unit offers two intensive treatment beds and seven high dependency beds,
in individual en-suite rooms. To prevent cross contamination of any virus clean air is
pumped into the rooms before being passed through a filter and expelled out on the roof.
Second surgical robot
Two new surgical robots are helping to double the number of robotic-assisted surgeries to
600 thanks to a £1m donation from the Norfolk and Norwich Hospital’s Charity.
The robots offer more precision for surgeons and help to reduce the time spent in hospital
for patients. For the last four years the hospital has been using one robot for urological
surgery and 18 months ago it began carrying out robotic colorectal procedures at
weekends. This robot has been replaced by two newer models.
The second robot was installed in September 2020 for complex urology and colorectal
procedures and will in the future also be used for some gynaecology, thoracic and head
and neck surgery.
Imaging equipment
One of the biggest equipment replacement programmes at NNUH took place in 2020/21.
The £8m project replacing vital imaging equipment saw the change-out of four MRI
scanners and a CT scanner. A new CT scanner is also being added in the Radiology
department to enable the replacement of the existing CT scanner, before providing
increased capacity.
The scheme follows ‘Aged Assets’ government funding that was announced last year, as
well as benefiting from Adapt and Adopt Covid-19 funding.
The MRI and CT machines that are being replaced are more than 13 years old. The new
equipment will provide a number of benefits, including improved quality of imaging, patient
safety improvements, efficiencies, and improved patient and staff experience.
Kidney dialysis centre
A state-of-the-art renal dialysis unit celebrated its first anniversary in early March 2021,
having provided a vital service during the pandemic providing routine dialysis for patients
away from the main hospital site.
The purpose-built Norfolk and Norwich Kidney Centre is run in partnership with Diaverum,
a national specialist provider of renal dialysis services. The new unit is exclusively for
patients requiring dialysis and the renal dialysis unit at Cromer and District Hospital
remains on its current site.
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Some renal dialysis treatment still takes place within NNUH for emergency cases, those
too unwell to attend the community based service and for chronic dialysis patients when
they come into hospital for other treatments.
Expansion at Cromer & District Hospital
A new cancer care and support centre at Cromer and District Hospital is due to open in
summer 2021 in partnership with Macmillan Cancer Support.
The centre – funded by Macmillan and the N&N Hospitals Charity - will enable patients,
many of whom currently travel to Norwich, to have their treatment and access support
services closer to home.
The North Norfolk Macmillan Cancer Support Centre will include:
x
x
x
x

Six chemotherapy treatment chairs with capacity to treat up to 36 patients a day.
Three new clinic rooms and two new minor procedure rooms, creating an additional
10,000 outpatient appointments annually.
A Macmillan cancer information and support centre.
The new unit will also free up space in the main Cromer Hospital building to deliver an
extra 600 surgical procedures in dermatology, urology, vascular surgery and pain
management.
The number of people living with cancer is growing and predicted to rise from 2.5million
today to four million by 2030 in Norfolk, around 6,000 people are diagnosed with cancer
each year. There are approximately 35,300 people living with cancer in the county.
Mobile cancer care unit
In order to expand cancer services, an innovative partnership between Cancer charity
Hope for Tomorrow and the N&N Hospitals Charity has enabled chemotherapy and other
cancer drug therapies to be delivered in a mobile cancer care unit.
The new service was launched in January 2021 visiting market towns around Norfolk to
deliver chemotherapy services to patients closer to home whilst replicating the hospital
environment.
Breast cancer care
The £800,000 Boudicca Appeal to create a dedicated breast cancer unit at NNUH has
raised more than £400,000 thanks to donations from members of the public, groups and
businesses.
Equipment is already in place and this includes a Stereotactic mammography system
which uses low-dose x-rays to help locate a breast abnormality and remove a tissue and
is less invasive than surgical biopsy.
Also now being used is a Hologic LOCalizer guidance system so that very small breast
cancers can be more accurately and less invasively identified during diagnosis and
surgery, improving the patient’s experience and further reducing the need for multiple
visits to hospital. The main patient waiting area is also being transformed to provide a
calm environment for patients.
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Bringing cancer care closer to home with new
mobile treatment unit

This project was
supported by:
An expansion of cancer services in Norfolk has
begun with the launch of a pioneering mobile
treatment unit.

The Mobile Cancer Care Unit (MCCU) will hit the road from January 2021, thanks
to an innovative partnership between the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust and cancer charity Hope for Tomorrow.
The project started in Fakenham and will bring cancer treatments closer to
people’s homes to improve patient experience.
The mobile unit is owned and maintained by Hope for Tomorrow and will be
provided along with a Nurses’ Support Vehicle (NSV). The NNUH staffing costs
will be covered by the Norfolk and Norwich Hospitals Charity for the first three
years, which has supported funding two registered nurses, a driver, pharmacy
support and booking team.
All other costs associated with the MCCU and NSV, such as running costs and
maintenance, are covered by Hope for Tomorrow, who receive no government
funding and rely purely on donations to keep these units operating.
The vehicle houses a mobile chemotherapy day unit with space for four recliner
chairs, infusion pumps, a kitchen area and patient toilet.
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Our Financial Performance
The COVID-19 pandemic led to a significant change in operational planning
processes for the NHS.
The NHS Chief Executive wrote to all Trusts on 17 March 2020 outlining the ‘next steps’
on the NHS Response to COVID-19. The ‘next steps’ included the suspension of the
operational planning process for FY20/21 and a fundamental shift in financial governance
and business rules within the NHS for an initial period of 1 April 2020 to 31 July 2020.
The focus of the COVID-19 response was to achieve simplification and certainty;
resilience and continuity; to support the wider economy; and to increase our speed of
response whilst maintaining appropriate financial governance and control.
This period was subsequently extended to the full financial year ended 31 March 2021.
The Trust created two key financial plans for this period in line with the ‘next steps’
guidance.
The first plan covered the six months to 30 September 2020, which assumed a breakeven
financial position after reflecting the NHS ‘block’, top-up and COVID-19 funding
arrangements for this period. This plan was achieved. Accordingly, the Trust planned
for, achieved, and reported a break-even position for the first six months of the financial
year, in line with the wider NHS expectation for the provider sector.
The second plan was for the six months from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2021. This
plan assumed a deficit of £11.4m after reflecting the revised block, top up and COVID-19
funding arrangements for the second half year along with activity recovery expectations.
The Trust reported an outturn position for this period of a surplus of £7.2m.
Thus, the reported financial position for the full year was a surplus of £7.2m
compared to a full year plan of a deficit of £11.4m.
The overall surplus and improvement on plan was supported by the national response to
the pandemic funding arrangements and driven by operational underspends resulting from
the impact of the second wave of COVID-19. The second wave caused a pausing of the
activity recovery plans, particularly elective activity, resulting in an underspend of the
associated operational costs.
Financial Improvement
Throughout the financial year, the Trust has been active in developing efficiency plans
responsive to different pandemic/operational scenarios. For the year ended 31 March
2021, £7.6m of efficiency savings was delivered. There has been a focus on capacity
planning and productivity improvements alongside the expected activity recovery plans.
An enhanced governance and delivery programme with inbuilt quality and safety
safeguards underpins this.
Cash Management
The NHS cash regime was reformed as at 1 April 2020. This extinguished all DHSC
interim revenue and capital loans as at 31 March 2020 and replaced it with the issue of
Public Dividend Capital –which allowed repayment of that historic debt. This meant that
the DHSC loans as at 31 March 2020 of £195.1m were ‘repaid’ following the issue of new
Public Dividend Capital of the same amount.
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As part of the NHS response to the pandemic, the funding flows were structured to be
supportive with certain income streams being in advance at year-end. This, along with the
timing of capital cash funding inflows and an increase in capital creditors has resulted in
closing cash of £68.9m.
Capital Expenditure
We invested £62.8m in new and replacement capital assets during the year (19/20:
£35.8m). The most notable investments were:
x
x
x
x
x
x

General construction projects linked to the response to COVID-19 - £14.5m
COVID equipment – £2.8m
Isolation unit and HDU facility – projects linked to the response to COVID-19 - £9m
CT and MR replacement – £7.9m
IT devices refresh - £4.7m
Other digital investments - £8.8m

Overseas operations
The Trust does not have any overseas operations
Charitable Funding
We are fortunate to be supported by the Norfolk and Norwich Hospitals Charity and The
Cromer Community and Hospital Friends Charity. In addition, we are again fortunate to
receive support from many external charities and organisations including The Big C and
Macmillan. In 2020/21, we benefitted from £2.3m of charitably donated assets (2019/20:
£3.8m).
Operational Future
The Trust is now heavily focused on the restoration of services following the impact of the
pandemic during 2020/21, as well as remaining prepared for any further rise in Covid-19
prevalence over the next 12 months.
We are experiencing high levels of elective demand, and prolonged waiting times in the
aftermath of the acute pandemic which have created risks for delivery of the Trust’s
performance targets for cancer, 18-weeks and diagnostics, leading to extended waiting
times and use of expensive temporary or outsourced capacity.
The Incident Management Team (IMT), which was set up to manage our handling of the
pandemic, has been restructured to better reflect the work required to meet performance
standards and to improve the patient journey across the whole Trust. All Divisions are
represented at the daily meetings looking at real-time data showing how the hospital is
performing, including ED, bed capacity, electives, Divisional performance, average length
of stay, Infection Prevention and Control, 62-day waits (over 104 days) and our financial
position.
Work streams, including digital, have also been created to bring these improvements
about, and will help capture data for NHS England and Improvement. These issues are
covered in the performance section on page 36 which describes our Better, Safer, Faster:
Emergency Pathways Improvement Programme.
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We are working closely with system partners to plan and deliver locally against NHS
England’s priorities for the 2021/22 year ahead, with key areas of focus for us being:
x
x
x
x

x

Looking after the health and wellbeing of staff, helping them to recover and taking
action on recruitment and retention
Continuing to deliver the Covid-19 vaccination programme and continuing to meet
the needs of patients with Covid-19
Building on what we have learned during the pandemic to transform the delivery of
services, and accelerate the restoration of elective and cancer care
Transforming community and urgent and emergency care to prevent inappropriate
attendance at emergency departments (ED), improve timely admission to hospital
for ED patients and reduce length of stay
Working collaboratively across systems to deliver on these priorities.

Whilst delivering against these priorities, the Trust will continue to make improvements in
both the quality of services and effective use of resources for the benefit of patients.
NHS England has set out a financial framework that will apply for the first six months of
2021/22 that provides clarity over funding arrangements and supports the Trust, along
with system partners, to deliver these priorities.
Financial Accounts 2020/21
The full accounts are attached at the end of this document.
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Social and community report
We aim to be at the heart of the local community serving a large population in a rural area.
We touch the lives of many people as patients, visitors, members, fundraisers, volunteers
and employees. Local people can get involved in a number of ways, principally through
our large membership scheme, but also through our ward assurance audit programme,
patient panel or as a volunteer.
Patient and family feedback is vital to help us improve the care we provide and we collect
the views of patients and families in several ways outlined on the following pages:
Patient, carer and family Feedback
We consistently gather feedback from our patients, carers and communities in a variety of
ways. This includes more traditional methods of PALS (Patient Advice and Liaison
Service) and complaints but also through our Friends and Family survey collecting
responses from across our in-patient, out-patient and emergency areas. Over the course
of the Covid-19 pandemic, Friends and Family survey feedback was received virtually in
most cases due to infection prevention and control measures implemented across the
Trust where areas were decluttered and leaflets removed.
We continue to work closely with Healthwatch Norfolk on the feedback received through
their website. However, the visits that used to take place on regular basis to listen to
patients and families have not taken place through the pandemic. Feedback was
previously shared and published to the Healthwatch website.
Feedback is received and analysed via social media and online outlets such as Care
Opinion, Facebook, Twitter and similar. We respond directly and take action where
necessary as well as sharing the mostly complimentary comments with our wards and
clinics – this is a great morale booster and shows staff the impact of their care. We have
created digital engagement plans to reach out to the seldom heard groups including
young carers and continue to organise virtual events to allow feedback to be shared for us
learn and improve from. We have also attended community groups and events to build
rapport and provide opportunity to offer a space for engagement – this has been done
virtually during Covid-19 restrictions.
Over the last year the new Patient Experience team has started work on meeting the
priorities in the strategic aspiration for the patient engagement and experience which is:
“NNUH is an outstanding organisation with exceptional patient and carer experience
where people feel listened to, action is taken and we work in partnership with patients and
carers, especially those who are seldom heard, to continually improve.”
Our ambitions for patient engagement and experience:
x
x
x
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Working in partnership with patients is the norm – there is a strong Patient Voice
including those who are seldom heard
Services and pathways are co-designed with patients, staff and other stakeholders
Feedback, whether complimentary or critical is proactively sought, coordinated,
analysed and used to make improvements – ‘you said, we did…together’

x
x

All staff feel engaged, confident and empowered to proactively listen, respond and
act - from the top and embedded throughout the organisation
Volunteers support the patient experience to be outstanding through innovative
roles and opportunities

The patient experience team have worked on improving engagement with local,
seldom heard communities through social media, organising virtual events focusing on
listening to our minority groups/communities and carers. Support has also been given to
our Women and Children’s division to improve engagement with children and young
people by increasing feedback opportunities.
The Patients’ Panel has grown and is 13 members strong. We are aiming to recruit new
panel members to have a panel of 20 members in total. The panel members have
adapted and continued to work virtually/via Teams and are embedded across the
organisation on committees and supporting Quality Improvement projects for example
Transforming Outpatients Committee, Infection Control Committee, Clinical Support
Services PPI Forum, Carers Forum and Digital Health work streams.
The Trust has been awarded the Carer Friendly Tick Award- Health (November 2020) in
recognition of the work done in identifying and supporting carers. The Carers Forum has
been re-instated and had their first meeting in January 2021 after being paused due to
Covid restrictions. It follows on from the publication of the Carers policy. The Carers
forum is focusing on reviewing and re-setting of the priorities for 2021/22 and are working
to increase carer representation within membership.
Relative Liaison Service
A relative liaison service was set up over the pandemic with an aim to improve patient and
family experience and wellbeing by maintaining a line of communication during their time
in hospital. This will also to enable the nurses and other clinicians to focus on direct
patient care by reducing the call volume to the wards. The service was made up of redeployed staff and has been well received by families. Following the success of the
service during the first lockdown, a similar team was set within our Critical Care Complex
to support the families of the patients. During the second lockdown, a total of 297 patient’s
families were supported by the relative liaison teams.
Volunteer work to improve the Patients’ Experience
We are proud to have a vibrant volunteer community supporting a broad spectrum of
areas within the hospital and who provide an immeasurable contribution to the quality of
care received by our patients and their families as well as the working life of our staff. We
have over 600 volunteers (across eight sites) providing around 3,000 hours of help
throughout the Trust every week and we also benefit from the support of volunteers from
many external voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) organisations who are
able to provide more specialised help.
People volunteer with us for many different reasons. They may be our recovering patients
or retired with time on their hands, some are parents at home with a few spare hours to fit
around their children, and some may be wishing to gain the confidence to return to work
after a break. Students volunteer to gain valuable experience before embarking on
medical studies or other hospital-related careers, and people with learning difficulties or
physical and mental health disabilities find volunteering a rewarding way to participate in
the work place while feeling valued for the work they do.
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The flexible nature of volunteering enables many volunteers to take on more than one
role, this offers them a more varied volunteer experience and maximises their potential to
make a positive impact throughout the Trust. Our volunteers are trained to support a huge
range of areas.
On wards they can provide assistance at mealtimes, companionship to patients without
visitors, stimulation for patients with dementia and activities and music to encourage
movement. In addition, a team of volunteers carry out audits and surveys gathering
patient experience data from our inpatients on iPads. They also collect card surveys from
our outpatient clinics and conduct telephone surveys with patients the day after discharge.
A team of Bleep buddies carry bleeps and can be contacted by staff hospital-wide. They
respond to ad-hoc requests for errand running, note collecting, patient escorting and
wheelchair pushing duties. Another team of volunteers support our school of medicine
assisting them with registering students and providing refreshments on exam days.
Fundraising volunteers have been assigned to our fundraising manager and assist her
with all kinds of fundraising events and activities and a team of happy welcoming faces
provide an extremely knowledgably meet and greet service on our outpatient reception
desks.
We also provide volunteer support in some more specialist roles:
End of Life Butterfly Volunteers
We are very proud to work in partnership with the Anne Robson Trust, to bring ‘Butterfly
Volunteers’ to the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital. The role of the Butterfly
volunteer is to provide compassionate care and emotional support at end of life for
patients across the hospital. The volunteers provide support to patients and their loved
ones who have been recognised as being in the last days and hours of their life and can
just sit with a patient, offer gentle hand massage or provide a respite break for the
families.
Settle in Service
Our ‘Settle-in’ volunteers meet patients as they return home and carry out some simple
checks around the home. Duties include making a cup of tea, unpacking patient’s bags,
checking the central heating is working and ensuring there are some basic grocery
supplies such as bread and milk in the cupboards. Volunteers carry out simple
environment risk assessments around the home, offering advice to patients to prevent
falls and signposting to other community services, thus increasing the patient’s confidence
in returning home. The service dovetails into our Volunteer Driver Service which had
enabled us to streamline the discharge process and cut down on delays getting patients
home.
Volunteer Drivers
A team of volunteer drivers have access to two wheelchair accessible vehicles provided
by our charity. Our volunteer drivers cover the whole of Norfolk and Waveney and are
available Monday to Friday to discharge our patients to their homes in comfort. The
service is also able to diversify and has assisted our occupational therapists by delivering
enablement equipment, our pharmacy by delivering prescriptions and our cancer services
by delivering chemotherapy.
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NNUH volunteers receive long service awards

More than 50 volunteers at NNUH have received long service awards from the
Trust.
Fifty three volunteers who have helped the Trust for more than five years received
their awards.
Sam Higginson, NNUH Chief Executive, hit the road with Jamie Goodman,
Volunteer drive co-ordinator, to deliver the awards to Janice Beck and Margaret
Leggatt, the two longest serving volunteers.
Janice has volunteered at NNUH for 15 years, meeting and greeting patients and
their families.
Margaret was one of the first volunteers recruited for the Big C centre when it was
built. She has volunteered for 20 years in the Breast Clinic, supporting specialist
nurses and patients.
The 82-year-old from Lenwade said she was looking forward to returning to the
hospital when the Covid-19 pandemic was over.
“I know it is very busy at the moment and I was very touched to receive a visit from
the Chief Executive and was really appreciated. I could not have had better
treatment when I had cancer and I have been working with cancer patients and
providing emotional support since 2000.”
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Older Peoples Medicine
In OPM Volunteers provide a wide range of enrichment activities for patients on wards
including puzzles, interactive games on smart screens and tablets, memory box activities
and reminiscence exercises. OPM volunteers are able to support older patients across all
areas of the hospital, not just OPM departments. They also support the Older People’s
Emergency Department where they will meet, reassure and accompany patients to further
investigations for the duration of their visit. They also offer support to the dementia
support team by calling patients’ next of kin to discuss and complete ‘This is Me’ booklets.
These booklets can help tell staff and visitors about patients’ backgrounds, likes and
dislikes and enable a more person-focussed approach to care and support.
Pets As Therapy Dogs
Research provides evidence that dogs can have a positive effect on our patients’
wellbeing and assist a speedier recovery. The companionship of a dog and their handler
can decrease loneliness, stimulate conversation, encourage movement and social
interaction. The hospital is supported by twelve Pets as Therapy volunteers who visit ten
different wards. The visiting PAT team includes Anne and her Mini Dashund Lily, Diane
and her German Shepherds Yoda and Juke, Jon and his Poodle Ginger Beer, and Sophie
with her Bijon Freise Minty. Feedback from the wards is extremely positive, the PAT dogs
lift the mood of some of our long stay patients - they allow our patients with dementia to
reminisce about having a dog of their own and staff morale is always greatly improved.
Emergency Department
A successful funding bid to NHSE this year has enabled us to recruit a volunteer
coordinator specifically for Emergency Services on a secondment basis. Roles are being
developed and volunteers recruited to support patients who may be alone and anxious,
patients who are elderly and confused, patients who are homeless or even those at end of
life. They will also support staff in a wide range of tasks such as providing refreshments,
stocking up clinical areas, taking telephone calls, finding wheelchairs, basic admin tasks
and collecting patient feedback.
Investing in Volunteers
Similar to “Investors in People” the voluntary services team have successfully been
accredited with the Investing in Volunteers (IiV) award (renewable every three years). The
process requires an organisation to produce an initial self-assessment then carry out any
service developments identified before they receive a three-day visit from an assessor.
The assessor is required to scrutinise evidence based practice and interview a selection
of volunteers and staff. Those interviewed represent a range of specialities, ages and
lengths of service, ranging from those who have volunteered for 15 or more years to those
recently recruited (within the last six months) and includes a diverse range of volunteers
and staff. NNUH are the only hospital in the country to receive the accreditation for a fifth
time.
Membership scheme
As a NHS Foundation Trust, we have a membership scheme with over 16,000 public
members. Members receive a copy of our magazine The Pulse and they are invited to
talks on health topics and events such as our open day and fete. Members also give their
views on health priorities and other issues. More information about membership is given
in the Council of Governors’ section of the Director’s report on page 56.
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Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is part of Norfolk County Council and its
role is to scrutinise the local health service, ensuring that patients and the public are
properly involved in any changes to services. The committee has examined issues such
as ambulance turnaround times at A&E and discharge from hospital, looking at the
arrangements in our hospital and others locally.
Healthwatch
Healthwatch England is the national consumer champion in health and care. It has
significant statutory powers to ensure the voice of the patient is strengthened and heard
by those who commission, deliver and regulate health and social care services. Our
patient experience team works closely with Healthwatch to gather patient feedback.

Norfolk & Norwich Hospitals Charity
Despite all the difficulties of this last year, 2020/21 has been another very successful and
important period for the Charity.
Financials:
Our draft accounts are yet to be formally audited but they show total income >£3.5m (one
of our highest annual totals ever). Grant approvals are also up – with £1.8m expenditure
in the year and we carry forward £4.6m of approved grants. Inevitably some recipients
have not been able to use their grants this year (due to the pandemic disruption) but the
funds are committed for future use – for educational courses, new equipment, enhanced
facilities – all to the benefit of patients.
We have been notified of 20 donations through Legacy giving this year – to everyone who
remembers us in their Will, and to their families, we are really grateful.
Major Projects:
We are actively using our assets to have the best possible impact and a series of major
projects are coming to fruition with support from the Charity:
- this year the mobile chemotherapy unit, Interventional Radiology Unit and surgical
robot all started treating patients, all supported by Charity funding;
- enhanced staff facilities have also been provided, including a ‘red zone’ staff rest
area, external bench-tables, staff kitchenette and 25 new cooled water fountains – to
keep staff refreshed;
- great progress has also been made in constructing the new cancer care and support
centre at Cromer and District Hospital. This was made possible through a £1.8m
donation from the N&N Hospitals Charity in partnership with Macmillan Cancer
Support and it is due to open in 2021.
Covid-19 & the support of our community
This has been a year like no other and the Covid-19 pandemic placed significant pressure
on the Trust, its staff and patients. Staff faced long days spent in PPE, a hospital split into
segregated areas, multiple uniform changes, along with the mental toll of so much
uncertainty, fear, separation, stress and sadness.
The Charity became a conduit for channelling the care and support of our community to
our staff and patients. We created ‘pop-up’ staff rooms with donated kitchen appliances,
fridges and coffee machines. I-pads enabled communication when visiting was restricted
whilst gifts of meals sustained staff. The flow of gifts in kind and offers of help was truly
unprecedented and hugely appreciated.
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Our thanks go to everyone who has helped this year and it is invidious to choose
individuals but examples include:
x
x
x
x

Army veteran, 96-year-old Brian Garrad raised more than £2,235 by walking 70
laps around his garden – covering over 10 miles in a month – inspired by Captain
Sir Tom Moore.
Nine-year old Phoebe Davison climbed 1,300 flights of stairs in a week, raising
£505.
Sue Gresham completed a 125-mile virtual walk while shielding at home, raising
more than £2,500.
Hughes Electricals donated microwaves, kettles and fridges for staff rest rooms.

When circumstances and national policy permits, we hope to properly recognise the
generosity of all our donors, supporters & fundraisers.
Boudicca Breast Unit
Thanks to overwhelming support from our local community for our Boudicca Appeal, the
Charity funded the equipment needed to establish a same-day service for patients
suspected of having breast cancer.
“This brings us completely into the state-of-the-art in terms of what we can deliver to our
patients. It is the latest technological advance and enables us to see a lot more patients a
lot more quickly. The new machine also makes biopsies a lot more tolerable for patients
and we can diagnose more quickly.” Dr Arne Juette – Consultant Radiologist
The Boudicca Appeal will continue – to fund ongoing service development for this group of
patients.
£1 million Grant Funds Surgical Robot
A £1m grant from the Charity means more patients benefitting from cutting-edge surgery
at NNUH. The grant has supported development of robot-assisted surgery at NNUH,
which now has two ‘state of the art’ devices. These enable surgeons to achieve greater
precision and reduce the time that patients need to spend in hospital. These robots will
assist in up to 600 surgeries a year – particularly in complex urology and colorectal
procedures but also expanding in future intro gynaecology, thoracic and head and neck
surgery. The generosity of people donating to the Charity is making a tangible difference
– improving the lives of our patients.
Next Steps and Looking to the Future
The N&N Hospitals Charity is actively using its assets to have the best effect for patients,
across all the services of the Trust, whether in Norwich, Cromer or elsewhere in the
County. We have significant plans for further expenditure – to purchase additional
diagnostic equipment for cancer and cardiology patients, support for developing stroke
services, and enhancing care in paediatrics and maternity.
We are increasingly working with corporate and business partners. If your business might
like to work with our Charity, please do contact our Charity Director – John Paul Garside
at charity@nnuh.nhs.uk
We are very grateful for the generosity of all our supporters so that we can do even more
for the patients of Norfolk. Next year marks 250 years since the opening of the N&N
Hospital (1772-2022). If you would like to receive information about our anniversary
events, have suggestions or would like to be involved – ‘celebrating the past – preparing
for the future’ please contact us at 250@nnuh.nhs.uk
To find out more about the Charity or to sign-up for our Newsletter please visit
www.nnuhcharity.org.uk or keep up to date with us on twitter @NNUHCharity
#NNUHCharity1
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The N&N Hospital’s Charity 2020/21:
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Environment and sustainability
Here is a summary of the work being undertaken to improve sustainability and reduce the
Trust’s impact on the environment:
x
x

x

x

In 2020/21 the Trust has reduced its carbon emissions by nearly 3,500 tonnes.
This has been accomplished by procuring grid electricity on a Renewable Energy
Guarantees of Origin (REGO) certificated Clean Renewable Tariff.
The Trust’s Environmental Arts Manager has been working in partnership with
South Norfolk Council, Easton and Otley College, the woodland trust and other
specialists in arboriculture. This year we have planted 150 trees in various forms
around the hospital site. Tree species were chosen very specifically to cope with
our ‘Urban Heat Island’ site and rising temperatures of global warming.
Mott MacDonald was appointed by NNUH this year to carry out a feasibility study
for a site wide decarbonisation of heat strategy for the acute hospital site. Among
others, the study also considers solar photovoltaic (PV) applicability as well as
phasing options and recommendations to mobilise the heat decarbonisation
strategy over the next 5 years. The NNUH is a significant user of heat and power,
consuming circa 36.3 GWh of gas, equating to over 8,200 tCO2 emissions, per
annum.
The Trust has signed up to the NHS plastics pledge, launched in Autumn 2019

Anti-bribery legislation
In order to ensure the NHS (including our Trust) provides a transparent view of how
taxpayers’ money is spent, new guidance has come into force which outlines key areas of
potential conflict and guides staff on how to manage them
From 1st June 2017, Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS came into effect,
introducing consistent principles and rules for managing actual and potential conflicts of
interest, providing simple advice to staff and organisations about what to do in common
situations and supporting good judgement about how interests should be approached and
managed
The guidance is supported by an updated Trust policy: Conflicts of Interest and Business
Conduct Policy and area on the staff intranet which was accompanied by a
communications campaign with staff.
Arrangements to prevent slavery and human trafficking
The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital supports the Government’s objectives to
eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking and recognises the significant role the
NHS has to play in both combatting it, and supporting victims. In particular, we are
strongly committed to ensuring our supply chains and business activities are free from
ethical and labour standards abuses.
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Steps taken to date include:
Our arrangements:
People
x
x
x

x

We confirm the identities of all new employees and their right to work in the United
Kingdom, and pay all our employees above the National Living Wage
Our Freedom to Speak Up: Raising Concerns Policy, Provides a platform for our
employees to raise concerns about poor working practices
We undertake awareness training to support our staffing teams to understand and
respond to modern slavery and human trafficking. Including how to identify
potential victims and the impact that each employee at the NNUH can have on
keeping present and potential future victims of modern slavery and human
trafficking safe.
Trust staff will contact and work with the Procurement department when looking to
work with new suppliers, so that appropriate checks can be undertaken.

Safeguarding:
Our commitment to ensure no modern slavery is reflected in a number of our policies and
procedures. These include our Adults and Children Safeguarding Policy and the
Procurement Strategy.
Suppliers/tenders:
The Trust complies with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and uses mandatory
Crown Commercial Services (CCS) Pre-Qualification Questionnaire on procurement,
which exceed the prescribed threshold, whereby bidders are required to confirm their
compliance with the Modern Slavery Act.
Our procurement team and contracting team are qualified and experienced in managing
healthcare contracts and have received the appropriate briefing on the requirements of
the Modern Slavery Act 2015, which includes:
x
x
x

x

Confirming compliance of their plans and arrangements to prevent slavery in their
activities and supply chain.
Implementing any relevant clauses contained within the Standard NHS Contract.
We will not award contracts where suppliers do not demonstrate their commitment
to ensuring that slavery and human trafficking are not taking place in their own
business or supply chains.
We will adopt best practice advice by The Chartered Institute of Procurement and
Supply.

This statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and
constitutes our slavery and human trafficking statement for the financial year 2020/21.
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Self-soothe support for Children’s Emergency
Department patients

A sensory and self-soothe project has been launched in the Children’s Emergency
Department at NNUH to provide support to children and young people with learning
disabilities, autism or mental health needs.
A bespoke pack of activities and resources are being given to young patients to support
with distraction, grounding techniques and sensory needs when they attend ED for
emergency or urgent care.
This was made possible thanks to the support of Starlight Charity and the N&N Hospitals
Charity.
Fiona Springall, Children and Young People’s Learning Disability and Autism Specialist
Nurse, said: “On average each month the Children’s ED sees 30 young people with
mental health needs and other 15 with learning disabilities and/or autism. These
resources will help us support this cohort of patients, to reduce their anxiety levels and
develop their engagement while in our care.”
“For children with Autism Spectrum Condition, their ability to perceive and interact with the
world around them is affected; often combined with sensory sensitivities, focus on routine
and alternative means of social communication and interaction. For these young people
arriving in an unfamiliar, overstimulating environment, such as the Emergency
Department, can have a detrimental impact on their confidence and wellbeing.”
Each pack will contain three items, selected bespoke to each individual patient’s needs.
This could vary from fidget spinners, slime, musical toys or a sensory chew.
“Children with mental health needs are often hesitant or frightened to attend hospital,
feeling they are going to be judged for not having a physical health need and this fear of
rejection is sadly something they commonly feel in their day-to-day lives,” said Kieron
Loane, Deputy Mental Health Operational Manager.
The packs will provide the child with appropriate distraction and sensory resources, to
enhance their confidence and build trust with the hospital staff and environment.
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Approval of the Performance Report

I confirm my approval of the Performance Report:

Sam Higginson
Chief Executive
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Date: 1 June 2021

Accountability
Report

55

Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the operational management of the
Trust and is charged by statute with ultimate responsibility for the Trust’s corporate affairs
in both strategic and operational terms. It is responsible for the design and
implementation of agreed priorities, objectives and the overall strategy of the Trust.
The composition of the Board of Directors is specified in our Constitution to have a
majority of independent Non-Executive Director members and the Board comprises six
Executive Directors and eight independent Non-Executive Directors (including the
Chairman).
In accordance with the Trust’s Constitution, the Non-Executive Directors are appointed by
the Council of Governors, typically for a three-year term of office and they usually serve
two such three-year terms unless otherwise determined by the Council of Governors.
One of the Non-Executive Directors is nominated by the University of East Anglia.
This year the Trust has also been pleased to welcome an Associate Non-Executive
Director attached to the Board through the NHS NEXT Directors scheme for ‘supporting
tomorrow’s non-executives’.
The Foundation Trust Code of Governance recommends that NHS Foundation Trusts
should identify one of its Non-Executive Directors as Senior Independent Director (SID).
The Board has identified Ms Sandra Dinneen as Senior Independent Director.
The Board meets in public every other month and otherwise as required and in
accordance with Standing Orders. The Board Agendas are formulated to ensure that time
is devoted to strategic, operational and financial matters and there is a strong focus on the
quality and safety of clinical services for patients. The Board has approved a Scheme of
Delegation of authority and a Schedule of Matters Reserved for decision by the Board.
The Trust’s Constitution sets out a process for resolution of any conflict between the
Board and Council of Governors in the unlikely event that the Chairman cannot achieve
such resolution.
Who is on the Board of Directors?
Executive Directors
Chief Executive
Sam Higginson was appointed as Chief Executive of the Trust from October 2019. Sam
joined NNUH from Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust where he was
Chief Operating Officer. Previously Sam was Director of Strategic Finance for NHS
England and Director of Strategic Development at University College London Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust. Sam started his career working with Unicef as a logistics officer
co-ordinating the airlift of emergency supplies in Sudan, followed by organising medical
teams for a charity in areas of Africa and Afghanistan. He joined NHS London in 2008
after four years on the HM Treasury Health Spending Team. Sam leads the executive
team responsible for the overall leadership of our hospitals.
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Chief Operating Officer
Chris Cobb was appointed as Chief Operating Officer in January 2019. Prior to becoming
COO, Chris was Divisional Operations Director for the Division of Medicine. As COO,
Chris is responsible for the operational performance of the Trust and chairs our Divisional
Performance Committee.
Medical Director
As Medical Director, Professor Erika Denton is responsible for providing professional
strategic medical advice to the Board and leadership on clinical quality and safety and
clinical research. Erika has been a consultant radiologist at the Trust since 1999. Erika
was appointed to the role of Associate Medical Director at NNUH in 2016 and Medical
Director in July 2018. Erika chairs our Clinical Safety and Effectiveness Governance Subboard, Mental Health Board and Research Oversight Board.
Chief Nurse
Professor Nancy Fontaine was appointed as Chief Nurse in August 2018 and is
responsible for professional leadership of nurses, midwives, AHPs, Pharmacists and BioScientists across the Trust. As Director for Infection Prevention and Control and
Executive lead for Quality, Safety, Patient Experience and Engagement, the Chief Nurse
is responsible for providing professional clinical advice to the Board and for leading nonmedical research and education. Nancy chairs our Patient Experience and Engagement
Governance Sub-board.
Chief Finance Officer
Roy Clarke was appointed to the Board as our Chief Finance Officer in April 2020. Roy
has 22 years of healthcare experience in primary, secondary and tertiary services and
before coming to our Trust played a key role in the successful construction,
commissioning and occupation programme for a new £200m specialist hospital.
Chief People Officer
Paul Jones was appointed as Chief People Officer in August 2019. Previously Paul had
most recently served as the Chief Human Resources Officer, helping open a new state of
the art teaching hospital for Women and Children in the Middle East. He has more than
twenty years’ experience as a Human Resources Director, working for hospitals including
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Kings College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust and the Cambridge and
Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust.
Non-Executive Directors
Chairman
David White was appointed as Chairman in June 2019. David joined NNUH from East
Suffolk and North Essex NHS Foundation Trust – where he was Chairman from 2015.
David began his career as a social worker in London before becoming a Director of Social
Services then moving to East Anglia as Chief Executive of Suffolk Health Authority in
1994. He went on to spend four years as Chief Executive of Thurrock Council before
joining Norfolk County Council, where he held the role of Chief Executive from 2006 until
his retirement in April 2013. David has lived in Norfolk with his family since 2010.
David is Chairman of both the Board of Directors and of the Council of Governors and of
the Board’s Nominations and Remuneration Committee and Council’s Appointments &
Remuneration Committee.
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Dr Geraldine O’Sullivan was appointed as a Non-Executive Director from 1 November
2016 and was reappointed from November 2019. Geraldine is a Consultant Psychiatrist,
who was previously the Executive Director of Quality and Medical Leadership, and before
that Co-Medical Director, of Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust.
Geraldine is a Member and Fellow of the Royal College of Psychiatrists. Geraldine is
Chair of the Quality and Safety Committee, and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nominations & Remuneration Committee.
Professor David Richardson is Vice Chancellor of the University of East Anglia. David
was appointed as Non-Executive Director from September 2014, reappointed by the
Council of Governors in September 2017 and again in April 2020. David is a
Microbiologist with particular research interests in the biochemistry of environmentally and
medically important bacteria. David is a Board member of the Anglia Innovation Partners
LLP and Quadram Institute Partners Board. David is Chair of our People & Culture
Committee and a member of the Nominations & Remuneration Committee.
Julian Foster was appointed as Non-Executive Director in June 2019. Julian is a
chartered accountant and corporate treasurer. He was Executive Finance Director of
Broadland Housing Association and has held senior finance director roles in growing
housing association groups in the Eastern region over the last 20 years. After graduating
from Trinity College, Oxford, Julian worked in investment banking until moving to the
social housing sector. Julian is Chair of the Trust’s Audit Committee and is a member of
the Finance, Investments & Performance Committee, Charitable Funds Committee and
Nominations & Remuneration Committee.
Dr Pamela Chrispin was appointed as Non-Executive Director from January 2020. Pam
has worked in the NHS for more than 30 years and was previously Medical Director of the
East of England Ambulance Service, Medical Director at West Suffolk Hospital and
Deputy Medical Director at East Anglian Air Ambulance. Pam is a member of the Trust’s
Quality & Safety Committee, Finance, Investments & Performance Committee and
Nominations & Remuneration Committee.
Sandra Dinneen was appointed as Non-Executive Director in January 2020. Sandra was
Chief Executive at South Norfolk Council, Head of Economic Development at Norfolk
County Council and is currently a board member for Historic England. Sandra is a
member of the Trust’s Finance, Investments & Performance Committee, Audit Committee,
People & Culture Committee and Nominations & Remuneration Committee. Sandra is the
Trust’s nominated Senior Independent Director.
Joanna Hannam was appointed as Non-Executive Director from January 2020. Joanna
has lived in Norfolk with her family for 30 years, was Head of Customer Services and
Communications at Norfolk County Council, Executive Director of the Health Improvement
Programme at Norfolk Health Authority and was a lay member at Norwich Clinical
Commissioning Group. Joanna is a member of the Trust’s Quality & Safety Committee,
People & Culture Committee, Nominations & Remuneration Committee and chairs the
Charitable Funds Committee.
Tom Spink was appointed as Non-Executive Director in June 2020. Tom is an operations
director from the engineering and aerospace industries. He has held various key roles at
Aviva including CEO of the General Insurance business in Turkey, and began his current
role as Group Procurement Director in 2013. Tom was previously a non-executive
director at the East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust. Tom is Chair of the Trust’s
Finance, Investments and Performance Committee and a member of the Nominations &
Remuneration Committee and Charitable Funds Committee.
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Changes during the Year
In addition to those noted above, there were a number of changes to the membership of
the Board during the year:
x Mr How stood down as Non-Executive Director in May 2020.
Division of responsibilities
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive.
The Chairman is responsible for:
x
x
x
x

providing leadership to the Board of Directors and the Trust;
facilitating the contribution of the Non-Executive Directors to the success of the
Trust in the delivery of high-quality healthcare;
ensuring effective communication with the Council of Governors;
the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and its committees and
implementing any action required following such evaluation.

The Chief Executive is responsible for:
x
x
x
x

working with the Chairman to ensure the development of strategy that is supported
by the Board as a whole;
overseeing operational implementation of the strategic objectives of the Trust;
creating a framework of values and objectives to ensure the delivery of key targets,
and allocating decision-making responsibilities accordingly;
ensuring effective communication with employees and taking a leading role, with the
Chairman, in building relationships with key external partners and agencies.

Independence of Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors bring wide and varied experience to the Board. They also
play a crucial role via the assurance committees of the Board.
There is full disclosure of all Directors’ interests in the Register of Directors’ Interests. The
Register is held by the Board Secretary and is publicly available on our website
(www.nnuh.nhs.uk).
Any actual or potential conflicts of interest are dealt with in accordance with procedures
set out in the Standing Orders for the Board of Directors. The Chairman has not declared
any significant commitments that are considered material to his capacity to carry out his
role. The Board considers that the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors satisfy the
independence criteria set out in the Foundation Trust Code of Governance.
As required by the Code of Governance, the Board has considered Professor
Richardson’s role on the Board, given that the University of East Anglia has a material
business relationship with the Trust. The Board has considered whether this could affect,
or appear to affect, Professor Richardson’s independence as a Non-Executive Director.
The Board noted that Professor Richardson’s role as the University Vice Chancellor does
not require a direct operational relationship with the Trust and, when this is viewed in
conjunction with the safeguards against conflicts of interests as set out in the Board’s
Standing Orders, the Board considers that Professor Richardson satisfies the criteria for
‘independence’.
In accordance with Regulations overseen by the Care Quality Commission, Foundation
Trusts are required to ensure that all directors meet the requirements of the ‘fit and proper
persons test’.
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Annual checks are conducted against national registers and through a process of annual
declarations. The Board can accordingly confirm that all its director level appointments
meet the ‘fit and proper persons test’.
The Board’s Committees
The Board makes a distinction between management responsibility (led by the Chief
Executive) and independent assurance responsibility (led by the Non-Executive
Directors).
In accordance with our Organisational Governance Framework, the Board has established
a number of committees of the Board responsible for obtaining assurance in defined areas
most particularly Audit, Quality & Safety, Finance, Investments & Performance and People
& Culture. Terms of Reference allocate specific responsibilities between the committees.
The Board has also established a Nominations and Remuneration Committee and a
Charitable Funds Committee, which reports to the Board acting for the Trust as Corporate
Trustee.
During 2020/21 the Board has also established a further committee known as the
Committee in Common. This arrangement is mirrored in the two other acute hospital
trusts in Norfolk and the three Committees in Common meet together on a monthly basis
to enhance co-ordination and efficiency in services across the acute hospital sector. The
Trust is represented at meetings of these Committees in Common by the Chairman, Chief
Executive, director of Strategy and Joanna Hannam, as a second Non-Executive Director.
Audit Committee:
In accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, the Audit Committee
membership consists only of Non-Executive Directors. The Committee is chaired by
Julian Foster with Geraldine O’Sullivan and Sandra Dinneen also as members. The
external and internal auditors regularly attend Committee meetings and directors and
senior managers also attend as required. The Chair of the Audit Committee meets
regularly and separately with the External Auditor and the Head of Internal Audit.
The Committee continuously reviews the structure and effectiveness of our internal
controls and risk management arrangements. It oversees an agreed programme of
external and internal audit and monitors progress to ensure that any remedial action is
taken by management in any areas of identified weakness.
The Trust’s external auditors, KPMG LLP, were appointed by the Council of Governors in
2016 and reappointed in 2021 following a formal tender process and in accordance with
recommendation from the Audit Committee. The fees for the external audit are set out in
note 6 of the financial statements.
Auditor Independence and Non-Audit Services
The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and considerations of avoiding conflicts of interests formed a specific
consideration taken into account in appointing the external auditors. The Trust has a
policy by which any non-audit services provided by the external auditor are approved.
During 2020/21 KPMG LLP have not been commissioned to provide any services to the
Trust in addition to undertaking the external audit of financial statements and any
assurance work on the Quality Report.
KPMG LLP is also the external auditor of Norfolk and Norwich Hospitals Charity of which
the NNUH Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee. The fees in respect of this
engagement in 2020/21 are set out in note 6 of the financial statements.
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The Chair of the Audit Committee confirms the independence of the external auditors to
the Council of Governors at its meeting where the Annual Report and Accounts are
presented and also reports any exceptional issues to the Governors during the course of
the year should this be necessary.
Statement on disclosure of information to auditors
The Executive and Non-Executive Directors who held office at the date of the approval of
the Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which KPMG LLP (the Trust’s external auditor) is not aware. They also
confirm that they each have taken all reasonable steps in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that KPMG LLP knows about that
information.
Code of Governance and associated disclosures
The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance is based on the principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code and has been in place in its revised form since 2014. The
Code requires certain disclosures to be made by Foundation Trusts and information is
included in this section to demonstrate compliance with the Code and its disclosure
requirements.
i)
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Directors:
x A section of the Annual Report above reports specifically on the Board of
Directors, its role and composition. It confirms that the Board considers all of the
current Non-executive Directors (NEDs), including the Chairman, to be
independent. Through a formal process, the composition of the Board was revised
during 2019/20 to increase the number of independent Non-Executive Directors,
thereby strengthening the independent majority on the Board.
x All appointments to the Board have been the result of open competition. The
Directors Report details the experience of members of the Board and includes
information about the standing Committees of the Board, the membership of those
Committees, and attendance at meetings.
x An NHS foundation trust’s board of directors is responsible for all aspects of the
operation and performance of the trust, and for its effective governance. This
includes setting the corporate strategy and organisational culture. All the powers
of the Foundation Trust can be exercised by the Board of Directors and the Board
has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision. Other
matters are delegated to the Executive Directors and other senior management.
x The Board of Directors is collectively responsible for taking actions which legally
bind the Trust. All members of the board of directors have collective responsibility
as a unitary board for every decision of the board. The Board of Directors meets
regularly and held eleven formal meetings in 2020/21.
x The Chairman of the Trust is Chairman of the Board of Directors and Council of
Governors and leads both groups on strategy and monitoring. As detailed above,
there is a clear distinction between the roles the Chairman and the Chief
Executive.
x Independent professional advice is available as required to the Board or its
standing committees and the Trust is a member of the national NHS risk-pooling
schemes which provide cover in respect of legal proceedings and other claims
against its Directors.
x Meetings of the Board of Directors are routinely open to the public. Governors are
encouraged to attend public Board meetings and arrangements are in place for
governors to report to the Council of Governors on Board meetings they have
attended.

x

x

ii)
x

x

x

iii)
x

x

x

x
x

x
x
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In line with national guidance on social distancing during the Covid 19 pandemic
we have needed to restrict physical access to meetings. To ensure as much
openness and transparency as possible however facilities to attend meetings by
video/teleconference have been made available and the papers from meetings of
the Board are made available via the Trust’s website.
In order to facilitate governor oversight of the role of the Non-Executive Directors,
the Board and Council have established a structure whereby designated governor
observers attend meetings of Board committees. This practice has been in place
since February 2019 and involves systematic reporting to the Council.
Governors:
The general duties of the Council of Governors are to represent the interests of the
Trust’s members as a whole and the interests of the public; and to hold the Nonexecutive Directors individually and collectively to account for the performance of
the Board of Directors.
The Council of Governors meets formally four times a year. Details of the
composition of the Council of Governors and attendance at meetings are
contained within the Council of Governors section of the Annual Report.
Meetings of the Council of Governors are routinely open to the public. In line with
national guidance on social distancing during the Covid 19 pandemic we have
needed to restrict physical access to meetings. To ensure as much openness and
transparency as possible however facilities to attend meetings by teleconference
have been made available and the papers from meetings of the Council are made
available via the Trust’s website.
Board Independence:
As detailed above, the Board considers that all the Non-executive Directors who
have served during the year are independent according to the principles of the
Code. This includes Professor Richardson who, as Vice-Chancellor of University of
East Anglia, is appointed to the Board to reflect the Trust’s status as a University
Hospital Trust hosting the Norwich Medical School.
Independence is kept under review and is based on whether each Director is
independent in character, judgement and behaviour. Also considered are factors
such as participation and performance on both the Board and Board Committees.
Non-Executive Directors (NEDS), including the Chairman, are not NHS employees
and do not contribute to the NHS pension scheme in their NED role. Nonexecutive Directors have confirmed their willingness to provide the necessary time
for their duties.
Appointment of the NEDS is made by the Council of Governors in accordance with
standard terms and conditions.
In addition to the process for maintaining the Register of Interests (detailed below)
every meeting of the Board and Board Committees starts with an item for
Declaration of Interests relating to any item scheduled for discussion or
consideration at the meeting.
The Chairman holds meetings with the Non-executive Directors without the
Executive
Directors being present. The Senior Independent Director (SID) also meets with
the other Non-executive Directors without the Chairman being present.

iv)

Policy for Raising Matters of Concern
Arrangements have been put in place by which the Trust’s employees may in
confidence raise matters of concern. These arrangements are covered in the
Trust’s Freedom to Speak-Up Policy commonly known as a “Whistle-blowing
Policy” and the Trust has appointed a full-time Freedom to Speak-Up Guardian.

v)

Board performance
The Board of Directors oversees performance through receipt and scrutiny of a
monthly Integrated Performance Report (IPR). The IPR includes standard quality
and safety metrics, details of operational performance against relevant national
targets and updates on workforce issues and the financial position. The action
being taken to reduce identified high level risks is also detailed. The IPR
incorporates issues and areas of note/concern highlighted by the Management
Board and governance sub-boards.
The meetings of the Board of Directors are managed to ensure that actions are
followed up and the Board’s reporting requirements are adhered to.
During the course of the year, the Board reviewed its capacity, and that of the
management team, to address the current and future challenges facing the Trust,
notably the ongoing work to strengthen financial governance and business
planning processes.
During 2020/21 the Board undertook a review of its performance including the
effectiveness and reporting of its Assurance Committees. This included a
questionnaire process co-ordinated by the Board Secretary. Following this review
the Board confirms the following in relation to its roles, structure and capacity:
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x

the Board is satisfied that its Directors are appropriately qualified to
discharge their functions;

x

the Board is satisfied as to its own balance, completeness and
appropriateness to the requirements of the Foundation Trust;

x

the Board’s Committee and governance structure is appropriate and its
progress and efficacy is regularly reviewed;

x

the Board considers that it has an appropriate balance of expertise and
experience and it has access to specialist advice, as required;

x

the Chair of the Audit Committee is a Non-Executive Director with recent and
relevant financial experience;

x

the Board maintains its Register of Interests which is publicly available on the
Trust’s website:
- Professor Richardson has declared his role as Vice-Chancellor of the
University of East Anglia;
- Dr Chrispin declared her role as Deputy Medical Director with East
Anglian Air Ambulance;
- Mr White declared his position as Trustee on the RG Carter Pension
Committee;
- Ms Dinneen declared her role as Strategic Project Advisor – Priscilla
Bacon Hospice Care Ltd;

-

Professor Fontaine declared her position as Patron of the Anne Robson
Trust; and
Professor Denton declared her position as Partner in Colney Radiology
Group LLP.

These Board members have accordingly taken no part in decision of matters
that related to the relationship between relevant parties and the Trust.
Otherwise the Board can confirm that there are no material conflicts of
interest on the Board;
The process for appraisal of Board members is that performance evaluation of the
executive directors is undertaken by the non-executive directors and Chief
Executive. The appraisal of NEDs is carried out by the Trust Chairman for report to
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors. The
appraisal of the Chairman is co-ordinated by the Senior Independent Director with
input from governors and directors.
NHS Improvement has issued guidance which encourages ‘all providers to carry
out externally facilitated, developmental reviews of their leadership and
governance using the well-led framework every three to five years”. The Board
last commissioned a review by PWC of Board Capacity, Capability and
Effectiveness (report November 2018). External assessment of the Trust against
the Well-led Framework was conducted by the CQC (report April 2020) resulting in
a rating in the Well-Led Domain of ‘requires improvement’. During 2020/21 the
Trust commissioned an external review of its Financial Governance from RSM,
which also provides internal Audit services to the Trust.
That Financial
Governance review reported in October 2020 and follow-up actions are overseen
by the Audit Committee, Finance, Investments and Performance Committee and
Trust Board.
vi)

Compliance Statement
The Trust has applied the principles of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of
Governance on a ‘comply or explain’ basis. The Board of Directors considers that
it complies with the main and supporting principles of the Code of Governance.
During 2020/21 the Audit Committee reviewed the Trust’s Organisational
Framework for Governance and compliance against the Code of Governance. In
relation to the more detailed provisions of the Code of Governance, the Trust is
compliant with the provisions, with the following exceptions:
A1.1 The Schedule of Matters Reserved for Decision of the Board is an appendix
to the Board’s Terms of Reference. It does not include a statement with regard to
the roles and responsibilities of the council of governors or resolution of any
potential conflict between the Council and Board. These matters are addressed
elsewhere in the Trust’s governance documents – specifically the Terms of
Reference for the Council of Governors, Standing Orders and the Trust’s
Constitution as approved by Monitor/NHSI when authorising the Foundation Trust.
A.5.12 The Trust issues on its website copies of papers for meetings of the Board
of Directors, including agendas and minutes. Papers for meetings of the Board
that are held in private for reasons of personal confidentiality, commercial
confidence or other reason are not circulated.
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D.2.3 Since November 2019 national guidance (“A remuneration structure for NHS
provider chairs and non-executive directors”) has been in place and applied by the
Council
of
Governors
https://improvement.nhs.uk/resources/remunerationstructure-nhs-provider-chairs-and-non-executive-directors
The
Council
of
Governors accordingly does not consult external professional advisers to market
test at least once every three years. See the Remuneration Report for more detail.
The following provisions require a supporting explanation, even in the case that the Trust
is compliant with the provision. Where the information is already contained within the
Annual Report, a reference to its location is provided to avoid additional unnecessary
duplication.
Table of supporting explanation for required disclosures:
Code of
Governance
reference
A.1.1

A.1.2
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Summary of requirement

Disclosure

There should be a schedule of matters specifically
reserved for its decision. The schedule of matters
reserved for the board of directors should include a
clear statement detailing the roles and responsibilities
of the council of governors. This statement should also
describe how any disagreements between the council
of governors and the board of directors will be resolved.

A formal and Boardapproved Schedule
of Matters Reserved
is in place.
See
Board
of
Directors
and
Council
of
Governors sections
for
details
on
respective roles and
decisions.

The annual report should include this schedule of
matters or a summary statement of how the board of
directors and the council of governors operate,
including a summary of the types of decisions to be
taken by each of the boards and which are delegated to
the executive management of the board of directors.
Detail
of
the
Council’s role and
mechanism
for
resolving
any
potential
conflict
between Board and
Council is detailed in
the Council terms of
Reference, Standing
Orders
and
the
Trust’s Constitution.
The annual report should identify the chairperson, the See Directors’
deputy chairperson (where there is one), the chief Report.
executive, the senior independent director (see A.4.1)
and the chairperson and members of the nominations,
audit and remuneration committees. It should also set
out the number of meetings of the board and those
committees and individual attendance by directors.

Code of
Governance
reference
A.5.3

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM
B.1.1

B.1.4

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM
B.2.10

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

B.3.1

B.5.6
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Summary of requirement

Disclosure

The annual report should identify the members of the
council of governors, including a description of the
constituency or organisation that they represent,
whether they were elected or appointed, and the
duration of their appointments. The annual report
should also identify the nominated lead governor.
The annual report should include a statement about the
number of meetings of the council of governors and
individual attendance by governors and directors.
The board of directors should identify in the annual
report each non-executive director it considers to be
independent, with reasons where necessary.
The board of directors should include in its annual
report a description of each director’s skills, expertise
and experience.

See
Council
of
Governors section.

Alongside this, in the annual report, the board should
make a clear statement about its own balance,
completeness and appropriateness to the requirements
of the NHS foundation trust.
The annual report should include a brief description of
the length of appointments of the non-executive
directors, and how they may be terminated.
A separate section of the annual report should describe
the work of the nominations committee(s), including the
process it has used in relation to board appointments.

See
Board
of
Directors section.

The disclosure in the annual report on the work of the
nominations committee should include an explanation if
neither an external search consultancy nor open
advertising has been used in the appointment of a chair
or non-executive director.
A chairperson’s other significant commitments should
be disclosed to the council of governors before
appointment and included in the annual report.
Changes to such commitments should be reported to
the council of governors as they arise, and included in
the next annual report.
Governors should canvass the opinion of the Trust’s
members and the public, and for appointed governors
the body they represent, on the NHS foundation trust’s
forward plan, including its objectives, priorities and
strategy, and their views should be communicated to
the board of directors.

See
Council
of
Governors section.
See
Report

Directors

See
Board
of
Directors section.

See
Board
Directors section

of

See section relating
to Nominations &
Remuneration
Committee.
N/A - open
advertisement for
Chairman and NonExecutive Directors.
See section relating
to Independence of
Non-Executive
Directors

See
Council
of
Governors
and
Foundation
Trust
Membership
sections

Code of
Governance
reference
Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

B.6.1

B.6.2

C.1.1

C.2.1

C.2.2

C.3.5
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Summary of requirement

Disclosure

If, during the financial year, the Governors have
exercised their power under paragraph 10C of schedule
7 of the NHS Act 2006, then information on this must be
included in the annual report.
* Power to require one or more of the directors to attend
a governors’ meeting for the purpose of obtaining
information about the foundation trust’s performance of
its functions or the directors’ performance of their duties
(and deciding whether to propose a vote on the
foundation trust’s or directors’ performance).
The board of directors should state in the annual report
how performance evaluation of the board, its
committees, and its directors, including the chairperson,
has been conducted.
Where there has been external evaluation of the board,
the external facilitator should be identified in the annual
report and a statement made as to whether they have
any other connection to the trust.

N/A
Governors have not
exercised this
power.

The directors should explain in the annual report their
responsibility for preparing the annual report and
accounts, and state that they consider the annual report
and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary
for patients, regulators and other stakeholders to
assess the NHS foundation trust’s performance,
business model and strategy. Directors should also
explain their approach to quality governance in the
Annual Governance Statement (within the annual
report).
The annual report should contain a statement that the
board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of its
system of internal controls.

A trust should disclose in the annual report:
(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is
structured and what role it performs; or
(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact
and the processes it employs for evaluating and
continually improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control processes.
If the council of governors does not accept the audit
committee’s recommendation on the appointment,
reappointment or removal of an external auditor, the
board of directors should include in the annual report a
statement from the audit committee explaining the
recommendation and should set out reasons why the

See section on
Board Performance.

N/A
External review
conducted in
2018/19. See Board
Performance section
for further detail.
See Director’s
Report and Annual
Governance
Statement.

See
Committee
and
Governance
Statement.
See
Committee
and
Governance
Statement

Audit
section
Annual

Audit
section
Annual

N/A
Council
of
Governors
appointed
new
External
Auditor
from 2020/21 audit

Code of
Governance
reference

C.3.9

D.1.3

E.1.5

E.1.6

E.1.4

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM
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Summary of requirement

Disclosure

council of governors has taken a different position.

as recommended

A separate section of the annual report should describe
the work of the audit committee in discharging its
responsibilities. The report should include:
• the significant issues that the committee considered in
relation to financial statements, operations and
compliance, and how these issues were addressed;
• an explanation of how it has assessed the
effectiveness of the external audit process and the
approach taken to the appointment or re-appointment of
the external auditor, the value of external audit services
and information on the length of tenure of the current
audit firm and when a tender was last conducted; and
• if the external auditor provides non-audit services, the
value of the non-audit services provided and an
explanation of how auditor objectivity and
independence are safeguarded.
Where an NHS foundation trust releases an executive
director, for example to serve as a non-executive
director elsewhere, the remuneration disclosures of the
annual report should include a statement of whether or
not the director will retain such earnings.
The board of directors should state in the annual report
the steps they have taken to ensure that the members
of the board, and in particular the non-executive
directors, develop an understanding of the views of
governors and members about the NHS foundation
trust, for example through attendance at meetings of
the council of governors, direct face-to-face contact,
surveys of members’ opinions and consultations.
The board of directors should monitor how
representative the NHS foundation trust's membership
is and the level and effectiveness of member
engagement and report on this in the annual report.
Contact procedures for members who wish to
communicate with governors and/or directors should be
made clearly available to members on the NHS
foundation trust's website and in the annual report.
The annual report should include:
• a brief description of the eligibility requirements for
joining different membership constituencies, including
the boundaries for public membership;
• information on the number of members and the
number of members in each constituency; and

See Audit
Committee Section

N/A
No Director was
released in 2020/21.

See
Council
of
Governors section.

See
Foundation
Trust
Membership
section.
See
Foundation
Trust
Membership
section.
See
Foundation
Trust
Membership
section.

Code of
Governance
reference

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Summary of requirement
• a summary of the membership strategy, an
assessment of the membership and a description of
any steps taken during the year to ensure a
representative membership [see also E.1.6 above],
including progress towards any recruitment targets for
members.
The annual report should disclose details of company
directorships or other material interests in companies
held by governors and/or directors where those
companies or related parties are likely to do business,
or are possibly seeking to do business, with the NHS
foundation trust.
As each NHS foundation trust must have registers of
governors’ and directors’ interests which are available
to the public, an alternative disclosure is for the annual
report to simply state how members of the public can
gain access to the registers instead of listing all the
interests in the annual report.'

Disclosure

Registers of Interest
declared
by
Directors
and
Governors
are
maintained
in
accordance with a
Standard Operating
Procedure approved
by
the
Audit
Committee and are
publicly available on
the Trust’s website.

Main Activities of the Audit Committee during the Year Ended 31 March 2021
The Audit Committee met on 4 occasions during the year ended 31 March 2021. The
focus of the Committee was on:
x
x
x
x
x

governance, risk management and internal control;
internal audit;
external audit;
other assurance functions;
financial reporting.

During the course of the year the Audit Committee received audit reports from the internal
auditors, RSM, in accordance with an agreed Audit Plan and including regular reports on
follow-up of recommendations from previous audits. The Audit Plan for 2020/21 included
audits relating to Business Continuity Planning, Workforce Policies, Emergency
Department Standard Operating Procedures, Bank and Agency Usage, Payroll, Risk
Management, Complaints, Accounts Payable, MI and Reporting, Consultant Job Planning,
Data Security and Protection Toolkit, Financial Governance Review Follow-up and Deep
Dive into Waiting List Initiative Processes.
The Committee received regular reports from the Local Counter Fraud Service including
reviews with regard to processes in place to identify and manage risks associated with
fraud. The Committee has also reviewed plans for strengthening systems for risk
management in the Trust.
The Financial Accounts of the Trust for 2019/20 were reviewed by the Auditors and
presented to the Committee in May 2020. In accordance with the established annual
cycle, financial performance for 2020/21 is subject to external audit review during April
and May 2021, for review of the Accounts by the Committee in May 2021.
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Nominations and Remuneration Committee:
The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has a membership consisting of
Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive. It is Chaired by David White. The other
members of the Committee are Geraldine O’Sullivan, Julian Foster, Pam Chrispin, Joanna
Hannam, Sandra Dinneen, David Richardson, Tom Spink and Sam Higginson. The
Secretary to the Committee is the Board Secretary.
The Committee has duties and responsibilities that are detailed in agreed Terms of
Reference, reflecting the provisions of the FT Code of Governance. It meets as required
and no less than twice a year. During 2020/21 the Committee has met on 4 occasions. In
accordance with its Terms of Reference, the Committee reviews the size, structure and
composition of the Board of Directors and makes recommendations to the Council of
Governors with regard to the recruitment of Non-Executive Directors.
In the case of Executive Director vacancies, the Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable candidates to fill vacancies as they arise. During the period of this report the
Committee oversaw the process for substantive recruitment of Mr Sam Higginson as Chief
Executive. In each case these appointments were achieved with the assistance of
recruitment agents, following a national recruitment search and following an open and
competitive recruitment process.
The Committee considers levels of remuneration for executive directors and other senior
posts that come within the Committee’s remit, by reference to other organisations and
NHS Foundation Trusts in particular.
During 2020/21, following consideration of national NHS pay-awards, the Committee
reviewed and approved revision to remuneration for the executive directors, as reported in
the Remuneration Report.
In the case of Non-Executive Director vacancies, the Committee is responsible for
advising the Council of Governors on the relevant qualities and attributes required to
supplement those already on the Board. The Committee has reviewed the schedule of
Non-Executive terms of office and has made appropriate recommendation to the
Governors accordingly.
Quality and Safety Committee:
The role of the Quality and Safety Committee of the Board is to provide additional capacity
for Non-Executive led scrutiny and assurance to the Board concerning quality and safety
matters. The Committee has a membership of 6 Board members, including three NonExecutive Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Nurse and Medical Director. The Committee
met on 10 occasions during 2020/21.
The Committee has an agreed annual cycle of business and a Work Programme of
reports to be received at future meetings. During 2020/21 the work of the Committee has
obviously been influenced by the pandemic, and it’s reporting schedule has reflected
Covid-related risks and priorities. Due to pandemic precautions, all meetings of the
Committee have been held remotely and the programme of pre-meeting clinical visits had
to be suspended. The Committee has focused on quality and safety related issues arising
from operational pressure and disruption caused by the pandemic. The Committee has
also scrutinised risks identified through our risk management process, notably those
relating to prolonged waiting times and our mobilisation as a regional Covid surge centre.

70

Matters considered by the Committee during 2020/21 have included the operation of the
Trust’s clinical governance systems and processes, including our procedures for learning
from incidents and examining mortality rates. The Committee has also received regular
updates concerning the Clinical Quality Impact Assessment (QIA) process which is used
in the Trust to protect quality and safety whilst making financial savings and productivity
improvements.
During 2020/21 the Committee has also overseen the development of strategic initiatives
to promote quality and safety in clinical care notably in the fields of mental health,
maternity, research, and dementia care.
Finance, Investments and Performance Committee:
The role of the Finance, Investments and Performance Committee of the Board is to
provide additional capacity for Non-Executive led scrutiny and assurance to the Board
concerning the Trust’s financial position, capital schemes and delivery of contractual
standards. The Committee has a membership including three Non-Executive Directors,
Chief Executive, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Chief People Officer,
Director of Strategy Chief Information Officer and Chief Nurse.
This year the Committee has received regular reports on the rapid work undertaken on the
Trust’s estate to accommodate the urgent changes necessitated by our pandemic
response. The Committee has also sought to support and obtain assurance with regard
to other areas of Trust activity and achievement of broader Strategic Objectives, where
possible. This has involved particular focus on operational performance, Use of
Resources, cost improvement plans, operational and financial planning and actions in
response to the Financial Governance Review. The Committee has considered the
analysis of the Drivers of the Trust’s Deficit and its Draft Financial Strategy. Increasingly
reports to the Committee have concerned the Trust’s response to growing waiting lists of
patients whose treatment has been delayed by the pandemic.
People and Culture Committee
The People and Culture Committee of the Board was established in October 2018 to
provide assurance to the Board that the Trust has appropriate and effective strategies and
plans in place relating to workforce, education, organisational development and culture.
The Membership of the Committee includes three Non–Executive Directors, Chief
Executive, Chief People Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Nurse, Medical Director
and the Chiefs of Division.
Matters considered by the People and Culture Committee during 2020/21 have included:
Freedom to Speak-Up; Staff Survey Actions; PHE Report - disparities in risks and
outcomes of Covid-19 for BAME staff; Covid-19 Workforce Restoration; Leadership
Strategy; Workforce CIP programme; Equality, Diversity and Inclusivity; Medical
Engagement Survey; Flu Vaccination Campaign; National People Plan; Corporate Risk
Register; Internal Audit Reports and Gender Pay Gap Report.
Attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors
The Board meets in public bi-monthly and otherwise as required and in accordance with
Standing Orders.
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1 April 2020

29 April 2020

27 May 2020

3 June 2020

24 June
2020

5 August
2020

7 October
2020

4 November
2020

2 December
2020

3 February
2021

3 March
2021

During this year the Board of Directors met on 11 occasions. Attendance at meetings of
the Board and its Committees was as shown below:

Mr David White

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Dr Pamela Chrispin

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr Roy Clarke

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr Chris Cobb

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Prof Erika Denton

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Ms Sandra Dinneen

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Prof Nancy Fontaine

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr Julian Foster

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mrs Joanna Hannam

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr Samuel Higginson

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr Tim How

9

9

X

Mr Paul Jones

9

9

X

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

Dr Geraldine O’Sullivan

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

X

9

9

9

Prof David Richardson

9

9

9

9

9

X

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

1

2

Mr Tom Spink

3

1

Mr Clarke was appointed as Chief Finance Officer in April 2020.
Tim How stood down as Non-Executive Director in May 2020.
3
Tom Spink was appointed as Non-Executive Director in June 2020.
2

Attendance at meetings of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets quarterly and met on 4 occasions during the year.
27 May
2020

30 Sept
2020

18 Nov
2020

31 Mar
2021

Mr Julian Foster (Chair)

9

9

9

9

Ms Sandra Dinneen

9

9

9

9

Dr Geraldine O’Sullivan
(Non-Executive Director)

9

9

9

9

Members
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Nominations & Remuneration Committee
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee meets routinely twice a year and
otherwise as required. The Committee met on 4 occasions during the year.
Members
Mr David White (Chairman
and Chair of Committee)
Dr Pamela Chrispin (NonExecutive Director)
Ms Sandra Dinneen (NonExecutive Director)
Mr Julian Foster (NonExecutive Director)
Mrs Joanna Hannam (NonExecutive Director)
Mr Samuel Higginson (Chief
Executive)
Mr Tim How (Non-Executive
Director)1
Dr Geraldine O’Sullivan
(Non-Executive Director)
Professor David Richardson
(Non-Executive Director)
Mr Tom Spink (NonExecutive Director)2
1
2

1 April
2020

24 June
2020

5 August
2020

4 November
2020

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

X

9

9

9

9

9

X

9

9

X

X

9

9

9

9

Tim How stood down as Non-Executive Director in May 2020
Tom Spink was appointed as Non-Executive Director in June 2020
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16 June 2020

28 July 2020

29 September
2020

27 October 2020

24 November
2020

26 January 2021

23 February 2021

30 March 2021

Dr Geraldine O’Sullivan
(Chair of Committee and
Non-Executive Director)
Dr Pamela Chrispin
(Non-Executive Director)
Prof Erika Denton
(Medical Director)
Prof Nancy Fontaine
(Chief Nurse)
Mrs Joanna Hannam
(Non-Executive Director)
Mr Sam Higginson (Chief
Executive)

26 May 2020

Member

21 April 2020

Quality and Safety Committee – meeting and attendance
The Quality and Safety Committee met on 10 occasions during 2020/21.
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9
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9

X

9

9

9

9

9

9

Finance, Investments and Performance Committee – meeting and attendance
The Finance, Investments and Performance Committee met on 12 occasions during the
year as follows:

1

29 July 2020

30 September 2020

28 October 2020

25 November 2020

27 January 2021

24 February 2021

22 March 2021

31 March 2021

9

20 July 2020

9

17 June 2020

27 May 2020

Mr Tim How (Chair of Committee
and Non-Executive Director)1
Mr Tom Spink (Chair of
Committee and Non-Executive
Director)2
Dr Pamela Chrispin (NonExecutive Director)
Mr Roy Clarke (Chief Finance
Officer)
Mr Chris Cobb (Chief Operating
Officer)
Mrs Sandra Dinneen (NonExecutive Director)
Prof Nancy Fontaine (Chief
Nurse)
Mr Julian Foster (Non-Executive
Director)
Mr Simon Hackwell (Director of
Strategy)
Mr Sam Higginson (Chief
Executive)
Mr Paul Jones (Chief People
Officer)
Mr Anthony Lundrigan (Chief
Information Officer)3

22 April 2020

Member
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9
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9

9

9
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9
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X
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9
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X
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X
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9

9

9

9

9

9

Mr How stood down as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Committee in May 2020.
Mr Spink was appointed as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Committee in June
2020.
3
Mr Lundrigan joined as a member of the Committee in June 2020.
2
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People and Culture Committee – meeting and attendance
The People and Culture Committee met 6 times during 2020/21. Attendance was as
follows:

Board members
Prof David
Richardson (Chair
and Non-Executive
Director)
Chris Cobb (Chief
Operating Officer)
Prof Erika Denton
(Medical Director)
Sandra Dinneen
(Non-Executive
Director)
Prof Nancy Fontaine
(Chief Nurse)
Joanna Hannam
(Non-Executive
Director)
Sam Higginson (Chief
Executive)
Tim How (NonExecutive Director)
Paul Jones (Chief
People Officer)
Divisional members
Dr Richard Goodwin
(CoD - Clinical
Support Services)
Dr Tim Gilbert (CoD –
Medicine and
Emergency Services)
Dr Caroline Kavanagh
(AMD - Emergency
and Urgent Care)
Dr Tim Leary (CoD Surgery)
Jo Nieto (CoD Women and Children)
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28.05.20

18.06.20

24.07.20

26.10.20

25.01.21

29.03.21
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X
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X
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X
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X
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X

X

X

X

X

X

£6.5m children’s theatres to be built at NNUH

Building work begins in February 2021 on a £6.5m dedicated children’s theatre
complex.
Due to be completed over two phases, in phase one we will provide a twin
paediatric theatre suite, a six-bay recovery unit, as well as associated supporting
facilities. The unit will also be fitted out with new clinical equipment to
contemporary standards. Combined with the new facilities this will create a high
standard of children’s surgical capacity to meet the needs of NNUH younger
patients, both now, and well into the future.
Next week early works will be carried out to prepare the site for development
starting with cordoning off the area. Demolition and site clearance work will begin
the following week commencing Monday 15 February.
The complex will help meet increasing demand on services and deliver an
improved experience to patients and carers, including a reduction in waiting times.
It will also improve staff experience by enabling them to offer new services in a
purpose-built environment for children, which will serve the Norfolk and Waveney
community well into the future.
Construction of the twin-theatre development is phase one of a two-phased
ambition to deliver a three-theatre complex, with associated recovery and a
Children’s Day Procedure Unit (DPU).
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Council of Governors
The Council of Governors is chaired by David White who, as Chairman of the Trust, acts
as a link between the Council and Board of Directors. Directors regularly attend meetings
of the Council of Governors and feedback from the Council is a standing agenda item on
meetings of the Board of Directors so that the Board is informed of the views of our
Members as represented by the Governors.
The Council of Governors is responsible for representing the interests of Foundation Trust
members and partner organisations in the governance of the Trust. The Council receives
regular reports from the Chief Executive and other Board members on relevant
operational and strategic matters. The Council of Governors has a number of specified
statutory responsibilities which it has satisfied during the course of the year. In particular
the Council has:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

received the Trust's Annual Report and Accounts;
expressed views for consideration by the Directors in preparing the Trust’s strategic
plans;
appointed the external auditors;
confirmed the substantive appointment of the Chief Executive Sam Higginson;
reappointed Non-Executive Director Professor David Richardson;
reviewed remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors and recommended no change
and review of the position in 2021;
confirmed the appointment of Mr Tom Spink as Non-Executive Director.

The term of office for Governors is three years and the appointment of both staff and
public Governors is by election by the members. Elections are held on an annual basis to
fill any vacancies on the Council. These elections are administered on our behalf by an
independent organisation (Mi-Voice) and in accordance with the election rules set out in
our Constitution. We promote elections through mailings to members, media coverage
and through the Trust’s social media channels. The Trust receives a good level of interest
from the local community and staff in filling these vacancies and they are usually
contested. As at March 2021 the Governors were:
Public Governors
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
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Erica Betts
Jane Bevington
Peter Bush
Diane DeBell
Nina Duddleston
Carol Edwards
Ines Grote
Jackie Hammond
Peter Harrison
Chris Hind
Mary Pandya
Shirley Ricketts
Matthew Roe
Joy Stanley
Joanna Tuttle

Breckland
Norwich
Norwich
Norwich
Breckland
North Norfolk
Great Yarmouth and Waveney
Broadland
South Norfolk
South Norfolk
Rest of England
Broadland
North Norfolk
Breckland
Broadland

Staff Governors
x
x
x
x
x
x

Leanne Miller
Katie Cullum
Terry Davies
Clare Stubbs
Richard Smith
Annie Cook

Clinical Support
Nursing and Midwifery
Contractors and Volunteers
Nursing and Midwifery
Medical and Dental
Admin and Clerical

Partner Governors
x
x
x

Tracy Williams
Alison Thomas
Mark Hitchcock

Norwich Clinical Commissioning Group
Norfolk County Council
University of East Anglia

Changes during the year:
The following Governors left the Council of Governors in 2020/21:
x
x
x
x
x
x

Rob Boyce
Sheila Ginty
Shelagh Gurney
John Nolan
John Rees
Jane Scarfe

Clinical Support
Nursing and Midwifery
Norfolk County Council
Medical and Dental
Broadland
South Norfolk

A copy of the Register of Interests declared by the Governors can be found on our
website at www.nnuh.nhs.uk.
Performance of the Council of Governors and its Committee
During the year, the Governors have been regularly briefed on a wide range of matters
affecting the Trust including:
x
x
x
x

x
x

the management of services in the light of the Covid-19 pandemic;
the plan to refresh the Trust’s strategy in 2021, working with the public, governors,
and staff;
joint working with the Norfolk and Waveney STP and the move towards greater
collaboration with partners;
major developments on the hospital sites, such as the new ward block, the new
interventional radiology unit, and the replacement of imaging and radiotherapy
equipment;
our performance against national standards;
the Staff Survey and Action Plan.

Governor representatives observe our Board Assurance Committees to inform them
regarding the work of the Non-Executive Directors.
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2 April 2020

14 May 2020

30 July 2020

29 October 2020

4 February 2021

Attendance at formal meetings of the Council of Governors
The Council of Governors held four scheduled formal meetings in 2020/21. Attendance at
Council meetings was as set out below:

1

Mrs Erica Betts

9

9

9

9

9

2

Mrs Jane Bevington

9

9

9

9

9

3

Mr Rob Boyce

X

X

9

X

4

Mr Peter Bush

9

9

9

9

9

5

Ms Annie Cook

9

9

9

9

9

6

Mrs Katie Cullum

X

X

9

9

9

7

Mr Terry Davies

X

X

9

9

9

8

Prof Diane DeBell

9

9

9

9

9

9

Mrs Nina Duddleston

X

9

X

9

9

10

Mrs Carol Edwards

9

X

9

9

9

11

Miss Sheila Ginty

9

9

12

Mrs Ines Grote

9

X

X

9

9

13

Cllr Shelagh Gurney

X

X

X

X

X

14

Mrs Jackie Hammond

9

9

9

9

9

15

Dr Peter Harrison

9

9

9

9

9

16

Mr Chris Hind

17

Mr Mark Hitchcock

18

Ms Leanne Miller
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1

2

3

4

9

5

9

9

9

9

9
9

6

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

9

19

Mr John Nolan

20

Mrs Mary Pandya

21

Dr John Rees

22

Mrs Shirley Ricketts

23

Mr Matthew Roe

9

9

9

9

24

Ms Jane Scarfe

9

9

9

9

9

25

Mr Richard Smith

26

Mrs Joy Stanley

27

Ms Clare Stubbs

28

Miss Penny Sutton

29

Cllr Alison Thomas

30
31

7

X

8

9

9

10

9

X

X

9

9

9

9

X

11

9
12

9

9

9

9

Mrs Joanna Tuttle

9

X

9

9

9

Ms Tracy Williams

X

9

9

9

X

13

1

Mr Rob Boyce stood down Autumn 2020
Miss Sheila Ginty stood down in July 2020
3
Cllr Shelagh Gurney stood down in February 2021
4
Mr Chris Hind was elected Autumn 2020
5
Ms Leanne Miller was elected Autumn 2020
6
Mr John Nolan stood down in October 2020
7
Dr John Rees stood down in July 2020
8
Mrs Shirley Ricketts was elected Autumn 2020
9
Ms Jane Scarfe stood down in Autumn 2020
10
Mr Richard Smith was elected in October 2020
11
Ms Clare Stubbs was elected Autumn 2020
12
Miss Penny Sutton stood down Autumn 2020
13
Cllr Alison Thomas was appointed in February 2021
2

Lead Governor
In accordance with the Foundation Trust Code of Governance, the Council of Governors
has nominated one of its members to act as Lead Governor with particular responsibility
for providing a channel of communication between the Council and NHSI in appropriate
circumstances. Until November 2021 Public Governor Jane Scarfe was the nominated
Lead Governor with Terry Davies, Staff Governor, as Deputy Lead Governor. Following
Jane’s departure from the Council, Erica Betts was selected by Council members as Lead
Governor.
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Appointments and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors
In accordance with Statute, the Council has an Appointments and Remuneration
Committee. The work of the Committee is supported by the Board Secretary. As at
March 2021, Membership of the Committee is:
x
x
x
x
x

Mr David White (Chair)
Mr Terry Davies (Staff Governor)
Mrs Carol Edwards (Public Governor)
Mrs Erica Betts (Public Governor)
Mr Mark Hitchcock (Partner Governor – UEA)

The Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Council of Governors
with respect to the appointment or reappointment of Non-Executive Directors. This year
the Committee has made recommendations regarding the appointment/re-appointment of
Tom Spink and David Richardson as Non-Executive Directors.
The Committee is also responsible for overseeing the remuneration of our non-executive
directors and making any recommendations for change to the Council. In 2020/21 the
Committee reviewed the remuneration of the non-executive directors, in light of national
guidance issued in September 2019, and have made recommended no change.
Governor development
Two Working Group meetings took place in August and September and both were well
attended.
Discussion focused on connections with the Non-Executive Directors,
particularly when meetings are being held remotely during the Covid pandemic
restrictions, plus the arrangements for governors to communicate and engage with
Members.
Non- Executive Directors attend formal Council meetings on a rotational basis, to allow
discussion on key areas and on the Board Assurance Committees with which they are
associated.
The role of governors is to be highlighted in the Trust’s Pulse magazine and to raise
awareness of how to raise issues with the governors. A new Member Newsletter is also
being developed to improve communication between governors and individual
constituencies. Two training sessions for Governors have been arranged with NHS
Providers.
Governor expenses
The Governor role is unpaid. When the Council of Governors was established it was
agreed that governors were entitled to claim travel expenses for attending meetings. As
meetings have been held virtually on MS Teams during 20/21, there have been no
governor expenses. For comparison, in 2019/20 there were 16 governors and seven
governors claimed £1,356.02
Our Membership
We have three membership constituencies: Public, Staff and Partners:
x
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The Public Constituency - consists of people over the age of 16 and it includes
patients and their carers, as well as the general public. Most are resident within the
Local Authority catchment areas of Norfolk and Waveney, although our constituency of
‘Rest of England’ caters for those living outside this area and reflects the broader
catchment area of the Trust’s specialist services and the wider range of people with
an interest in the Trust;

x

The Staff Constituency – includes employees who have worked for the Trust for at
least 12 months. This constituency also includes our volunteers and employees of
contractors who work with us, as specified in our Constitution;

x

Our Partners are represented by Governors drawn from the Clinical Commissioning
Groups, local government and our partner University (the University of East Anglia).

The membership has grown since we achieved Foundation Trust status and an annual
recruitment campaign maintains the public membership above the 15,000 target minimum
set by the Council of Governors. By the end of March 2021 we had 16,476 Public
Members.
We have a Membership Strategy. We normally conduct an annual face-to-face
recruitment campaign in local libraries and we were unable to carry out this task in 2020
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. This has led to a small dip in our membership
numbers which we hope to make up during 2021.
Here is our public membership over the last six years.
Year

Public members

2014/15

16,937

2016/17

16,499

2017/18

17,567

2018/19

17,143

2019/20

17,225

2020/21

16,476

Our staff membership stands at 8,844, making a total of 25,320 members in total.
Communicating and involving our members
We have a programme of internal communication and engagement with staff members
which includes a weekly electronic newsletter, staff intranet, in-house magazine (The
Pulse), focus groups, surveys and meetings. More detail is given in the Staff Matters
section of this annual report.
Public members receive our quarterly magazine, The Pulse. Prior to the Covid-19
pandemic, this publication was used to publicise events throughout the year, such as
lectures, the Annual General Meeting and participation in the Patient Choice Staff Award.
For 2020/21, we have held virtual events with our AGM and staff awards held online. The
AGM event was consisted of a recorded video event and a live section where people
could ask questions of the senior management team and Chairman. Prior to the event,
the public were encouraged to vote for their choice of topic in an online poll.
The video talks were about the work of the critical care unit, improvements to palliative
care, plus a review of the year including the Trust’s finances. The event also included the
Inspiration Awards from the Norfolk & Norwich Hospitals Charity which recognised the
support from the local community. The awards were pre-recorded with clips from the
award winners as part of the AGM presentation.
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Governors receive a number of briefings throughout the year, in addition to a regular
programme of Q&A sessions with the Chairman, Chief Executive and other directors.
These meetings are in addition to the formal meetings and provide opportunity for more
detailed discussion about the Trust’s services and plans.
Governors have not been able to come on the hospital site during the last year because of
the risk posed by Covid-19. All meetings have been online and the judging the Trust’s
staff awards was also conducted as an online meeting this year.
The following is a summary of the events which have involved members and governors:
x
x
x

Five governors have helped with judging the staff awards.
The AGM took place on 7 October 2020.
An induction event took place for new governors on 15 December 2021.

Members can contact the Membership Office by telephone on 01603 287634 or through
the website or by e-mail at membership@nnuh.nhs.uk
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Statements
Principle for cost allocation
The Trust is compliant with the cost allocation and charging guidance issued by HM
Treasury.
Political and charitable donations
No political or charitable donations have been made by the Trust in 2020/21 financial year
or previous year.
Income disclosures required by Section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006
During 2020/21 income from the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the
health service in England was greater than the income from the provision of goods and
services for any other purposes. Accordingly, the requirement of the Act has been
met. Health service income amounted to £668.2m of the total income of £670.5m
(2019/20 £668.2m of the total income of £670.5m).
Significant events since the Statement of Financial Position date
There have been no significant events since the Statement of Financial Position date that
require disclosure.
Statement from Directors
The Directors consider the annual report and accounts taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for stakeholders to assess
the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance, business model and strategy.
Accounts and Statement of the responsibility of the Accounting Officer
The accounts for the year ended 31/03/2021 can be found at the back of this annual
report. The statement of the responsibility of the accounting officer is on page 122.
Related party transactions
During the year none of the Board members, Governors or members of the key
management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any material transactions
with the NHS Foundation trust. Further details on related parties can be found in note 29
to the accounts.
Better payment practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
Year ended 31 March
2021

Year ended 31 March 2020

Number

£'000

Number

£'000

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year

119,094

336,310

156,436

325,811

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

109,603

303,404

104,851

252,084

92%

90%

67%

77%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year

3,546

72,271

3,449

48,177

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target

2,523

59,526

1,886

18,585

71%

82%

55%

39%

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid
within target

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within
Target

Interest paid under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
Disclosures relating to any interest paid can be found in note 11.2 to the accounts.
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Signed by Chair of Remuneration Committee on 1 June 202

Chairman – David White

No substantial changes to senior managers’ remuneration were made during 2020/21, other than the uplift outlined above.

Any substantial changes relating to senior managers remuneration made during the year

Senior managers are employed on contracts of service and are substantive employees of the Trust. Their contracts are open ended employment contracts
which can be terminated by either party with six months’ notice. The Trust’s normal disciplinary policies apply to senior managers, including the sanction of
summary dismissal without notice for gross misconduct. The Trust’s redundancy policy is consistent with NHS redundancy terms for all staff.

The Trust’s strategy and business planning process sets key business objectives which in turn inform individual objectives for senior managers. Performance is
closely monitored and discussed through both an annual and ongoing appraisal process.

The only non-cash element of senior managers’ remuneration packages are pension related benefits accrued under the NHS Pensions Scheme. Contributions
are made by both the employer and employee in accordance with the rules of the national scheme which applies to all NHS staff in the scheme.

Remuneration for the Trust’s most senior managers (Executive Directors who are members of the Board of Directors) is determined by the Board of Director’s
Nominations and Remuneration Committee. The Nominations and Remuneration Committee determined that Trust staff on the VSM pay scale should receive a
cost of living pay award of 1.67% to basic pay, backdated to April 2020, matching the increase applied to non-medical contracts across the NHS. The Chief
Executive received an uplift in salary, following substantive appointment, backdated to 1st May 2020 (this incorporated any pay award which may have been
due for 2020/21). The Medical Director in addition to her managerial duties also maintains a clinical practice and received the Medical & Dental pay award of
2.8% from 1st April 2020. The Medical Director is also entitled under the consultant contract for a Clinical Excellence Award (CEA) in 2020/21.

Major decisions on senior managers’ remuneration

Annual Report on remuneration

Remuneration report

All senior
managers

All senior
managers

Medical
Director
only

Basic salary

Pension

Clinical
Excellence
Award Scheme

Determined by Local Awards
Committee in accordance
with medical and dental
employment contract; not
awarded by Nominations and
Remuneration Committee

Terms of membership as
specified by the NHS
Pension Scheme
administered by the NHS
Pensions Agency

Nominations and
Remuneration Committee

Jurisdiction

Awards are determined by the Local Awards Committee in
accordance with an agreed scheme that recognises clinical
excellence across 5 domains. Analysis of the scheme
demonstrates a linkage to the Trust’s strategic objectives
including the leadership and delivery of clinical services,
teaching, training and research.

N/A

Recommendations in respect of basic salary are made to the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee by the Chief
Executive (for executive directors) and the Chairman (for the
Chief Executive) on the basis of assessment of performance
at annual appraisal, and specifically achievement of agreed
personal objectives that reflect the long and short term
objectives of the Trust

Relevance to Trust’s long and short term objectives

Level 9 award is the maximum
that can be awarded locally.

Determined by the NHS
Pensions Agency

Any increases are agreed with
reference to external
benchmarks and advice as
required

Amount payable
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(1) There have been no additions or changes to the components of the remuneration package during 2020/21
(2) There are no significant differences between the remuneration policy for senior managers and the general policy for employees’ remuneration
(3) The remuneration policy does not include provision for performance-related bonuses or other such schemes

Accompanying notes:

Applicable
to

Remuneration
component

The table below summarises each of the components of the remuneration package for senior managers which comprise the senior managers’ remuneration
policy.

Future Policy

Senior Managers’ remuneration policy
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Executive Directors:
S Higginson, Chief Executive (Appointed 21 October 2019)
CM Cobb, Chief Operating Officer
ERE Denton, Medical Director
NVC Fontaine, Chief Nurse
PD Jones, Chief People Officer (Appointed 10 June 2019)
R Clarke, Chief Finance Officer (Appointed 1 April 2020)
Non-Executive Directors:
DR White, Chairman (Appointed 10 June 2019)
GH O'Sullivan, Non-Executive Director
D Richardson, Non-Executive Director
JA Foster, Non-Executive Director (Appointed 1 June 2019)
P Chrispin, Non-Executive Director (Appointed 1 January 2020)
S Dinneen, Non-Executive Director (Appointed 1 January 2020)
JM Hannam, Non-Executive Director (Appointed 1 January 2020)
TI Spink, Non-Executive Director (Appointed 1 June 2020)
T How, Non-Executive Director (Until 31 May 2020)

Name & Title
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing
31/05/2022
31/10/2022
31/08/2021
31/05/2022
31/12/2022
31/12/2022
31/12/2022
31/05/2023
31/05/2020

10/06/2019
01/11/2016
01/09/2014
01/06/2019
01/01/2020
01/01/2020
01/01/2020
01/06/2020
01/08/2013

End Date

21/10/2019
17/04/2019
01/07/2018
01/08/2018
10/06/2019
01/04/2020

Date of
Commencement

14 Months
19 Months
5 Months
14 Months
21 Months
21 Months
21 Months
26 Months
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Unexpired
Term

3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months
3 Months

6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months

Notice Period

The table below summarises, for each senior manager (Directors who are members of the Board of Directors) who has served during the year, the date of their
service contract, the unexpired term and details of the notice period.

Service Contracts

Annual Report on remuneration
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The Governor role is unpaid. When the Council of Governors was established it was agreed that governors were entitled to claim travel expenses for attending
meetings. In 2020/21 there were 16 governors and there were no claims for expenses (in 2019/20 there were 16 governors and seven governors claimed
£1,356.02).

No significant awards were made to past Directors during the 12 months ended 31 March 2021.

Disclosures required by the Health and Social Care Act
There was a total of 6 Executive Directors in office during the year and 9 Non – Executive Directors, including the Chairman. In aggregate the Directors
received reimbursement of expenses of £6,176 with claims from 3 directors. In 2019/20, 20 directors had been in office, being 8 executive directors and 12 nonexecutive directors. In aggregate they received reimbursement of expenses of £6,333 with claims from 7 directors.

The remuneration and expenses for the Trust Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Council of Governors informed by information
issued by organisations such as NHS Providers.

Where an individual’s remuneration is above the level of £150,000 per annum pro rata the Remuneration Committee’s policy and practice will be in line with the
requirements issued by the Cabinet Office.

The Committee met four times during 2020/21, on 1 April, 24 June, 5 August and 4 November 2020. The meetings were quorate. The work of the Committee
included consideration of NHS pay awards and agreed a cost of living pay award of 1.67% to basic pay for Trust staff on the VSM pay scale. This was in line
with the national 1.67% pay award for staff on Agenda for Change pay scales.

The Committee meets as required, and at least once a year. In accordance with Monitor's Code of Governance for Foundation Trusts, the role and policy of the
Committee is to monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior managers, having considered comparative salary levels in other organisations and
NHS Foundation Trusts in particular.

Nominations and Remuneration Committee
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman of the Trust, at least three other non-executive directors and the Chief Executive.
During 2020/21 the membership comprised the Chairman of the Trust, (Chair of the Committee) and all of the other Non-Executive Directors and the Chief
Executive (Sam Higginson).

The Trust’s normal disciplinary policies apply to senior managers. The Trust’s redundancy policy is consistent with NHS redundancy terms for all staff

The contracts of employment of the Executive Directors are for indefinite terms and are subject to six months’ notice by either side. All Executive Directors are
subject to periodic appraisal and are accountable to the Board of Directors for performance in those areas to which they provide executive leadership. The
terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are typically for 3 year terms and are subject to three months’ notice by either side. There are no
provisions within the contracts of employment regarding compensation for early termination for any directors.
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ERE Denton, Medical
Director
NVC Fontaine, Chief
Nurse
PD Jones, Chief People
Officer (Appointed 10
June 2019)
R Clarke, Chief Finance
Officer (Appointed 1
April 2020)
JJ Hennessey, Chief
Finance Officer (Until 31
March 2020)
PM Davies, Chief
Executive (Until 30
September 2019)

DR White, Chairman
(Appointed 10 June
2019)
S Higginson, Chief
Executive (Appointed 21
October 2019)
CM Cobb, Chief
Operating Officer

Name and title

0

PM Davies

160 - 165

R Clarke

0

0

140 - 145

JJ
Hennessey

0

145 - 150

0

0

0

0

0

270 - 275

150 - 155

CM Cobb

0

ERE
Denton
NVC
Fontaine
PD Jones

220 - 225

S
Higginson

£

£'000
0

Rounded
to the
nearest
£100

(bands of
£5,000)

50 - 55

All
Taxable
Benefits

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£'000

(bands of
£5,000)

Annual & Longterm
Performance
Related
Bonuses

0

0

280 - 282.5

32.5 - 35

35 - 37.5

7.5 - 10

37.5 - 40

305 - 307.5

0

£'000

(bands of
£2,500)

Pension
Related
Benefits

12 months ended 31st March 2021

Salary

DR White

Remuneration – Audited

0

0

445 - 450

175 - 180

180 - 185

280 - 285

190 - 195

525 - 530

55 - 60

£'000

(bands of
£5,000)

Total

115 - 120

170 - 175

0

105 - 110

140 - 145

250 - 255

145 - 150

90 - 95

40 - 45

£'000

(bands of
£5,000)

Salary

200

400

0

0

0

100

0

0

100

£

Rounded to
the nearest
£100

All Taxable
Benefits

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£'000

(bands of £5,000)

Annual & Long-term
Performance Related
Bonuses

Pension
Related
Benefits

0

0

0

17.5 - 20

0

20 - 22.5

157.5 - 160

107.5 - 110

0

£'000

(bands of
£2,500)

12 months ended 31st March 2020

115 - 120

170 - 175

0

120 - 125

140 - 145

270 - 275

305 - 310

200 - 205

40 - 45

£'000

(bands of
£5,000)

Total
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T How, Non-Executive
Director (Until 31 May
2020)
J Fry, Chairman (Until
31 May 2019)

JM Over, Director of
Workforce (Until 31 May
2019)
P Chrispin, NonExecutive Director
(Appointed 1 January
2020)
S Dinneen, NonExecutive Director
(Appointed 1 January
2020)
JA Foster, NonExecutive Director
(Appointed 1 June 2019)
JM Hannam, NonExecutive Director
(Appointed 1 January
2020)
GH O'Sullivan, NonExecutive Director
D Richardson, NonExecutive Director
TI Spink, Non-Executive
Director (Appointed 1
June 2020)

Name and title

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

GH
O'Sullivan
D
Richardson
TI Spink

0

10 - 15

JM
Hannam

J Fry

0

10 - 15

JA Foster

0-5

0

10 - 15

S Dinneen

T How

0

10 - 15

P Chrispin

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Rounded
to the
nearest
£100
0

(bands of
£5,000)

JM Over

All
Taxable
Benefits

Salary

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Annual & Longterm
Performance
Related
Bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(bands of
£2,500)

Pension
Related
Benefits

0

0-5

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

10 - 15

0

(bands of
£5,000)

Total

12 months ended 31st March 2021

5 - 10

10 - 15

0

10 - 15

10 - 15

0-5

10 - 15

0-5

0-5

20 - 25

(bands of
£5,000)

Salary

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Rounded to
the nearest
£100

All Taxable
Benefits

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(bands of £5,000)

Annual & Long-term
Performance Related
Bonuses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

7.5 - 10

(bands of
£2,500)

Pension
Related
Benefits

Total

5 - 10

10 - 15

0

10 - 15

10 - 15

0-5

10 - 15

0-5

0-5

25 - 30

(bands of
£5,000)

12 months ended 31st March 2020

0

0

A Robson

0

Rounded
to the
nearest
£100
0

(bands of
£5,000)

RM Jeffries

All
Taxable
Benefits

Salary

0

0

Annual & Longterm
Performance
Related
Bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)

0

0

(bands of
£2,500)

Pension
Related
Benefits

0

0

(bands of
£5,000)

Total

12 months ended 31st March 2021

5 - 10

10 - 15

(bands of
£5,000)

Salary

0

0

Rounded to
the nearest
£100

All Taxable
Benefits

0

0

(bands of
£2,500)

Pension
Related
Benefits

5 - 10

10 - 15

(bands of
£5,000)

Total
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The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.

This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an
estimation of the benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide.

The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the
individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a transfer of pension rights.

The element of remuneration relating to the Medical Director’s non-managerial role is in the banding £125,000-130,000 (prior year £110,000-115,000).

Pension related benefits have been pro-rated / time apportioned for Directors who were appointed or resigned part way through the year.

0

0

(bands of £5,000)

Annual & Long-term
Performance Related
Bonuses

12 months ended 31st March 2020

Taxable benefits cover the monetary value of benefits in kind, such as car mileage allowances where subject to income tax.

RM Jeffries, NonExecutive Director (Until
31 January 2020)
A Robson, NonExecutive Director (Until
30 September 2019)

Name and title

270 - 275
272,500
29,564
9.22

250 - 255
252,500
28,781
8.77

2019 - 20
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The banded remuneration, of the highest paid director in the Trust in the financial year 2020/21 was £270-£275K (2019/20: £250-255k).This was 9.22 times
(2019/20 – 8.77 times) the median remuneration of the workforce which was £29,564 (2019/20 - £28,781). In 2020/21, 0 (2019/20: 0) employees received
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director. Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind. It
does not include severance payments, employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Band of Highest Paid Director's Total
Remuneration (£'000)
Midpoint of band
Median Total (£)
Remuneration Ratio

2020- 21

The disclosures in respect of the highest paid director and the information in the following three tables are all subject to audit.

In line with the recommendations of the Hutton Review of Fair Pay, the policy of the Trust is to publish details of the band of the highest paid Director and the
relationship between them and the median remuneration of its staff. This comparison involves the people in post at the year end and is based on a full time
equivalent basis. The table below discloses this information.

Fair Pay Multiple

0-0

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

-2.5 - 0

-2.5 - 0

27.5 - 30

15 - 17.5

2.5 - 5

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

2.5 - 5

12.5 - 15

Real increase
in pension at
age 60
(bands of
£2,500)
£'000

Real increase
in pension
lump sum at
age 60
(bands of
£2,500)
£'000

50 - 55

20 - 25

60 - 65

70 - 75

30 - 35

50 - 55

Total accrued
pension at age
60 at 31 March
2021
(bands of
£5,000)
£'000

105 - 110

45 - 50

130 - 135

180 - 185

65 - 70

533

370

1,133

1,481

599

424

£'000

(bands of £5,000)
£'000

0-0

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at
1 April 2020

Lump Sum at age 60
related to accrued
pensions at 31
March 2021

197

25

45

47

36

190

£'000

Real increase in
Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value

739

422

1,218

1,558

667

642

£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at
31 March 2021

94

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members

S Higginson, Chief
Executive
(Appointed 21
October 2019)
CM Cobb, Chief
Operating Officer
ERE Denton,
Medical Director
NVC Fontaine, Chief
Nurse
PD Jones, Chief
People Officer
(Appointed 10 June
2019)
R Clarke, Chief
Finance Officer
(Appointed 1 April
2020)

Name and title

2020/21

Total Pension Entitlement
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S Higginson, Chief
Executive (Appointed 21
October 2019)
CM Cobb, Chief
Operating Officer
ERE Denton, Medical
Director
NVC Fontaine, Chief
Nurse
PD Jones, Chief People
Officer (Appointed 10
June 2019)
PM Davies, Chief
Executive (Until 30
September 2019)
JM Over, Director of
Workforce (Until 31
May 2019)

2019/2020
Name and title

0-0
15 - 17.5
-5 - -2.5
-10 - -7.5

0 - 2.5

-37.5 - -35

-2.5 - 0

7.5 - 10

0 - 2.5

-2.5 - 0

0 - 2.5

-15 - -12.5

0 - 2.5

(bands of £2,500)
£'000

Real increase in
pension lump
sum at age 60

0 - 2.5

Real increase
in pension at
age 60
(bands of
£2,500)
£'000

30 - 35

65 - 70

15 - 20

55 - 60

70 - 75

25 - 30

30 - 35

Total accrued
pension at age
60 at 31 March
2020
(bands of
£5,000)
£'000

60 - 65

210 - 215

45 - 50

130 - 135

175 - 180

65 - 70

0-0

(bands of £5,000)
£'000

Lump Sum at age 60
related to accrued
pensions at 31 March
2020

450

0

333

1,106

1,399

421

340

£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at
1 April 2019

0

0

5

0

34

147

33

£'000

Real increase in
Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value

440

0

370

1,133

1,481

599

424

£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at
31 March 2020
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Signed on behalf of the Board on 1 June 2021

Chief Executive – Sam Higginson

The Trust is required by NHSI to disclose any payments that fall with the definition of “Performance Related Bonuses” and it has been determined by the
Department of Health that Clinical Excellence Awards (CEA) meet this definition. As such they have been disclosed as a “Bonus”. Clinical Excellence awards
are given to recognise and reward the exceptional contribution of NHS consultants, over and above that normally expected in a job, to the values and goals of
the NHS and to patient care. Clinical Excellence Awards are administered at a national level by the Advisory Committee on Clinical Excellence Awards.
These payments were previously classified within Other Remuneration. There have been no new Clinical Excellence Awards payable to the Directors in
2020/21, however one individual who has held the role of Medical Director during the period 2020/21 was in receipt of clinical excellence award as part of their
remuneration packages that were determined in previous years.

Bonus

NHS Pensions are using pension and lump sum data from their systems without any adjustment for a potential future legal remedy required as a result of the
McCloud judgement. (This is a legal case concerning age discrimination over the manner in which UK public service pension schemes introduced a CARE
benefit design in 2015 for all but the oldest members who retained a Final Salary design.). We believe this approach is appropriate given that there is still
considerable uncertainty on how the affected benefits within the new NHS 2015 Scheme would be adjusted in future once legal proceedings are completed.

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accumulated by a member at a
particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accumulated benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. CETV’s
are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Staff Report
Introduction
We have nearly 10,000 staff and volunteers who are at the heart of what we do. The year
has been and continues to be an exceptionally challenging time for our hospital during the
Covid-19 pandemic and we are grateful for the outstanding efforts our staff. We value the
contribution made by each and every staff member, and recognise that lots of our staff
have had to work very differently in meeting the demands on our services.
It is because of each and every member of our team that we are able to turn our vision
into reality, seeking every day to “provide every patient with the care we want for those we
love the most”. We are on a journey to outstanding and we want to ensure our staff feel
valued and appreciated, such that they feel proud to work here and act as ambassadors
for our hospital.
Analysis of average staff numbers
The information below shows the average staff numbers within the Trust from April 2020
to March 2021.
Average number of
employees (WTE Basis)

Medical and dental
Ambulance staff
Administration and
estates
Healthcare assistants
and other support staff

2020
/2021

2020
/2021

2020
/2021

2019
/202
0

2019
/2020

2019
/2020

Total

Permanently
Employed

Other

Total

Permanently
Employed

Other

691
-

584
-

64

1,27
5
1,33
4

1,264

70

338

2,34
8

1,956

392

2,163

232

1,281
-

707
-

574
-

1,386

1,322

2,601

2,263

Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting staff
2,493

2,293

200

2,39
5

2

2

0

2

2

0

714

675

39

670

637

33

365
0
4

340
0
3

283
3

21
-

8,846

7,605

6,999

1,332

Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic
and technical staff
Healthcare science
staff
Social care staff
Other
Total average numbers
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25
304
0 1
3
8,33
1,241
1

Analysis of Staff costs
The tables below set out the cost and number of staff for the last two years separately
analysed between those staff members with permanent employment contracts with the
Trust and those who do not have a permanent employment contract.
This table shows the gross cost of staff, analysed between those who are employed on
permanent contracts and others (criteria as per previous table):
2020/21

2019/20

Total

Permanent
Staff

Other

Total

Permanent
Staff

Other

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

353,257

303,621

49,636

308,123

258,834

49,289

Social Security
Costs

32,917

28,292

4,625

29,279

24,595

4,684

Apprenticeship
Levy

1,670

1,435

235

1,504

1,263

241

Pension cost defined contribution
plans employer's
contributions to
NHS Pensions

40,412

34,734

5,678

36,379

30,560

5,819

Pension cost employer
contributions paid
by NHSE on
provider's behalf

17,653

15,173

2,480

15,829

13,297

2,532

73

0

73

42

0

42

118

118

0

2,116

2,116

0

Temporary Staff Agency / Contract
staff

10,360

0

10,360

13,779

0

13,779

Total Gross Staff
Costs

456,460

383,373

73,087

407,051

330,665

76,386

Salaries And
Wages

Pension cost –
other
Termination
Benefits

Breakdown of male and female staff as at 31 March 2021

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Other staff
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Male
4
4
1,947

Female
2
4
7,348

Sickness Absence
As at 31 December 2020, the 12-month rolling sickness rate was 4.26%. The evidence
base supports the view that the vast majority of lost days are attributable to longer term
absence. Just 20% of all episodes of absence in 2020 were for durations exceeding 28
days but these absences accounted for 57% of all days lost to sickness absence.
Despite the impact of Covid-19 on sickness absence, there has been a positive
improvement in sickness rates during 2020/21 and, if Covid absence is excluded, the 12month rolling average is below 4%.
Furthermore, further evidence suggests that, statistically, a member of staff who has not
resumed within the first 7 days of sickness is, more likely than not, going to be absent for
between 1-3 months. Accordingly, we recognise the importance of line managers needing
to ‘Know Your Staff’ and intervene positively in order to support a return from sickness
absence and, if at all possible, to put in place interventions which prevent the need for
sickness absence in the first instance.
Sickness absence data
This information is published by NHS Digital:
http://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absencerates
Staff Turnover
For the 12 months to 31st December 2020, the staff turnover rate was 10.29%. This
information is published by NHS Digital:
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics
Diversity and Inclusion
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) is a critical component to improvements to our
organisational culture. The two Equality Standards – Workforce Race Equality Standard
(WRES) and Disability Equality Standard (WDES) – along with engaging with our staff
networks and Equality and Diversity Group (EDGe) are part of our efforts for positive
change, engagement and inclusivity which support our commitment to make the NNUH
“Our Hospital for All.”
Equality and Diversity Policy and Equality Impact Assessments
Our Equality and Diversity policy describes what is meant by Equality and Diversity and
discrimination. The policy also includes the rights and responsibilities and duties placed
upon the Trust, all employees and external stakeholders explaining the processes in place
for addressing allegations of discrimination and to ensure that employees do not commit
unlawful acts of discrimination.
We also ensure that for all new and existing policies they must be monitored and reviewed
regularly to assess their equality impact. This can be undertaken using our Equality
Impact Assessment Form(s) and guide.
The EIA is a way of investigating whether any of the Trust’s policies (this includes project
or action plans) and functions/services could affect people unfavourably and how this
could be addressed. It will also show areas where the Trust needs to take action to
promote equality. It improves the quality of the service that is provided to the public by
ensuring that all services are accessible to everyone.
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Equality and Diversity Governance
In September 2019, we replaced the HR Equality and Diversity Group (HEDGe) with the
Equality and Diversity Group (EDGe) to reflect that patient, service user and customer
aspects of EDI is as important a focus as workforce-related matters. The focus for the
monthly EDGe meetings alternates between workforce and patient, service user and
customer focus, the latter led by the patient engagement and experience team.
The group works together to identify gaps, improvements and ensures we meet EDI
requirements including analysis of data to form responsive actions. It also allows each of
the local divisional groups (LEDGe) to contribute and update on their local plans and
initiatives.
NHS Equality Standards
Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES)
The Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) is the means of helping the NHS as a
whole to improve its performance on workforce race equality. The WRES has nine
indicators which highlight differences between the experience and treatment of white staff
and BAME staff. The data is based on financial years and is required to be published by
31 August each year.
Key indicators taken from the WRES 2020 report are:
x

WRES Indicator 1 – 12% of our workforce are of a BME background and 80.9% of
our workforce are White.

x

WRES Indicator 2 – White candidates are 1.52x more likely to be appointed from
shortlisting compared to BAME candidates

x

WRES Indicator 3 – significant improvement between the likelihood of BAME staff
entering the formal misconduct process compared to white staff (almost near parity
- 1.15).

x

WRES staff survey indicators - 35% of BAME staff have experienced bullying or
abuse from other colleagues.
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£8m imaging equipment replacement scheme
continues

One of the biggest equipment replacement programmes at NNUH continues to be
delivered, despite the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic.
A new MRI magnet was delivered and craned into place at Cromer and District
Hospital in January 2021, having been manufactured and shipped from the USA.
The hospital’s old MRI was craned out of the building in November 2020, and build
works to the facility will ensure that patients will benefit from improved quality of
imaging, safety improvements and an enhanced experience.
The £8m project to replace vital imaging equipment will see the change-out of four
MRI scanners a CT scanner at the Trust. An additional CT scanner will also be
added in the Radiology department at NNUH.
The scheme follows ‘Aged Assets’ government funding that was announced in
2019, as well as benefiting from Adapt and Adopt Covid-19 funding.
Work has also been ongoing since November 2020 to start the reconfiguration of
the Radiology department at NNUH to allow for the integration of the new CT
scanner, which required the relocation of a Plain Film changing area and the
department’s staff rest room.
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Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES)
The Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES) is a data-based standard that uses a
series of measures to help improve the experiences of disabled staff in the NHS. The ten
evidence based metrics enable NHS organisations to compare the reported outcomes and
experiences of Disabled staff with non-disabled staff. The data is based on financial years
and is required to be published by 31 August each year.
Key indicators taken from the WDES 2020 report are:
x

WDES Indicator 1 – only 2.1% of our workforce have disclosed they have a
disability whereas 22% of respondents to the 2019 staff survey said they had a
disability or underlying health condition.

x

WDES staff survey indicators - 33% of disabled staff have experienced bullying or
abuse from other colleagues.

Equality Standard Actions
The WRES and WDES include some indicators which relate specifically to our Staff
Survey results. Last year we focused strongly on our EDI findings as the 2019 staff survey
findings indicated 35% of our BAME staff and 33% of disabled staff had experienced
bullying, harassment or abuse from colleagues. We therefore ensured that two of the
organisational-wide staff survey improvement objectives were related to the Equality
Standards and Bullying and Harassment.
Our WRES and WDES indicators also highlight that White candidates and candidates who
do not have a long term health condition are 1.52 times more likely to be appointed from
shortlisting compared to BME and Disabled candidates.
We established an overarching objective for the equality standards to promote NNUH as
‘Our Hospital for All’. Interventions which looked to help us to achieve this included:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

Supporting our staff networks to become self-sufficient
Implementing a reverse mentoring initiative
Celebrating diverse and cultural difference through a range of events,
education and activities.
Promote the understanding of micro-aggressions and inappropriate behaviour
and their impact on colleagues.
Ensuring recruiting managers have been trained in unconscious bias training.
Leadership programme intervention for aspiring BAME staff.
Development of approach to ensure appropriate representation on selection
panels.

All of the above interventions have been implemented and some of which are ongoing and
are included in our EDI Workforce Focused Action Plan as our journey towards
embedding NNUH as Our Hospital for All continues.
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Staff Networks
The Trust currently has four staff networks:
x

BAME Staff Network – established Nov 2018

x

LGBT+ Staff Network – established Nov 2018

x

Diverse Ability Staff Network – established May 2019

x

Women’s Staff Network – established Oct 2020

With the exception of the Women’s Staff Network, our staff networks are chaired by a
representative thus not led by HR. The networks have enabled shared decision making
and a voice for colleagues. It has also provided them with the opportunity to consult on
particular policies, as well as helped with producing new policies or toolkits including our
supporting transgender staff guidelines, transgender patient care policy, health passport
and attendance policy letters.
Whilst each of our staff networks are maturing, we recognise we still have a long way to
go. We look to continue engaging with colleagues to create the awareness of our staff
networks in order to increase membership and as a result ensure we improve staff
experiences.
Disability Confident
The Trust has been successful in retaining the Level 2
Disability Confident Employer status for the past five
years. This builds on and replaces the best practices of
the ‘Two Ticks Disability Symbol’ model which the Trust
previously held. Being Disability Confident provides us with an opportunity to attract,
recruit and retain disabled people, whilst demonstrating commitment, action and
progression.
The NNUH also hosts special schemes for recruiting employees with disabilities, such as
Project Search. This is a pioneering intern programme which has led to employment for
many young people. It involves NNUH working in partnership with Remploy, Serco and
City College Norwich to offer students with learning difficulties and disabilities the chance
to learn vital skills and prepare them for paid employment.
Employees with a long term health condition or disability receive support from the
Workplace Health and Wellbeing Team, advice from Human Resources Department along
with support from their line manager. Options are explored for making reasonable
adjustments to the person’s work activities which might include a change to working
hours, duties or use of equipment. The aim is to keep the employee in work and all
opportunities are explored, including redeployment.
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Our Attendance Policy has a toolkit which is dedicated to support our staff with disabilities
and long term health conditions which encourages managers to apply our Know Your
Staff principles, putting the person before the process and:
x
x
x
x
x

consult with individuals
deal with matters confidentiality and sensitively
consider everything that is relevant
consider all possible options and outcomes
implement the identified and appropriate option where they are considered to be
reasonable adjustments.

The trust has an established Diverse Ability Staff Network for all staff including staff with
disabilities, disability advocates, carers for relatives and managers. The purpose of the
network is to provide a voice for Diverse Ability staff as well as encourage all staff within
the trust to celebrate diversity. It is also to encourage our staff to understand the needs of
individuals within the community to help us embed our ethos of becoming ‘Our Hospital for
All’.
Trade Unions
In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirement) Regulation
2017, we are required to publish information regarding ‘facility’ time on a government
website by 31 July following the reporting period.
For the period of 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020, NNUH reported 16 trade union
representatives providing 14.71 FTE. The following table outlines the percentage of
working hours these officials spent on facility time.
Percentage of working hours spent on
facility time

No of Representatives

0%

5

1 – 50%

9

51 – 99%

2

100%

0

The total spend on paying employees who were relevant union officials for facility time
during the relevant period was £60,462.46 which represented 0.02% of NNUH’s total pay
bill. The total hours on paid TU facility time totalled 3,230 which represented 4.98% of
total paid facility time.
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Formal and informal consultation mechanisms
Staff Engagement
One of our top priorities is to encourage the best from our staff, whilst at the same time
maintaining their health, safety and wellbeing at work. Our approach to staff engagement
is to involve our colleagues in discussions about key issues and this is reflected in the
different ways in which we communicate and consult with staff.
Formal negotiation and consultation with our recognised trade unions is undertaken in a
conversational and constructive manner with all those involved invariably wanting a
common aim.
The committees where the dialogue takes place include:
x
x
x

JSCC (Joint Staff Consultation Committee)
PACS (Pay and Conditions of Service)
LNC (Local Negotiation Committee)

In October 2020, we launched the Women’s Network which was an addition to our
existing staff networks; BAME, LGBT+ and Diverse Ability Networks which meet
frequently to make a positive difference to individuals and our Trust.
Other communication mechanisms
Staff engagement is supported by a comprehensive internal communications programme
which includes daily e-newsletters, intranet, magazine, and events. The weekly online
Connected sessions, plus other Open Conversation events, are led by the Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Directors talking about specific subjects. These sessions have
become more accessible to staff with them being run via Microsoft Teams, with recordings
being available to staff after each event. There is also a weekly Chief Executive video,
plus feedback reports from the Trust Board meetings. Through these mechanisms, staff
are kept up-to-date on a range of performance and finance issues affecting our hospitals.
Where there are issues affecting particular staff groups, including service changes, we
hold regular meetings with those staff groups and staff side representatives, as
appropriate.
NHS Staff Survey 2020
The annual National NHS Staff Survey has operated since 2003 and allows us to monitor
the experiences of our staff and benchmark ourselves against other similar NHS
organisations and the NHS as a whole, on a range of measures of staff attitudes and
satisfaction. The results are primarily intended for use by NHS organisations to help them
review and improve the experience of staff at work and, who in turn, are then feel
supported to provide high quality care for our patients.
Our response rate to the staff survey 2020 was 48% with 4,309 respondents. The
response rate to the 2019 staff survey was 46% with 3776 respondents.
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The most recent survey covers the feedback from staff for the period September 2020 to
November 2020. The results from questions are grouped to give scores in ten theme
indicators. The indicator scores are based on a score out of 10 for certain questions with
the indicator score being the average of those.
Ten summary indicators (referred to as themes) were created from the responses to
individual survey questions. All themes are scored on a scale that ranges from 0 to 10 (the
higher the ‘score’ the better). Scores for each indicator together with that of the survey
benchmarking group (128 acute and acute & community trusts) are presented below.

The survey provides results for our organisation as well as comparison to the best and
worst Trusts and all acute trusts (from the 128 acute and acute and community
organisations).
NNUH 2020 theme scores compared to the benchmark of 128 acute trusts
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Disappointingly very few responses to individual questions have shown significant
improvement on 2019 results – 7 (9%) of questions have shown significant improvements
since 2019. Thirty four (44%) of questions have shown significant declines since 2019
and 37 (47%) of questions have shown no significant movements since 2019 or
comparisons could not be drawn.
Four of the ten theme scores are significantly worse than 2019. These are: Quality of
Care, Immediate Managers, Staff Engagement and Team Working. These are the results
that give us most cause for concern, and are the areas where we’ll take immediate steps
to address the issues raised. We will listen more to understand the issues that we need to
remedy in more detail.
We will be conducting an extensive listening programme of events across the Trust from
April 2021 to involve people in determining where we need to do better and what will
make a real difference to staff experience
We will be working hard to ensure positive change happens and we’re working with
leaders, trade union partners, our diverse staff networks and other stakeholders to put in
place some immediate actions.
The results from the Staff Survey 2020 have been shared organisationally and are
available for all staff to view on the Staff Survey intranet pages. As well as the national
reports from the NHS Staff Survey Co-ordination Centre, there are reports which provide
breakdown by staff group/ division and comparison tools.
Information on the staff survey, emerging themes and proposals have been shared
with various established boards and forums, including:
x People and Culture Committee
x Joint Staff Consultative Committee
x Hospital Management Board
x Trust Board
x Staff Networks (BAME, LGBT+, Diverse Ability, Woman’s Network)
The Staff Survey Steering Group (SSSG) will recommence meeting and will have
responsibility for the delivery of the improvement plan for 2020 Staff Survey.
Other engagement and Cultural Interventions
We continue to put on various training and bespoke interventions for our staff and leaders.
These include Leading with PRIDE, Communicating with PRIDE, Rudeness Costs Lives,
Unconscious Bias Training and Know your Staff.
Leading with PRIDE
At these masterclasses, managers are reminded of the importance of having effective
engagement with their staff and our expectation of managers to use the ‘know your staff’
principles. Managers are provided with the tools for giving constructive feedback and
tackling issued, building on individual team member’s strengths and modelling PRIDE
values as leaders.
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Communicating with PRIDE
Introduced in October 2018, the Communicating with Pride Toolkits provide help and
support for all – whether staff had experienced, witnessed, had to manage, or had been
accused of, inappropriate behaviour.
The intent is that this empowers all of our staff to have the confidence to raise and resolve
issues themselves, or with the support of colleagues. Communicating with Pride builds on
the Trust’s PRIDE values which detail the types of behaviour the organisation likes to see
and the behaviour it discourages.
Rudeness Costs Lives
These training sessions built on the Communicating with PRIDE framework. These sought
to understand the impact of incivility, recognise that rudeness exists in our workplace and
gave staff and managers the knowledge to use the BUILD and ABC feedback tools in the
workplace.
Unconscious Bias Training
Unconscious bias training has become a requirement for recruitment managers and was
delivered from July 2019, with the audience including our Executive Directors.
Know Your Staff
Know Your Staff is our compassionate and just approach to people management. The key
principles are to:
x
x
x
x
x
x

Have an outcome focus.
Think about the person before the process.
Have no surprises.
Apply discretion appropriately.
Provide clarity, have ownership and be accountable.
Adopt an ethos of leading through:
o Trust, with positive
o Relationships and
o Engagement, knowing that you are
o Empowered to take appropriate decisions

Local Counter Fraud Service (LCFS)
NNUH works closely with our designated local counter fraud specialist as part of the
national scheme led by ‘NHS Counter Fraud Authority’. This involves proactive and
reactive work to ensure that precious NHS resources are not lost to fraud but rather can
be spent on patient care and clinical services. This provides a clear route for
concerns in relation to fraud to be reported and investigated, and development of an
anti-fraud culture.
We take all necessary steps to counter fraud and bribery in accordance with guidance or
advice issued by NHS Protect. This process is detailed in the organisation’s Anti-Fraud
and Bribery Policy.
Off payroll engagements
The Trust has a policy that all substantive staff are paid through payroll unless there are
exceptional circumstances. No Board members were engaged on an interim and offpayroll basis during the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.
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The table below shows the details for 2020/2021:
Off payroll engagements as of 31 March 2021 for more than £245 per day lasting for
longer than six months
No. of existing engagements as of 31 March 2021, of which:

0

No. that have existed for less than one year at the time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between one and two years at time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between two and three years at time of
reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between three and four years at time of
reporting.

0

No. that have existed for four or more years at time of reporting.

0

The trust may be able to engage contractors on an off-payroll basis, but there is scrutiny for such
arrangements.
For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration,
between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, for more than £245 per day and that last for
longer than six months
No. of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration,
between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021

0

Of which:
Number assessed as within the scope of IR35

0

Number assessed as not within the scope of IR35

0

Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to trust) and are on the
trust’s payroll

0

Number of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance
purposes during the year

0

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the
consistency review

0

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior
officials with significant financial responsibility, between 1 April 2020 and
31 March 2021
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials
with significant financial responsibility, during the financial year.

0

Number of individuals that have been deemed ‘board members and/or senior
officials with significant financial responsibility’ during the financial year. This
figure must include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements.

6
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Staff exit packages
Not Audited
Table 1:Exit Packages
Number of
Cost of special
Cost of
departures
payment
Total cost where special
other
Cost of
Number of other
element
of exit
departures
departures Total number of
payments have included in exit
compulsory
exit packages
been made
packages
agreed
agreed
redundancies
packages

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
Whole Numbers
Only

Whole Numbers
Only

£000

Whole Numbers
Only

£000

Whole Numbers
Only

£000

£000

Exit package cost
band (including any
special payment
element)

<£10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>£200,000
Total

3

1

4

x

x

11

21

38

107

118

21

38

24

49

0

0

0
0

0
0

1

107

0

0

0

0

25

156

0

0

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of
the NHS Scheme. Exit costs in this note are the full costs of departures agreed in the year.
Where the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has agreed
early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Norfolk and Norwich University
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and not by the NHS Pensions Scheme. Ill-health
retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not included in the table.
This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. Note: the
expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a
previous period.

Table 2: Analysis of Other Departures
*Includes any non-contractual severance payment made following judicial mediation and there
were no payments made relating to non-contractual payments in lieu of notice.

Type Of Other Departures

Agreements

Total value of
agreements

Number

£000

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice

21

38

Exit payments following employment tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval (special
severance payments)*
Total
21
x As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will be
counted separately in this Note, the total number above will not necessarily match the total
numbers in Note 6 which will be the number of individuals.
x * any non-contractual payments in lieu of notice are disclosed under “non-contractual
payments requiring HMT approval” below.
x **includes any non-contractual severance payment made following judicial mediation, and 0
relating to non-contractual payments in lieu of notice.
x 0 non-contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value was more
than 12 months’ of their annual salary.
x The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals
named in that Report
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Workplace Health & Wellbeing (Occupational Health)
This year has seen a significant increase in demand for occupational health services due
to the global COVID-19 pandemic as well as the need for the department to adjust
dramatically to new ways of working. The majority of work has been focused around
COVID-19 within our own organisation and the other NHS Organisations who contract
services from us. At the same time, we have had to maintain core elements of the
Occupational Health service.
Response to COVID-19
Risk assessment
In late March 2020, the emerging evidence surrounding the Covid19 virus identified that
there would be individuals who would be personally more vulnerable and have a
significant risk of serious ill health should they contract the virus. It became apparent that
this would impact some of the staff who worked within our organisation, and others, due to
the nature of their roles and that these individuals would not be ordinarily able to comply
with the governments ‘stay at home’ message.
This evidence led to the development of a risk matrix and risk assessment process which
needed to be considered for all staff. The team spoke to literally thousands of our staff in
those weeks that followed – many who needed advice and guidance surrounding their
own personal health situations as well as their personal concerns for loved ones who were
being placed in a ‘shielding’ group.
As we undertook these conversations, our focus was to protect our NHS staff and prevent
them becoming our ventilated patients whilst also appreciating the need for the NHS
services having sufficient staff to deliver care in a global pandemic situation. As evidence
emerged and changed, so our assessments of individuals needed to be reviewed. The
team had a senior nurse constantly reviewing all the changes in evidence to ensure we as
a team remained knowledgeable with this ever changing situation.
These assessments were both emotive for all concerned and many staff were advised to
be relocated from their original areas of work to ensure they remained protected. As the
early months progressed, our Lead Consultant and a Senior Nurse worked with a
technological company which enabled the risk assessment process to be undertaken
electronically. The team provided the medical information and evidence base whilst using
the expertise of technology to develop the tool.
Once the tool was launched, all staff could be risk assessed in minutes with outcomes of
the assessment being sent to line managers and the occupational health team. This was
particularly useful as restrictions following the first wave in the summer arrived to review
risk assessments in preparation for shielding individuals returning and also further reviews
in preparation for Wave 2 in November with the associated changes to Public Health
England guidance surrounding patient pathways.
This tool became a very efficient, effective and consistent evidenced based assessment
for all staff. This COVID risk assessment tool is now being used by many NHS Trusts
around the country. https://rainbird.ai/case-study/assessing-covid-19-risk-for-thousands/
In addition, the department has developed Workplace risk assessments for clinical areas
so that managers can assess and implement covid risk mitigation measures for individuals
in their work areas to support the documentation provided by the Health & Safety team on
general office/area covid risk mitigation measures.
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Isolation advice and guidance
From the start of this pandemic, the team have kept up to date with the ever-changing
advice from the government regarding isolation. This started in the early days with just
advising when staff were returning from trips abroad, but over the year this has developed
into a full in-house test and trace service for staff.
It was vital that our staff had timely advice regarding any contacts they had in the
workplace from colleagues and patient contact. The team have been and continue at
present to provide a 7-day service ensuring any positive staff results are contacted and if
necessary ensuring contacts in the workplace commence isolation if Covid secure
measures have not been in place. We have worked closely with the Infection Prevention
and Control team in ensuring any ward outbreaks include staff contacts and appropriate
testing has been undertaken.
Testing
Whilst not directly responsible for the staff testing service, we have worked with our
Clinical Support Services team to provide governance advice and support in establishing
both the swab and antibody services. We have worked in partnership with the testing
team and the WHWB team have been contacting staff if positive results or any other
queries in relation to the testing elements.
Increased recruitment support
Occupational health services in the NHS are a vital stage of the recruitment process of
staff and the need to rapidly ‘on board’ staff was apparent early in this pandemic. The
team have supported this process whilst changing process and guidance taking into the
account that anyone coming to work in a clinical area would need to be risk assessed to
ensure that their own personal health would not be at an increased risk by undertaking the
role. The demand for all our NHS customers for this area of work has been significantly
increased over the last 12 months.
Health & Wellbeing during the Pandemic
At the commencement of the pandemic the Head of WHWB worked with the Clinical
Psychologist team within our Clinical Services Division to establish a three staged strategy
for the psychological support that would be offered and anticipated needed for staff as we
approached the ‘unknown’. This combined many elements of work and service providers
including senior nurses who were shielding offering support to staff and increased
provision of employee assistance programme. The psychologist and chaplaincy teams
providing a daily rota of support, plus the organisational development and training team
worked with the psychologists to provide webinars to leaders to support them and these
have continued throughout this year. In addition the Health and Wellbeing team providing
information and support to all staff.
The dedicated ‘Caring for you’ intranet site was produced by our communications team so
that staff could find all relevant information in one place. Of significant note, the Health
and Wellbeing Practitioner team in WHWB provided a wealth of information to aid the
wellbeing of our staff. It ranged from psychological wellbeing to practical elements on skin
care with increased PPE wearing, practical tips to help reduce the anxiety at the end of a
shift and health awareness information on what staff could do to ensure they were ‘fit to
fight’ the virus (diet, taking vitamin D, reducing weight and health eating, exercise etc).
This information was widely shared across our STP region to ensure all NHS staff
received the valuable content available.
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In the early stages, the Health & Wellbeing team redesigned some clinical areas that were
not being utilised in their normal way to develop dedicated ‘rest space’ for staff. This
allowed staff to have a break away from their clinical area. Due to the generosity of the
general public, we were able to provide free drinks and snacks in these areas on most
days. This space was very much appreciated by our staff and highlighted once again the
importance of having a quiet and dedicated space available for staff.
The organisation was very conscious that we had a group of staff who had become
‘shielders’ – those who have individual health conditions themselves and needed to ‘Stay
at home’ to protect them from this virus. For some they have now been ‘shielding’ for the
best part of a year. Our HWB Practitioner has provided a range of dedicated support
sessions for this group of staff. This has enabled individuals to share their experiences
and frustrations, their feelings of guilt of having not been physically in the building to
support their colleagues undertaking the ‘frontline’ work and gain support from each other.
They have shared their anxieties about returning to work and they have received
meditative practices and relaxation yoga to support them. All this being undertaken by
using virtual technology. Information packs have been sent to this group to prepare them
for returning and also information supplied to managers so that they understand some of
the concerns that staff have in this situation.
The service continues to deliver programmes to promote the health and wellbeing of our
staff as well as the organisations that contract services from us.
Covid Vaccination
Building on the success of our staff flu vaccination campaigns, in November, the WHWB
team became involved in planning the COVID vaccination programme. It was anticipated
initially that we would be vaccinating all our staff as quickly as we could and so planning
for this commenced using an IT booking system and the core staff flu vaccine flu team. A
change of direction was given by NHS England with literally days before our launch that
we would now commence vaccinating the ‘Over 80’s community’ and ‘Care Home staff’.
This had to be done from our hospital with only a small proportion of vaccines available to
our NHS staff initially. However, the team rose to the challenge and within days a
dedicated hub in the hospital was created and the health and wellbeing team have been
supporting both staff vaccinations and the wider community vaccinations since December
2020. The hub can vaccinate over 1000 individuals a day and has contributed significantly
to the vaccination programme of the Norfolk Community.

Supporting Long Covid Staff members
Core Occupational Health Services
Core occupational health services for NNUH staff have continued over the course of this
year. We have undertaken absence referrals for all our contracts, after an initial pause of
immunisation services, these have now been restored since the summer and continued to
provide essential protection to staff who are working in clinical environments, exposed to
blood and body fluids. Our blood exposure support line continues and all staff who have
such incidents are assessed and supported with any necessary treatment.
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Health surveillance process have changed with remote services (as per HSE guidance)
being delivered but with the assistance of technology this has been possible. In addition,
the team have adapted to undertaking DSE assessments via technology – reviewing the
work space and the positon of the user using video consultation methods.
Prevent influenza transmission
A full influenza vaccination campaign was undertaken from late September 2020 –
November 2020 – this was shorter than normal due to the implementation of the COVID
vaccination programme as well as the significant early uptake received this year. Ninety
five per cent of our frontline staff received their vaccination. Due to social distancing
requirements, we set up an online booking system which was extremely successful in
complying with COVID secure measures as well as reminding staff of their vaccination
appointment. We increased the number of nurses available to deliver the programme and
invested in a further ‘flu tent’ so the areas could be cleaned between each staff member
receiving the vaccination. The programme was also supported by over 120 local peer
vaccinators in their area. This is the highest level of uptake that our organisation has
achieved in this area.
Our success in this programme, was undoubtedly as a result of increased resource to
ensure high accessibility of the vaccines being available to all staff, alongside strong
medical and nursing leadership together with the support of a dedicated software
programme and prominent communications plan.
In other aspects of work, we successfully submitted our annual review of the Faculty of
Occupational Medicine SEQOHS (Safe, Effective, Quality OH Service) accreditation
programme following the full five year assessment in July 2017.
As far as external business is concerned, we have been delighted to continue to our
success with our current customers and gaining some significant new contracts during this
last year. In fact we commenced delivery to three significant contracts despite their being
a global pandemic. Our team has expanded due to the new business acquired and we
have been ensuring that all team members have successful inductions so that all our
customers receive a high quality service. As part of our team expansion, we have also
been able to internally promote some members of the nursing team who have developed
well into their new roles.
Our Consultant in Occupational Medicine, Dr Rob Hardman continues to also hold the
position of Director of Quality, accreditation and audit with the Faculty of Occupational
Medicine.
This is a great asset to the quality of our own team ensuring we are the forerunners of
implementing any changes in guidance, legislation or good practice. Equally, the Head of
Workplace Health and Wellbeing, Hilary Winch has continued to work with other regional
OH leads on the regional and national streamlining project which endeavours to allow
information to be transferred between NHS organisations on staff members who are
moving employment in this last year.
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She has been instrumental in working with NHS Improvement on consistency in standards
for screening and immunisation requirements for health care workers.
In addition, she continues to lead MoHaWK (Management of Health at Work Knowledge
system) for the Faculty of Occupational Medicine which is the only national OH system to
support local audit and benchmarking. As part of this role, she also contributes to the
management of the SEQOHS accreditation scheme.
Health & Wellbeing / Staff Experience Working Group
There have been two prominent pieces of work undertaken by sub-groups led by the
Head of Workplace Health and Wellbeing over the last 12 months.
Staff Rest areas
A working group was formed to discuss ideas for improving the rest facilities available to
staff. Following the initial proposal that was submitted to the estates team which included
a number of indoor and outdoor suggestions, some more detailed design plans and
costings are being developed with architects. Larger scale options were also included for
consideration into the Estates Strategy and included a Wellness centre on the periphery of
site. The improvement of rest facilities is starting to be seen as the redesign of the East
Atrium has commenced.
Smoke Free NHS Estate
In line with Public Health England recommendations, we have been working to ensure we
implement a completely smoke free estate. Whilst, in theory NNUH has been a smoke
free site since 2005, it has not been well adhered to. By not enforcing this we have been
endorsing the health risk behaviours and as a leading healthcare provider, we should
instead be supporting healthy behaviours. A working party has been operational for the
last two years to consider the steps that need to be taken and consider the impact of
those who smoke on our site from staff, patients, visitors and contractors.
A wide range of actions have already taken place which includes:
x A review of the staff policy with staff engagement forums taking place
x Developing new signage for the site
x Liaising with all contractors on site and full communications plan to the general
public in Norfolk.
x Patients to be prescribed fast acting nicotine replacement therapy on admission to
manage their nicotine addiction
x Availability of fast acting nicotine replacement therapy for visitors, staff and
contractors through the retail outlets on site.
x Support for all being provided through referrals to Smokefree Norfolk
Our full launch programme could not take place last year due to the pandemic – but a soft
launch was undertaken and now (after industries are returning to work following lockdown)
the permanent signage will be installed as we progress through March / April 2021.
Monthly PRIDE award scheme based on our Trust Values: People-focused,
Respect, Integrity, Dedication and Excellence
Each month there are up to two members of staff and quarterly there are one team who
receive recognition through this scheme. Members of the staff experience working group
review the monthly nominations and make decisions regarding winners. This initiative
continues to be really well received.
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Staff Development
Apprenticeships
During the financial year of 2020/21, we have seen 141 staff commence on an
apprenticeship; 83 are existing staff and 58 are new apprentices, of these 23 are 16-18
years old. We continue to play a leading role within the region for apprenticeships and at
the beginning of 2021 we won the Large Apprenticeship Employer of the Year at the
Apprenticeship Norfolk Awards.
We also had a number of apprentices from the Trust who were Winners and Highly
Commended in the ‘Achievement in Exceptional Circumstances’, ‘Intermediate Apprentice
of the Year’, and ‘Advanced Apprentice of the Year’ categories.
We have supported a wide range of apprenticeship training enabling us to develop staff of
all levels, from entry level apprentices through to Consultants and Senior Managers. We
have been very successful in the recruitment to our Trainee Nurse Associate
apprenticeship programme, with 20% joining the Trust through the Level 2 apprenticeship
route and progressing onto the TNA roles, ensuring we are growing our own highly skilled
nursing workforce.

As face to face contact stopped due to Covid-19, the year 2020-21 has seen all our
traditional ways of liaising with schools, colleges and students being transferred to virtual
platforms and social media. The Career Development team has created a library of new
materials and worked with teams across the organisation to create virtual career
opportunities and speciality specific promotional materials to ensure we can continue to
promote careers within the NHS and social care. During 2020-2021 we delivered specialty
specific ‘Career Weeks’ ‘Career Information Days’, and ‘1-1 Career Discussions’ which
were offered several times a month to support local students and the wider community.
We are working with local training providers on the development of their T-Level
programmes, and Healthcare Science BTECs commencing in September 2021 to ensure
students will be obtaining qualifications and work experience that will enable them to
pursue careers within the NHS and social care.
Project Search
Project SEARCH is a work focused Education programme for young people aged 18 to 25
years who have a learning difficulty or learning disability. This project is a joint venture
between Norwich City College, Serco and our hospital and has now been running for 11
years. Each year ten students will gain experience in three different job roles with the aim
for them to gain paid employment, either at the hospital or within the wider community by
the end of the programme. Since commencing in 2009, 127 students have accessed the
programme.
Following the recruitment for the 2020/2021 programme, eight students started in
September 2020 and have been attending various placements across Serco and the main
hospital site. These include, grounds maintenance, housekeeping, post room, linen porter
service and radiotherapy team in the role of radiotherapy assistant.
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Step into Health
Step into Health supports members of the Armed Forces community to gain an
understanding of the employment opportunities within health and social care. Our
programme has developed to become a partnership offering with other regional
organisations including Norfolk Community Health and Care, Serco, Norfolk and Suffolk
Care Support, Norfolk and Suffolk Foundation Trust, James Paget University Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust, Queen Elizabeth Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, East of England
Ambulance Service, and Primary Care.
Due to Covid-19, the Information Morning in June 2020 was cancelled, however the
November event was transferred to a virtual platform supported by all partners, and had
23 attendees.
Step Into Work – (Job Centre – Sector Based Work Academy)
Our work with the Department of Work and Pensions on the Sector Based Work
Academy, now known as ‘Step Into Work Programme’, continues in partnership with
Serco, and all NHS and social care partners across the Norfolk and Waveney Integrated
Care System (ICS).
In response to the pandemic we created a virtual four week SITW Programme working in
partnership with City College Norwich and SpingPod. It delivers the Level 1 Award in
Employability Skills and online virtual work experience in which the participants learn
about all NHS and social care organisations and services across the ICS System.
To date we have delivered two virtual programmes: in November 2020 we recruited 23
candidates of which 11 completed programme; January 2021 we recruited 20 participants
with ten completing. Plans are now being developed for a programme beginning at the
end of April 2021.
Prince’s Trust
We have worked in partnership with the Prince’s Trust for over ten years. However, due
to Covid-19 all face-to-face work experience was paused which has impacted on the
programmes we have been able to offer during 2021-2021. As an ICS we are working
closely with the Prince’s Trust to support a new pilot role which will be hosted by the
Workforce Partnership. The role will work with all ICS partners to establish new work
experience opportunities for young people in our community.
Kickstart Programme
The Government is providing funding for employers to create six-month job placements
for young people (16-24 years old) who are currently on Universal Credit, and at risk of
long-term unemployment. Each applicant receives a salary for a placement of up to 25
hours per week for a period of six months. Working with the Department for Works and
Pensions, the Trust has been funded for 75 placements across clinical and non-clinical
areas. The programme is open for applications until December 2021 and we anticipate
additional placements to be requested.
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Health and Safety
The Health and Safety team advises on staff safety in relation to the main risks present in
a healthcare environment. The team assists with risk assessment and incident
investigation as well as proactively auditing and monitoring standards and compliance
across all Trust premises.
In January 2020 the Health and Safety Lead Advisor had left the Trust and a replacement
for the role was recruited and joined in late May. During the interim period the
management of the team was undertaken by the Head of Workplace Health and
Wellbeing, Occupational Health to ensure that the team had access to guidance and
coordination.
During 2020 and continuing through to 2021, the Covid-19 pandemic had taken effect
and priorities alternated on a frequent basis to meet the needs and safety of staff working
in administrative and clinical operations. The team also managed to continue elements of
its usual service.
The main ‘business as usual’ projects for the year 2020/2021 were:
x

x

x

Continued education and advice to staff following previous changes to waste
contracts and suppliers. We aim to ensure the safety of staff, patients, the public
and the environment by the safe and effective segregation and management of all
classes of waste leaving our sites. This also involved interaction with the External
Dangerous Good Safety Advisor including the managing and implementation of
controls to mitigate any findings observed.
Offering advice and guidance in conjunction with the Trust Estates team for safety
and fire regarding major projects including building works around the sites. The
team has been involved in new and existing planning processes to consider the
safety of anyone affected by such works and to help ensure that relevant controls
are in place for the safety of all users once works are completed. This has also
started to encompass advising on future projects when they are in the early
stages of the planning phase.
Continued management of the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health
(COSHH) electronic system. Including working with clinical teams on the safe
storage of chemicals and ensuring the recommended Personal Protective
Equipment (PPE) is available.

The main Covid-19 related projects for the year 2020/2021 were:
x

x
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Face ‘Fit Testing’ Clinics were managed by the team to ensure staff had well fitted
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) such as FFP3 standard face masks. An inhouse team of testers was established to provide competent fit-testing to
colleagues who would need to wear enhanced PPE. The first clinic was
implemented from April to June 2020 and a further clinic was arranged from
January to Mid-February and a roaming team currently in place for March 2021.
The team implemented the Generic Workplace Risk Assessment to aid the Trust in
delivering a COVID secure workplace in predominately administration areas. The
risk assessment follows the directives set out in the Government guidance
documents. To support the template, a guidance document provided additional
information on the completion of the risk assessment.

x

x

The team also provided advice, guidance and collaboration with all teams on
assessments of our environments to safeguard colleagues, patients and members
of the public within the Trust premises.
Support was provided to the PPE Review Panel to ensure the continued
development of our PPE/RPE processes to ensure the protection of staff and
patients from infection.

Training
The Health and Safety team develops and delivers training packages as well as ensuring
that there are competent trainers to cover the mandatory training needs of the
organisation. The training covers topics such as fire safety, health and safety, manual
handling, prevention and management of aggression, chemicals and waste.
Due to the pandemic, the provision of prevention and management of aggression (PMA)
was put on hold because colleagues would need to be in close proximity to one another.
As a mitigation, a copy of the training handout was provided to all colleagues that would
require this training to familiarise themselves with the concept and basics of PMA. This
was also supported with guidance on how to assign to the eLearning package to support
the handout. Manual Handling Induction and Refresher training has continued throughout
the pandemic in a covid controlled environment which also included maximising the
numbers of attendees to ten colleagues.
The pandemic has shown the importance of the eLearning system as a provision of
support for face-to-face training and has been vital in ensuring training can continue. The
adoption of new technology has also been a positive experience which allows for Training
sessions to be completed virtually via Teams, such as Medical Students and Volunteers
from other organisations. The training process is regularly evaluated and reviewed to
ensure it is effective.
Incidents
There are five categories of health and safety related incidents that are reported most
frequently for staff. These are slips, trips and falls, needle-stick and sharps injury, patient
moving and handling, verbal aggression and physical aggression.
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR)
Incidents
During the period April 2020 to March 2021 the Health and Safety Department reported a
total of 19 incidents to the Health and Safety Executive as they met the schedule of
RIDDOR. 18 of these were related to colleagues; 1 due to a fractured wrist and the
remaining because of absences of over 7 days. There was 1 reported because of a
fractured hip to a member of the public.
This is a reduction of 47.5% reporting compared to 2019/20 which had a total of 40
incidents being reported for the period. Most incidents in 2020/21 were reported in Q3
with 13 compared to 4 in Q1 and 2 in Q4. The number of RIDDOR incidents is reflected as
an incidence rate against the national average. The Trust’s overall incidence rate is 189
per 100,000 employees. The national incidence rate for healthcare in 2019/20 was 350.
More detail on health and safety performance is included within the Health and Safety
Annual Report that is presented to the Trust Health and Safety Committee.
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NHS Improvement’s
Single Oversight Framework
NHS England and NHS Improvement’s NHS Oversight Framework provides the
framework for overseeing providers and identifying potential support needs.
The Single Oversight Framework (SOF) looks at five themes:
• quality of care
• finance and use of resources
• operational performance
• strategic change
• leadership and improvement capability (well-led)
Based on information from these themes, providers are segmented from 1 to 4, where ‘4’
reflects providers receiving the most support, and ‘1’ reflects providers with maximum
autonomy. A foundation trust will only be in segments 3 or 4 where it has been found to be
in breach or suspected breach of its licence.
The Trust is in segment 3, which is described as ‘mandated and targeted
support’. Support needs identified in Quality of care, Finance and use of resources and
Operational performance.
By way of letter dated 13 May 2020 the NHSE/I National Improvement Director confirmed:
“I am delighted to be able to confirm that……the Trust will from today no longer be in
special measures. I can also confirm that the trust will move from segment 4 to
segment 3 of the SOF and the regional team will be in contact with you to agree
refreshed undertakings shortly. I recognise the challenges that will be facing all trusts
at the present time, and this will be reflected in our agreed approach for the future.
I am pleased to note that the CQC’s published report rated the Trust as remaining
‘requires improvement’ and ‘good’ in the effective and caring domains. The report
showed significant improvement and the CQC referenced key improvements in relation
to leadership and governance and that the Trust is taking a proactive approach to
working with its partners to develop care pathways, ensure sustainability of quality
improvement as well as encouraging staff development. However further work is
required to ensure the effective use of resources and support will be required to ensure
all executives and the wider board are focused on the financial position and challenges
at the trust.
This is a time to celebrate the progress that the trust has made, and I recognise the
hard work and commitment of all of your staff in delivering this outcome. Given that the
trust’s CQC rating is still ‘requires improvement’ NHS England & NHS Improvement
regional
team will continue to work with you and your team to provide targeted support, that will
of course take into account the extremely challenging current situation of the COVID-19
virus, and help you build on the commendable improvements that have already been
made…….
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It is certainly encouraging that the hard work of so many people has resulted in this
very positive outcome for the local population and thank you for your unwavering
commitment. I look forward to seeing the Trust’s continued progress.”

NHSI is consulting with regard to a new System Oversight Framework and is liaising with
the Trust regarding updated Licence Undertakings.
This segmentation information is the Trust’s position at 31 March 2021. Current
segmentation information for NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the NHS
Improvement website.
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Statement of the chief executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of Norfolk and Norwich
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS foundation trust. The
relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and
regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement.
NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, has given
Accounts Directions which require the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust to
prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis required by those
Directions. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual and
in particular to:
x

observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis

x

make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

x

state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual) have
been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements

x

ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated authorities and
guidance

x

confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS
foundation trust’s performance, business model and strategy and

x

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material
uncertainties over going concern.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and to enable them to ensure that
the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS foundation trust and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the foundation trust’s auditors
are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
Signed

Sam Higginson
Chief Executive
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Date: 1 June 2021

Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also
responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting
Officer Memorandum.
The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of the Norfolk and Norwich University
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Norfolk and Norwich
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
Capacity to handle risk
The Board of Directors has approved a Risk Management Strategy, which sets out the
Board’s approach to risk management, its Risk Appetite and accountability and reporting
arrangements for the management of risk within the Trust.
The Chief Nurse is the Executive Director lead for Risk Management and operational
responsibility for implementation of the Strategy and Policy is delegated to other named
staff. The Risk Management Strategy has been made available to all Trust staff through
our documents management system, called Trust Docs.
In addition to established processes for learning from incidents and patient feedback, the
focus of our risk management approach is on proactively identifying and avoiding risks,
rather than simply reacting to risks which have materialised. To enhance our capacity and
capability in this regard the Trust has a designated Risk Manager and an Associate
Director of Quality and Safety, to oversee the system of risk management in the Trust.
The Risk Management Team co-ordinates and supports risk activity across the Trust, in
close liaison with the divisional and clinical teams.
The Hospital Management Board has an established Risk Oversight Committee which is
tasked, through defined Terms of Reference, to enhance our arrangements for the
identification and management of risk and development of the Trust’s Risk Maturity.
Membership of the Risk Oversight Committee includes representation from the Divisional
Management Teams and the Committee reports into a regular session of the Hospital
Management Board at which the Corporate Risk Register (CRR) and highest-level risks
are reviewed and discussed. Reports relating to the Risk Management System and
Processes form a regular item for discussion by the Audit Committee as part of its annual
reporting cycle. The CRR also informs updating of the Board Assurance Framework
(BAF), which documents the principal threats to achievement of the Trust’s Strategic
Objectives, together with key controls and assurances and any gaps in those controls and
assurances.
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The Trust’s mandatory corporate induction programme includes information concerning
both clinical and non-clinical risk, the Trust’s approach to managing risk and maximising
quality in patient care. In addition, a range of ongoing risk management training is
provided to staff and there are policies in place which describe roles and responsibilities
concerning the identification, management and control of risk. Such training covers
requirements for the safe delivery of services, proper use of equipment and wider aspects
of management, health and safety and quality assurance.
The Trust has arrangements in place to ensure that we learn from good practice through a
range of mechanisms, including clinical supervision, reflective practice, individual and
peer reviews, appraisal and performance management, continuing professional
development, clinical audit and application of evidence-based practice. The
implementation of guidance from the National Institute of Clinical Excellence (NICE) is
overseen by the Clinical Safety and Effectiveness Governance Sub-Board.
Reduction of risk and maintenance of quality are promoted by constantly reinforcing a
culture of openness and transparency and encouraging staff to identify opportunities to
learn from patient feedback and to improve the care and services we provide. We have
introduced a robust programme of work associated with quality improvement and
reduction of risk through our Quality Programme Board supported by an Evidence Group.
Whilst the Trust continues to mature in its approach to managing risk, the progress we
have made since its last inspection was recognised by the CQC in its report of April 2020.
The CQC noted specifically “Risk management was generally more effective with an
increased responsibility of the divisions in managing their risk. There were clear
processes to identify, escalate and mitigate risk which was an improvement since our last
inspection”.
The risk and control framework
The Board has approved a Risk Management Strategy which sets out the approach to
managing risk within the organisation. The Risk Management Strategy and associated
policies define the key roles, responsibilities and reporting lines in relation to the
management of risk, as well as the overall governance structure underpinning this at both
Board and divisional/directorate level. The Strategy details the Trust’s approach to
identification, evaluation, control and reporting of risk as well as a statement of the
Board’s Risk Appetite, which was last agreed by the Board at its meeting December 2020.
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the vision and values and the strategic
objectives of the Trust. The Board receives regular reports which detail risk, financial and
performance issues and actions being taken to reduce identified high level risks or control
issues. This reporting to the Board of Directors is supported through the Trust’s
governance structure, as detailed in the Trust’s Organisational Framework for
Governance, which details the roles of the Board assurance committees, together with the
Hospital Management Board, its Committees and Governance Sub–Boards.
The Board of Directors has four established assurance Committees, covering areas of
Quality and Safety; Finance, Investments and Performance; People and Culture; and
Audit. The Board receives regular reports from each of its Committees and the overall
governance and assurance structure is as represented below:

124

The Board’s Audit Committee has responsibility to oversee the maintenance of an
effective system of integrated governance, risk management and internal control, across
the Trust’s activities. The Terms of Reference for the Trust’s Audit Committee are based
on the model contained in the HFMA NHS Audit Committee Handbook 2018, and also
reflect the UK Corporate Governance Code (2018) and ICSA Guidance on Terms of
Reference for Audit Committees (2020). The Committee is tasked with reviewing the
adequacy of the structures, processes and responsibilities within the Trust for identifying
and managing key risks.
The Board has established an Organisational Framework for Governance, which sets out
the responsibilities for each of the Board assurance committees to review key risks arising
within their respective areas of remit.
Each stream within our system of integrated governance is led by a Senior Risk Owner
and supported by appropriate teams and management information aiding our corporate
and divisional delivery:
• Clinical Governance – led by the Chief Nurse and Medical Director
• Financial Governance – led by the Chief Financial Officer
• Information Governance – led by the Chief Information Officer
• Research Governance – led by the Medical Director
• Workforce and Education Governance – led by the Chief People Officer
• Divisional Governance – led by the Chief Operating Officer
Threats to delivery of the Trust’s Strategic Objectives are recorded in the BAF which
identifies the assurances available to the Board of Directors in relation to the achievement
of those Objectives. The Executive Director with delegated responsibility for managing
and monitoring each strategic threat is clearly identified, as is the relevant Board
Assurance Committee. The BAF also details the actions to be taken to provide additional
assurance and to counter the identified threats.
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The CQC considered the BAF and associated processes (April 2020) and reported: “We
reviewed the BAF [and] found all the threats to strategic objectives RAG rated with
mitigating actions. There were clear review processes and dates documented for each at
relevant review committees and management board. The BAF was discussed at trust
board. Minutes showed appropriate assurance was received regarding control and
mitigations.”
Internal Auditors also reviewed the BAF and reported in March 2021 “We confirmed the
BAF clearly outlines the Trust’s strategic objectives and the associated threats to the
achievement of these objectives………….the Trust’s format provides for effective
oversight of the key risks to the Trust’s strategic objectives.” (p19)
Information and assurance is provided to the Board through:
x scrutiny of key data and metrics reported through a monthly Integrated Performance
Report – available to the Board, Governors, staff and public (via our website);
x the work of and reports from the Board’s assurance committees;
x ‘triangulation’ of information from diverse sources including reports and presentations
from clinical teams, internal and external audit, external reports and the Board
programme of clinical and departmental visits.
Risk is assessed at all levels in the organisation from the Board of Directors to individual
wards and departments. This ensures that both strategic and operational risks are
identified and addressed and risk assessment information is held in an organisation-wide
Risk Register. A risk scoring matrix is used to ensure that a consistent approach is taken
to assessing and responding to clinical and non-clinical risks.
Those risks with a high residual risk rating (following the impact of appropriate mitigating
actions) are detailed in a Corporate Risk Register – reported to both the Board of
Directors and Management Board. High level risks are also reviewed by each of the
Board assurance committees as relevant to their individual remits. This structure and
process is intended to facilitate a cohesive risk management system operating from ward
to Board.
The Hospital Management Board is tasked through its Terms of Reference with assisting
me in effectively discharging my duties as Accounting Officer and with overseeing the
identification and mitigation of key risks arising from or relevant to the operation of the
Trust. It oversees the work of three Governance Sub-Boards, with areas of focus
constructed so as to be consistent with the inspection regime of the Care Quality
Commission under the following headings:
x Clinical Safety and Effectiveness
x Patient Engagement and Experience
x Workforce & Education
The Management Board has also established a number of other Committees to scrutinise
and support areas such as Financial Improvement and Productivity, Research and Capital
Planning. Each of the Management Board committees and governance sub-boards have
Terms of Reference and they report to the Management Board on areas of risk or issues
that require escalation.
A Divisional Performance Committee also oversees the work of our clinically-led Divisions.
Our divisional structure forms a key part of our management and governance structure
and each of the divisions is represented in the membership of the Management Board.
During 2020/21 we have maintained a Performance and Accountability Framework to
support oversight of the Divisions and the Finance, Investments and Performance
Committee receives regular reports on use of the Framework.
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A schedule of Executive portfolios (‘Who Leads on What’) is well-established and is
available to Management Board and Trust staff on the TrustDocs system. It is reviewed
periodically as part of the ongoing Executive Team and Board Development Programme,
so that there remains clarity and assurance over capacity and capability with regard to
leadership for all aspects of the Trust.
In its most recent assessment of the Trust the CQC found that “The governance structure
was effective in supporting the delivery of the current strategy and of supporting the
divisions and staff to deliver high quality care.”
CQC Registration:
The Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission.
The last published report from a full inspection by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
was issued in April 2020. The overall rating for the Trust was that it 'Requires
Improvement'. In its report the CQC judged the Trust to be 'Good' for the domains of
Caring and Effectiveness, 'Requires Improvement' in the domains of 'Safety, Well-led and
Responsiveness'.
The CQC reports identified a number of actions that the Trust ‘must’ and ‘should’ take in
order to improve. Implementation of the associated action plan to implement the
necessary changes has been tracked and monitored through the Trust’s Quality
Programme Board and the Quality and Safety Committee.
In December 2020, the CQC also undertook a focussed inspection of our Emergency
Department. They identified a number of improvements from previous inspections, for
example “Staff felt respected, supported, and valued. They were focused on the needs of
patients receiving care“ and “Staff at all levels were clear about their roles and
accountabilities and had regular opportunities to meet, discuss and learn from the
performance of the service”. The Hospital was however under pressure at the time due to
the Covid pandemic and the CQC found that aspects of the Department required
improvement notably in the domain of Safety. The areas in which the CQC said that the
ED must improve were in relation to the processes and timeliness of triage and
performance against targets such as the 4-hour wait. Their ‘Requires Improvement’ rating
was accompanied by a Warning Notice under Section 29A of the Health and Social Care
Act 2008, in accordance with which the Trust has submitted to the CQC an Improvement
Plan to implement the necessary changes.
We look forward to welcoming the CQC team to the Trust again in due course, so that we
can demonstrate our continuing improvement.
Other compliance issues
As part of its internal control framework, the Trust has established Business Continuity
processes of Emergency Preparedness Resilience and Responsiveness. These EPRR
processes are designed and maintained in accordance with NHSE guidance, with
assurance oversight through the Audit Committee.
In 2020/21 the Trust’s arrangements for business continuity was tested as never before
through the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic. Instead of the usual annual review
against the EPRR standards, this year the national requirements were to undertake a
review of the organisation’s response to Pandemic Phase I & II. The associated report
was reviewed by the Trust Management Board on 29 September and the Board of
Directors on 7 October 2020.
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The Trust has published on its website an up-to-date register of interests, including gifts
and hospitality, for decision-making staff (as defined by the Trust with reference to the
guidance) within the past twelve months as required by the Managing Conflicts of Interest
in the NHS guidance.
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. Such measures include
staff training, policy frameworks and engagement with relevant staff networks.
The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a sustainable development
management plan in place which takes account of UK Climate Projections 2018
(UKCP18). The Trust ensures that its obligations under the Climate Change Act and the
Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.
The Trust recognises the crucial role played by its staff in delivering services to our
patients and the Board has a People and Culture Committee, which is an assurance
committee and strategic group, with a membership consisting of Board members and
divisional leaders. The Hospital Management Board also established a Workforce and
Education Governance Sub Board (WESB), chaired by the Chief People Officer and with
representation from across the divisions and the Human Resources and Education
directorate.
Through this governance structure the Trust ensures scrutiny of all aspects of people
related issues and performance, including safe staffing, safe deployment, learning and
development, cultural improvement, sickness, appraisal, mandatory training, retention,
recruitment and temporary staffing. Any people related risks that arise from the divisional
boards are presented at the WESB for appropriate consideration and intervention. The
WESB also provides an assurance structure with regard to the ‘Developing Workforce
Safeguards’, within its remit covering safe recruitment, skills levels, safe care and
deployment (both substantive and temporary).
Significant and Strategic Risks
Threats to delivery of the Trust’s Strategic Objectives are recorded in the Board
Assurance Framework (BAF), the actions to be taken to provide additional assurance and
to counter the identified threats.
In its assessment of the Trust, reported April 2020, the CQC found that “The executive
directors, chair and non-executive directors we spoke with all agreed on the most
significant risks for the organisation. These included finance, staffing, and capacity. This
was completely aligned to the trust risk register as well as the BAF. All could describe the
controls in place and their individual responsibilities in addressing these concerns”.
During the course of 2020/21 the Board and the Board Assurance Committees have
reviewed the most significant risks facing the Trust, as follows:
i)
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Capacity: high levels of elective demand, and prolonged waiting times in the
aftermath of the acute pandemic, have created risks for delivery of the Trust’s
performance targets for cancer, 18-weeks and diagnostics, leading to extended
waiting times and use of expensive temporary or outsourced capacity;

ii)

Finance: if the Trust is to deliver financially sustainable high quality services to
patients, there is a need to enhance financial controls, implement operational
transformation, achieve system-wide service redesign and secure support for the
structural element of the Trust’s financial deficit;
Covid 19 pandemic & emergency demand: at the time of writing in May, the
Trust’s Operational Position is one of ‘Severe Pressure’ even at a point at which
rates of Covid-19 infection are relatively low. The Trust faces risks associated with
high levels of emergency demand, in addition to which there is the risk of further
pandemic peaks or waves;
Capital: lack of capital available for investment in services for patients and staff,
creates a current and future risk especially with regard to diagnostic capacity,
digital technology, staff facilities, elective capacity, education infrastructure and
pharmacy.
Quality: systems, processes and teams that are insufficiently resilient and
consistent in practice, or inadequate in capacity, can result in diminished standards
of patient experience and quality outcomes;
Digital: immaturity and vulnerability in the Trust’s digital infrastructure creates risk
to cyber security, operational resilience, quality and efficiency.

iii)

iv)

v)
vi)

The Trust has mitigating actions in place to minimise the potential impact of these risks so
far as practicably possible, with the impact of these assessed through reports to the Board
and in particular the metrics set out in the monthly Integrated Performance Report. The
Board of Directors and Board assurance committees regularly seek assurance on the
effectiveness of the controls and progress being made to address gaps in control and
assurance to reduce the level of risk. Very significant challenges remain however with
regard to the Trust’s operational and financial sustainability in the current organisational
configuration and price structure of the health economy.
Licence Undertakings:
NHSI, the independent regulator of Foundation Trusts, has previously investigated the
Trust’s non-achievement of national operational performance targets and quality
challenges as highlighted by the CQC. Coming into 2020/21 the Trust was in Special
Measures for reasons of Quality and Licence Undertakings had been in place since
2015/16.
By way of letter dated 13 May 2020 the NHSE/I National Improvement Director confirmed:
“I am delighted to be able to confirm that…the Trust will from today no longer be in
special measures. I can also confirm that the trust will move from segment 4 to
segment 3 of the [Single Oversight Framework] and the regional team will be in contact
with you to agree refreshed undertakings shortly….
I am pleased to note that the CQC’s published report rated the Trust as remaining
‘requires improvement’ and ‘good’ in the effective and caring domains. The report
showed significant improvement and the CQC referenced key improvements in relation
to leadership and governance and that the Trust is taking a proactive approach to
working with its partners to develop care pathways, ensure sustainability of quality
improvement as well as encouraging staff development. However further work is
required to ensure the effective use of resources and support will be required to ensure
all executives and the wider board are focused on the financial position and challenges
at the trust.
This is a time to celebrate the progress that the Trust has made, and I recognise the
hard work and commitment of all of your staff in delivering this outcome. Given that the
trust’s CQC rating is still ‘requires improvement’ NHS England & NHS Improvement
regional team will continue to work with you and your team to provide targeted support,
that will of course take into account the extremely challenging current situation of the
COVID-19 virus, and help you build on the commendable improvements that have
already been made…….
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It is certainly encouraging that the hard work of so many people has resulted in this
very positive outcome for the local population and thank you for your unwavering
commitment. I look forward to seeing the Trust’s continued progress.”
The Trust has subsequently agreed revised Licence Undertakings with NHSE/I. Key
elements of the Undertakings are that they require the Trust to:
x work with its partners in the N&W ICS to develop and take all reasonable steps to
deliver an Urgent and Emergency Improvement Plan, an Elective Improvement Plan
and a Cancer Improvement Plan by 30 June 2021;
x deliver financial performance in FY20/21 as part of the STP Financial Envelope, to
improve its underlying financial position in FY21/22 and to work with its partners in the
N&W ICS to develop a Medium Term Financial Improvement Plan by Q3 FY21/22;
x further develop and deliver its Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) by 30 June 2021.
NHSE/I has confirmed its belief that implementation of the actions identified will ensure
that relevant Licence breaches do not continue or recur.
Incident Reporting and Raising Concerns
Incident and near-miss reporting is encouraged across all staff groups and specialties
across the Trust within an open culture focussed on learning and improvement. The Trust
has a single web based incident reporting system which is used by all staff groups to
record patient and staff safety incidents, near misses and serious incidents. The number
and type of incidents reported and learning from these incidents is disseminated and
monitored through the risk and governance structure and a communication route to all
staff based on Organisation Wide Learning (OWL) newsletters, Safer Practice Notices and
updates through the Clinical Safety and Effectiveness Governance Sub-Board.
The Trust has established a daily multi-professional Serious Incident Group (SIG) which
reviews high-rated incidents or near misses, to identify and share learning, ensure any
immediate safety actions are taken as well as compliance with the statutory Duty of
Candour. The Quality and Safety Committee receives regular reports with regard to the
rate of incident reporting in the Trust and the investigation and learning from incidents.
The Trust has a full-time Freedom to Speak-up Guardian (FTSUG) in post to support staff
in raising concerns and putting forward suggestions as to how we might make further
improvement in the Trust and its services. The FTSUG reports regularly to the Hospital
Management Board and the Trust Board’s People and Culture Committee, so there is
transparency with regard to any issues of concern affecting or raised by staff.
Involvement of Stakeholders in Risk
The Trust liaises with its commissioners throughout the year in relation to risk through
regular meetings to review contract/clinical quality matters. The Trust works closely with
other local organisations which are part of the formal structure for NHS patient and public
involvement, such as the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Healthwatch.
Our Foundation Trust has a membership with approximately 17,000 public members,
many of whom are actively involved with the Trust in a number of ways, including a
Patient Panel and a regular programme of meetings for members about different aspects
of our activities. Inevitably, such activities have been disrupted this year by the pandemic
restrictions but we have sought to optimise engagement as possible, through initiatives
such as digital communication, remote access to public meetings and a virtual AGM.
The members elect governors who sit on the Trust’s Council of Governors and who
represent the views of members when contributing to development of the Trust’s forward
plans and priorities. The Trust’s Council of Governors receives regular updates on
strategic developments in the Trust and performance against key targets and governance
requirements.
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The views of patients are sought in a variety of additional ways, including patient
electronic surveys, nationally mandated surveys, comment cards and other activities. The
Board receives regular reports on feedback from patients through the Patient Engagement
and Experience Governance Sub-Board. The Trust has appointed a Lead for Patient
Experience and Engagement and established a Patient Panel, to strengthen the Patient
Voice in the life of the Trust and in the development of its services. The Board also
receives patient feedback through a programme of Patient Stories at the beginning of
public Board meetings.
Further information regarding patient and public engagement in the Trust is included in the
Annual Report.
Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Trust’s operational Plan for 2020/21 was approved by the Board of Directors following
review by the Council of Governors and then submitted to and accepted by NHSEI.
During the year, the Trust had to review the aims of its Operational Plan as it responded
to the COVID-19 pandemic. However, Management Board continued to monitor both nonfinancial and financial performance against revised targets. Progress against cost
improvement programmes continued to be monitored through a Programme Management
Office process reporting to the Financial Improvement & Productivity Committee and the
Management Board.
Assurance with regard to delivery of the Operational Plan was sought on behalf of the
Board of Directors through the Board assurance committees via reports covering activity,
workforce, quality, safety and finance. The process to ensure that resources are used
economically, efficiently and effectively across clinical services includes Divisional
Performance Reviews meetings, the clinical audit programme and the regular monitoring
of clinical indicators covering quality and safety.
The Trust’s Internal Audit Plan is determined having regard to the Trust Risk Register and
audits include objectives ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources
and this is applied across all audits. The findings of internal audit reports are reported to
the Audit Committee and other Board assurance committees as relevant.
The Trust was subject to a Use of Resources review in December 2019 and the resulting
report was published in April 2020. Overall the Trust was rated as ‘requires improvement’,
reflecting the Trust’s financial deficit and inability to consistently achieve the constitutional
operational standards.
The report identified a number of areas as having scope for improvement, including
initiatives to reduce length of stay, improve performance against constitutional operational
standards, identify and drive transformational cost improvement programmes and review
the workforce model and recruitment strategies to identify and implement innovative ways
to address workforce gaps.
A formal response to the Use of Resources assessment was developed and submitted to
NHSE&I, outlining the actions the Trust will take as part of our ‘journey to outstanding’.
The response consisted of strategic enablers running alongside a clear tactical action plan
to address the specific recommendations outlined within the report.
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The four key interventions identified were:
1. A detailed, independent review of the Trust’s financial governance;
2. A refresh of the Trust’s medium term financial strategy, in line within NHSE&I best
practice guidance;
3. A review of the Trust’s improvement functions with a view to enhancing the alignment
of resources to drive further efficiency and transformation across the organisation
through adoption of consistent governance principles. This commenced with the
integration of the Use of Resources action plan within the overarching response to the
CQC report and associated governance, through the Quality Programme Board; and
4. A tactical action plan, initially focussed on the recommendations, which will be
supplemented by further actions, as identified.
The independent Financial Governance Review (FGR) was completed in October 2020
across five Financial Domains. The review identified 53 recommendations, 23 of which
were designated as ‘Must Do’. This led to the development of a detailed Tactical Action
Plan consisting of 65 individual actions for completion.
An internal audit review of the Trust’s progress against the recommendations has been
completed in February 2021, which identified that positive progress has been made
against the recommendations across each of the five domains.
The Trust has and will continue to review its position with regard to Getting It Right First
Time (GIRFT), agency spend, procurement and efficiencies highlighted by the Lord Carter
review, including enhancing its use of Model Hospital. Alongside working closely with local
and regional partners to delivery transformational changes that support the delivery of a
value for money efficient service as part of the local health economy.
Information Governance and Cyber Security
The Trust has in place a Cyber Code of Conduct and Information Governance procedures
which set out the Trust’s commitment to ensuring that information is efficiently and
effectively handled, managed and safeguarded.
This policy framework is supported by an information governance structure including:
• Information Governance Steering Group
• Caldicott Advisory Group
• Digital Transformation Committee
The Chief Information Officer is the Trust’s Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO),
reporting to the Board of Directors, and the Medical Director is the Trust’s Caldicott
Guardian. This structure is supported by a deputy SIRO (the Associate Director for Digital
Health) and a deputy Caldicott Guardian (the Chief Clinical Information Officer). Senior
managers across the Trust are information asset owners, accountable for a particular
group of information assets under the Information Governance policy and management
framework.
2020/21 has seen an expansion to both the Information Governance and the IT
Security/Cyber Security teams and additional resources identified to help oversee daily
information governance and IT security operations. The Trust works collaboratively with
other Social and Healthcare Organisations, from an Information Governance and IT
Security perspective, within the Norfolk and Waveney STP to share common concerns,
knowledge, skills, and learnings and support each other to ensure that there are sufficient
assurances in the handling of personal and confidential information and Cyber Security.
Personal data related incidents are reported through the Trust Incident Reporting System.
The lessons learnt are shared with staff members and they enable the Trust to review and
continually improve its information Governance processes for the safekeeping of personal
information and to ensure compliance with data protection legislation and Caldicott
principles.
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During 2020/21, the Trust recorded three Level 2 reportable information governance
incidents. These cases have been reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office
(ICO) and have been concluded with no further action required. A summary of Level 1
and 2 data-related incidents reported during the year is shown below:
Category Breach Type

Level 1

Level 2

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
I
J
K
Total

0
13
0
0
1
0
2
0
0
4
1
21

0
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
2
0
3

Corruption or inability to recover electronic data
Disclosed in Error
Lost in Transit
Lost or stolen hardware
Lost or stolen paperwork
Non-secure Disposal – hardware
Non-secure Disposal – paperwork
Uploaded to website in error
Technical security failing (including hacking)
Unauthorised access/disclosure
Other

The Data Security and Protection Toolkit (DSPT) is a NHS Digital online self-assessment
tool that allows Trusts to measure their performance against the National Data Guardian’s
10 data security standards. The Trust completes a DSPT self-assessment every year and
for 2020/21 a number of changes were made in order to:
x
x
x

Respond to lessons learned and direct feedback from users following the first year of
the DSPT
Address an Information Notice on compliance to the Network Information Systems
(NIS) compliance.
Improve the targeting of requirements to different categories of organisations

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, NHS Digital extended the date for formal
submission of the DSP Toolkit evidence to 30 September 2020. The Trust has a workprogramme and an action plan in place for the successful delivery of the DSPT, however
we are not compliant at this point, with the main outstanding action is around staff taking
part in awareness session/training. A review was undertaken by the Trust Internal
Auditors in February 2021 to validate the DSPT work programme and help provide
assurance of data security and identify common problem areas. This audit review was
focused on the mandatory elements for the data security standards 1, 5, 6 and 9. Areas
of non-compliance with the DSPT assertion requirements were identified and an action
plan with appropriate monitoring has been established.
The Trust continues to raise awareness of Information Governance and the importance of
protecting personal information with its staff through a comprehensive training programme
available by various means online and face-to-face. To complement this learning,
relevant policies, guidance and best practice are made available to staff members via the
Trust’s intranet.
Data quality and associated governance
There are a number of controls in place across the Trust that provide assurance to the
Board with regard to the controls in place concerning Data Quality and Accuracy of Data.
The Trust has an experienced Data Quality Manager and Data Quality Team. To facilitate
joint working and exchange of information, this team is closely affiliated to the
Commissioning and Income Team.
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The Data Quality Team maintain and manage a suite of policy documents for application
across the Trust. These include a Data Quality Policy & Strategy; Patient Demographics;
Referral to Treatment Access Policy and numerous Standard Operating Procedures. The
Team also provide training for Trust staff and audit compliance with data collection and
reporting requirements with particular regard to elective waiting time data. The Trust also
retains the services of specialised and skilled coding and informatics staff to produce and
analyse data and to ensure the accuracy of reporting.
Three key audit programmes are in place with regard to Data Quality:
i) Referral to Treatment 18 Week Rolling audits: carried out at a speciality level on a
rolling basis, these audits give assurance over the accuracy of data relating to
Performance Standards (focussing on RTT Standard) and adherence to policy; as well
as compliance to National Rules. The audit results are reviewed through the Trust
Assurance Group (TAG);
ii) Key Systems Audit Programme: this programme supports reporting of clinical income
and provides assurance from standalone systems, to ensure the Trust is able to report
correctly attracting the correct level of income from clinical activity and to ensure that
information used in Service Line Reporting is accurate, valid, reliable, timely, relevant
and complete. Reporting of audit results is taken through the Information Governance
Steering Group;
iii) Clinical Threshold / Individual Funding Requirement: Weekly and monthly audit work is
undertaken to confirm compliance with policy statements agreed with local Clinical
Commissioning Groups.
In addition, the Data Quality Team support a monthly validation process (with particular
focus on RTT clock starts, stops & coding). NNUH has been rated as having the highest
quality RTT/PTL recording in the NHS amongst NHS Acute Trusts. The Trust reports
consistently in the upper quartile against the Data Quality (SUS) Dashboard, performing
well against both local benchmarks and significantly above the National Average. The
Trust also performs consistently strongly in the Data Quality Maturity Index quarterly
report. This metric confirms completeness of data.
Information to support the quality metrics used in the reporting on quality is held in a
number of Trust systems, including Datix (electronic risk management system), PAS
(patient administration database) Telepath (electronic pathology system) and ICNet
(infection control system). The data is utilised day-to-day in the Trust’s operations and,
where appropriate, it is submitted to the National Information Centre, which operates
national checks to ensure its reliability and accuracy. Further quality data is drawn from
the reports that are produced for the Clinical Safety Sub-Board and the Patient
Engagement and Experience Sub-Board.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each
financial year. NHS Improvement (in exercise of the powers conferred on Monitor) has
issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual Quality
Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual.
Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is
informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers
and clinical leads who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. My
review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management
letter and other reports.
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I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control by the Board, Audit Committee, Quality and Safety
Committee and Finance, Investments & Performance Committee and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The Board of Directors has met regularly throughout the year and has kept arrangements
for internal control under review through discussion and approval of policies and practice
and monitoring metrics that are agreed as indicative of effective controls. The Board
reviews a monthly Integrated Performance Report covering a wide range of performance
metrics – these show the key relevant national priority and regulatory indicators, with
additional sections devoted to safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. This
monthly integrated summary is supplemented by more detailed briefings on areas of
notable or adverse performance. The selection of appropriate metrics is subject to regular
review by the Board, with changes in priorities or areas of concern reflected in that
selection.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the overall framework for internal control and the
Trust’s Organisational Framework for Governance, and has recommended this statement
to the Board of Directors.
The result of the external auditors’ work on the annual accounts and annual report are
also a key assurance. Further assurance is provided through the CQC intelligent
monitoring reports, the outcomes of the clinical audit programme, the results of reviews
and inspections by external organisations and our internal audit programme.
Clinical Audit as part of the internal control framework:
The Trust has systems and controls in place to ensure that high quality clinical audits are
conducted and their findings acted upon by all directorates and specialties across the
Trust. There is a Trust Medical Lead for Clinical Audit and each specialty within a
directorate has its own clinical audit lead. The Trust Clinical Audit Lead, the Clinical
Effectiveness and Improvement Manager and specialty audit leads are responsible for
developing, monitoring and reporting an annual clinical audit programme that reflects local
and/or Trust issues around service quality or patient safety. The Clinical Audit Plan is
subject to review by the Board’s Audit Committee and Quality and Safety Committee.
All clinical audit projects are registered on an electronic system and monitored to
completion and subsequent re-audit. The Medical Audit Lead is a member of the Trust’s
Clinical Safety and Effectiveness Governance Sub-Board which is accountable to, and
reports audit activity to, the Hospital Management Board. Clinical Audit is therefore a key
element of our governance arrangements for ensuring compliance with key standards and
best practice.
During 2020/21 progress in implementing the Clinical Audit Plan was disrupted by the
need to prioritise the Trust’s emergency response to the Covid-19 pandemic, in
accordance with national guidance. Progress during the year was reviewed by the Quality
and Safety Committee in March 2021 and will be reflected in the priorities chosen for
2021/22.
Internal Audit as part of the internal control framework:
In addition to Clinical Audit, the Internal Audit plan is a risk based programme of reviews
based on areas of management concern, emerging risks, and national and historical
experience. The Plan is informed by previous internal and external audit work and
discussion with the Executive Team.
The Trust’s internal audit function is outsourced (to provide enhanced objectivity) and is
provided under contract by RSM. The work of internal audit is overseen by the Trust’s
Audit Committee which agrees the audit plan and it covers risk management, governance
and internal control processes across the Trust – including financial management and
control, human resources and operational governance.
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A report is produced at the conclusion of each audit assignment and, where scope for
improvement is found, recommendations are made and appropriate action plans agreed
with management. Reports are issued to and followed up with the responsible Executive
Directors, and the results of audit work are reported to the Audit Committee.
During 2020/21, Internal Audit completed 10 audits resulting in a formal assurance
opinion. Of these, 6 confirmed that the Board could take either substantial or reasonable
assurance that effective controls are in place. In 4 areas, the result was a partial
assurance report. In each of these areas, actions to implement all recommendations are
identified and progress in implementing these actions is followed-up and regularly
reported to the Audit Committee.
Based on the work undertaken in 2020/21 the Head of Internal Audit has concluded: “the
organisation has an adequate and effective framework for risk management, governance
and internal control. However, our work has identified further enhancements to the
framework of risk management, governance and internal control to ensure that it remains
adequate and effective’.
Significant internal control issues
During 2020/21 the Executive, Management Board and the Board of Directors have
considered and reflected on the significant risks and challenges facing the Trust, as
indicated and highlighted by our internal governance framework and discussion and
feedback with regulators. The Board of Directors has identified the following areas of
challenge which pose significant internal control issues for the Trust:
x

Waiting times for planned and elective care:
In common with the position nationally, the number of patients waiting for planned or
elective care in the Trust has increased over the course of the last year to
unprecedented levels. Restoration of services in the immediate post-Covid period is
a well-documented challenge of huge importance for those patients who are waiting
for unacceptably long periods.

x

Covid-19 and demand for emergency care:
The level of emergency demand on the NHS over the course of the pandemic has
been unprecedented and it is necessary to recognise the potential for further Waves
and surges in demand. This is against the background in which the Trust has really
struggled in the face of increased emergency activity over the Winter. The
unpredictability of future demand poses a significant risk issue for the Trust, noting
that even in May at the time of writing, the Trust’s Operational Position is again one of
‘Severe Pressure’.

x

Financial sustainability: The Trust has a significant underlying financial deficit.
There is a need to enhance performance in relation to financial planning and controls
but also to address the underlying strategic drivers of the deficit to ensure the longerterm financial sustainability of the Trust.

x

During 2021/22, the Trust will be working in collaboration with system partners and
regulators to establish a robust and effective Medium Term Financial Strategy.

x

Staff welfare: Our response to the Covid 19 pandemic, against the background of
longer terms issues affecting the Trust, has had a significant effect on the resilience,
well-being and morale of our staff. It has highlighted inadequacies in our current
infrastructure to support staff – including rest areas, changing facilities, catering,
transport and leisure/welfare options. These issues feature prominently in feedback
from staff and to ensure the sustainability of the Trust, it will be necessary to identify
solutions to remedy these inadequacies.
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x

Digital immaturity: assessment against international standard criteria shows that the
Norfolk & Waveney STP area is the least digitally developed of any in the NHS in
England. The Trust’s position in the lowest 5% of secondary care providers (scoring
of 0.2/5) reveals the size of the challenge and is typified by our reliance on paperbased medical records and a plethora of separate clinical databases and applications
with limited functionality and interoperability. Inadequacy of the digital infrastructure
in the Trust has continued to impact negatively on the Trust’s ability to achieve its
potential in terms of operational efficiency, effectiveness and quality improvement.
The Board has taken a number of steps to improve the position, notably through
investment in an Electronic Document Management System and an E-Obs system.
Ultimately implementation of an Electronic Patient Record (EPR) system will be
essential and the business case for a single EPR across the three Norfolk acute
hospitals is being pursued as a matter of urgency.

As confirmed below, mitigating actions are in place or in development with respect to each
of these significant risk areas.
Conclusion
My review confirms that Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
has a sound system of internal controls that supports the achievement of its policies, aims
and objectives. Both operational and financial sustainability however remain significant
risks for the Trust and its ability to achieve key performance targets, the Trust’s Strategic
Objectives and the timely high quality services to which we all aspire.
I am satisfied that the significant internal control issues that have been identified in this
review have appropriate action plans in place or in development to help mitigate the
associated risks and are subject to appropriate review, monitoring and escalation both
internally and externally.
In his 2020/21 Annual Opinion, the Head of Internal Audit concluded “the organisation has
an adequate and effective framework for risk management, governance and internal
control. However, our work has identified further enhancements to the framework of risk
management, governance and internal control to ensure that it remains adequate and
effective”. I have taken careful note of that opinion, in addition to those of the CQC and
NHSI as referenced above. These accord with my own assessment that whilst much has
been done, there is still more to do. The Trust remains resolute in its commitment to
continuous improvement and to enhancing the quality of its services and its financial and
operational sustainability, in order to ensure delivery of the best possible care to our
patients.

Signed:

Sam Higginson
Chief Executive
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Date: 1 June 2021

Approval of the Accountability Report

I confirm my approval of the Accountability Report.

Sam Higginson
Chief Executive
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
GOVERNORS OF NORFOLK AND NORWICH UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS
NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust (“the Trust”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes
in Taxpayers Equity and Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 1.
In our opinion the financial statements:
x

give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

x

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued under
paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2020/21.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of, the Trust in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.
Going concern
The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they
have not been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust
without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. They have also concluded
that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements (“the going concern period”).
In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Trust’s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Trust’s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period.
Our conclusions based on this work:
x

we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate;

x

we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not a
material uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time
they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is
not a guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or
conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an
opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:
x

Enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and internal audit and inspection of policy
documentation as to the Trust’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud ,including the internal audit function, and the Trust’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

x

Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes.

x

Using analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships.

x

Reviewing the Trust’s accounting policies.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audit.
As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet
delegated targets, we performed procedures to address the risk of management override of
controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk that revenue
recognised one month pre or post year end was recognized in the wrong period and the risk
that Trust management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.
In line with the guidance set out in Practice Note 10 Audit of Financial Statements of Public
Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom we also recognised a fraud risk related to expenditure
recognition, particularly in relation to the completeness and existence of year-end accruals
and deferred income.
We did not identify any additional fraud risks.
We performed procedures including:
x Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included:
-

Unexpected postings to cash, revenue and expenses codes.

-

Journals containing certain words in the description.

x Assessing significant estimates for bias.
x Assessing the completeness of disclosed related party transactions and verifying they had
been accurately recorded within the financial statements.
x Assessing the completeness, existence and accuracy of income recognised with specific
emphasis placed on cut-off. This included:
o

Review and sample testing of income recognised either side of year-end

o

Sample testing of year-end deferred income including consideration of year
on year movements.

Assessing the completeness, existence and accuracy of non-pay expenditure recognised with
specific emphasis placed on cut-off. This included:
o

Sample testing of year-end accruals including consideration of year on year
movements;

o

Sample testing of invoices and bank payments pre and post year-end.
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Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance
with laws and regulations
We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a
material effect on the financial statements from our general sector experience and through
discussion with the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and
discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.
As the Trust is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the
control environment including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory
requirements.
We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to
any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.
The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies
considerably.
The Trust is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
including financial reporting legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these
laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.
Whilst the Trust is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others
where the consequences of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or
disclosures in the financial statements.
Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not
have detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For
example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.
In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
Other information in the Annual Report
The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report
together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based
on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:
x we have not identified material misstatements in the other information; and
x in our opinion the other information included in the Annual Report for the financial year is
consistent with the financial statements.
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Annual Governance Statement
We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement has not been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
2020/21. We have nothing to report in this respect.
Remuneration and Staff Reports
In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Reports subject to audit have been
properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
2020/21.
Accounting Officer’s responsibilities
As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 122, the Accounting Officer is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are
also responsible for: such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the
Trust without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.
Auditor’s responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does
not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Report on the Trust’s arrangements
effectiveness in its use of resources

for

securing

economy,

efficiency

and

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report if we identify any significant
weaknesses in the arrangements that have been made by the Trust to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Significant weakness – financial sustainability
The Trust's outturn position for 2020/21 is a surplus of £7.2 million. The £7.2 million surplus
represents a £14.7 million improvement against its budget of a £7.5 million deficit. However,
in the 2021/22 phase 4 financial plan, the Trust has a provisional budget plan for the second
half year - pending National Planning Guidance, of a net deficit of £55m. At the time of the
Audit the Trust has a draft financial strategy in place and is working with Regulators and the
Norfolk and Waveney ICS to agree a final recovery trajectory in line with the requirements of
its Undertakings.
The Trust’s forecast deficit and future borrowing requirements are evidence of weaknesses in
proper arrangements for planning effectively to support the sustainable delivery of the Trust’s
strategic priorities.
Recommendations:
The following recommendations are raised in light of the significant weakness reported above:
-

Develop a medium-term improvement plan and as part of this obtain approval for any
additional financing that is required, in line with the enforcement notifications issued.
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-

Develop an action plan to ensure that cost improvement targets are met.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.
Under Section 62(1) and paragraph 1(d) of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act
2006 we have a duty to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and related
statutory guidance having regard to whether the Trust had proper arrangements in place to
ensure financial sustainability, proper governance and the use of information about costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary.
Statutory reporting matters
We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:
x any reports to the Regulator have been made under paragraph 6 of Schedule 10 of the
National Health Service Act 2006.
x any matters have been reported in the public interest under paragraph 3 of Schedule 10 of
the National Health Service Act 2006 in the course of, or at the end of the audit.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
THE PURPOSE OF
RESPONSIBILITIES

OUR

AUDIT

WORK

AND

TO

WHOM

WE

OWE

OUR

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance
with Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement
by the Trust. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Council of
Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report, and the further matters we are required to state to them in accordance with
the terms agreed with the Trust, and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors
of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Norfolk and Norwich University
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the
requirements of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit
Practice.

Stephanie Beavis
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Dragonfly House
2 Gilders Way,
Norwich,
NR3 1UB
11 June 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Year ended
31 March 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended
31 March 2020

1RWH

£'000

£'000

2SHUDWLQJLQFRPH







2WKHURSHUDWLQJLQFRPH







2SHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV



OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)





38,474

(20,454)





FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
)LQDQFHLQFRPH



)LQDQFHH[SHQVHILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVLQFOXGLQJXQZLQGLQJRIGLVFRXQWRQSURYLVLRQV



NET FINANCE COSTS
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR





(31,306)

(34,327)

7,168

(54,781)

Other comprehensive income
,PSDLUPHQWV





5HYDOXDWLRQV







9,293

(44,398)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Note

£'000

£'000

3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW







7UDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHV







411,484

353,596

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets
,QYHQWRULHV







7UDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHV







&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV







114,334

60,432

Total current assets
Current liabilities
7UDGHDQGRWKHUSD\DEOHV







2WKHUOLDELOLWLHV







%RUURZLQJV







3URYLVLRQV







Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

(136,511)

(283,380)

389,307

130,648

Non-current liabilities
2WKHUOLDELOLWLHV







%RUURZLQJV







3URYLVLRQV







Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed

(192,583)

(195,490)

196,724

(64,842)









Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDO
5HYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYH
,QFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYH
Total taxpayers' equity





196,724

(64,842)

7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRQSDJHVWRZHUHDSSURYHGE\WKH%RDUGRQ-XQHDQGVLJQHGRQLWV
EHKDOIE\

6LJQHG««««««««««««« &KLHI([HFXWLYH

'DWH-XQH

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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£'000
25,328






27,061






290,709

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2020
6XUSOXVIRUWKH\HDU
7UDQVIHUIURPUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHWRLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYHIRU
LPSDLUPHQWVDULVLQJIURPFRQVXPSWLRQRIHFRQRPLFEHQHILWV
2WKHUWUDQVIHUVEHWZHHQUHVHUYHV
,PSDLUPHQWV
5HYDOXDWLRQV
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDOUHFHLYHG
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2021

Revaluation
reserve

Public
dividend
capital
£'000
38,436






(121,046)

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£'000
(128,606)


STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
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0
0
0
2,125
252,273
196,724

Total
Taxpayers'
Equity
£'000
(64,842)
7,168

£000
14,968





25,328

Revaluation
reserve

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2019
'HILFLWIRUWKH\HDU
2WKHUWUDQVIHUVEHWZHHQUHVHUYHV
,PSDLUPHQWV
5HYDOXDWLRQV
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDOUHFHLYHG
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2020

Public
dividend
capital
£000
31,909





38,436

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£000
(73,847)





(128,606)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
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Total
Taxpayers'
Equity
£000
(26,970)
(54,782)
0
(2,098)
12,481
6,527
(64,842)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Note

Year ended
31 March
2021

Year ended
31 March
2020

£'000

£'000

Cash flows from operating activities
2SHUDWLQJVXUSOXV GHILFLW





Operating surplus / (deficit)

38,475

(20,454)









99,809









(18,349)

Cash flows from investing activities
,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG
3XUFKDVHRISURSHUW\SODQWHTXLSPHQWDQGLQYHVWPHQWSURSHUW\
6DOHVRISURSHUW\SODQWHTXLSPHQWDQGLQYHVWPHQWSURSHUW\
5HFHLSWRIFDVKGRQDWLRQVWRSXUFKDVHFDSLWDODVVHWV
Net cash used in investing activities





(65,962)





(28,585)

Cash flows from financing activities
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDOUHFHLYHG
0RYHPHQWRQORDQVIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK
&DSLWDOHOHPHQWRIILQDQFHOHDVHUHQWDOSD\PHQWV
&DSLWDOHOHPHQWRI3),/,)7DQGRWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQSD\PHQWV
,QWHUHVWSDLGRQILQDQFHOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV
,QWHUHVWSDLGRQ3),/,)7DQGRWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQREOLJDWLRQV
2WKHULQWHUHVWSDLG
Net cash from financing activities








21,667








52,904

Non-cash income and expense:
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
,PSDLUPHQWVDQGUHYHUVDOVRILPSDLUPHQWV
/RVVRQGLVSRVDORIQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
,QFRPHUHFRJQLVHGLQUHVSHFWRIFDSLWDOGRQDWLRQV FDVKDQGQRQFDVK
'HFUHDVH ,QFUHDVH LQWUDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHV
,QFUHDVH LQLQYHQWRULHV
,QFUHDVH 'HFUHDVH LQWUDGHDQGRWKHUSD\DEOHV
,QFUHDVHLQSURYLVLRQV
Net cash from / (used in) operations



Increase in cash and cash equivalents







Cash and Cash equivalents at start of the year







Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March



68,945

13,432

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.

Accounting Policies and Other Information

1.1

Basis of Preparation
1+6,PSURYHPHQWLQH[HUFLVLQJWKHVWDWXWRU\IXQFWLRQVFRQIHUUHGRQ0RQLWRUKDVGLUHFWHGWKDWWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRIWKHWUXVWVKDOOPHHWWKHDFFRXQWLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH
*URXS$FFRXQWLQJ0DQXDO *$0 ZKLFKVKDOOEHDJUHHGZLWK+07UHDVXU\&RQVHTXHQWO\WKHIROORZLQJILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH*$0LVVXHGE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG
6RFLDO&DUH7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVFRQWDLQHGLQWKH*$0IROORZ,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVWR
WKHH[WHQWWKDWWKH\DUHPHDQLQJIXODQGDSSURSULDWHWRWKH1+6DVGHWHUPLQHGE\+07UHDVXU\ZKLFKLVDGYLVHG
E\WKH)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ$GYLVRU\%RDUG:KHUHWKH*$0SHUPLWVDFKRLFHRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLF\WKHDFFRXQWLQJ
SROLF\WKDWLVMXGJHGWREHPRVWDSSURSULDWHWRWKHSDUWLFXODUFLUFXPVWDQFHVRIWKHWUXVWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIJLYLQJD
WUXHDQGIDLUYLHZKDVEHHQVHOHFWHG7KHSDUWLFXODUSROLFLHVDGRSWHGDUHGHVFULEHGEHORZ7KHVHKDYHEHHQ
DSSOLHGFRQVLVWHQWO\LQGHDOLQJZLWKLWHPVFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLQUHODWLRQWRWKHDFFRXQWV

Accounting convention
7KHVHDFFRXQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGXQGHUWKHKLVWRULFDOFRVWFRQYHQWLRQPRGLILHGWRDFFRXQWIRUWKHUHYDOXDWLRQ
RISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
1.2

Going Concern
$IWHUPDNLQJHQTXLULHVWKHGLUHFWRUVKDYHDUHDVRQDEOHH[SHFWDWLRQWKDWWKHVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGE\WKH1+6
IRXQGDWLRQWUXVWZLOOFRQWLQXHWREHSURYLGHGE\WKHSXEOLFVHFWRUIRUWKHIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUH)RUWKLVUHDVRQWKH
GLUHFWRUVKDYHDGRSWHGWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVLQSUHSDULQJWKHDFFRXQWVIROORZLQJWKHGHILQLWLRQRIJRLQJ
FRQFHUQLQWKHSXEOLFVHFWRUDGRSWHGE\+07UHDVXU\¶V)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ0DQXDO
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.3

Interests in other entities
NHS Charitable Fund
7KH1+6IRXQGDWLRQWUXVWLVWKHFRUSRUDWHWUXVWHHWR1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ
7UXVW&KDULWDEOH)XQG7KHIRXQGDWLRQWUXVWKDVDVVHVVHGLWVUHODWLRQVKLSWRWKHFKDULWDEOHIXQGDQGGHWHUPLQHGLW
WREHDVXEVLGLDU\EHFDXVHWKHIRXQGDWLRQWUXVWLVH[SRVHGWRRUKDVULJKWVWRYDULDEOHUHWXUQVDQGRWKHUEHQHILWV
IRULWVHOISDWLHQWVDQGVWDIIIURPLWVLQYROYHPHQWZLWKWKHFKDULWDEOHIXQGDQGKDVWKHDELOLW\WRDIIHFWWKRVHUHWXUQV
DQGRWKHUEHQHILWVWKURXJKLWVSRZHURYHUWKHIXQG7KHFKDULWDEOHIXQG¶VVWDWXWRU\DFFRXQWVDUHSUHSDUHGWR
0DUFKLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH8.&KDULWLHV6WDWHPHQWRI5HFRPPHQGHG3UDFWLFH 6253 ZKLFKLVEDVHGRQ8.
)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUG )56 
3ULRUWRWKH)7$50SHUPLWWHGWKH1+6IRXQGDWLRQWUXVWQRWWRFRQVROLGDWHWKHFKDULWDEOHIXQG6LQFH
WKH7UXVWKDVFKRVHQQRWWRFRQVROLGDWHWKHFKDULWDEOHIXQGRQWKHEDVLVLWLVQRWPDWHULDO
Interests in Joint Operations
7KH7UXVWKDVDLQWHUHVWLQDMRLQWRSHUDWLRQIRUWKHSURYLVLRQRISDWKRORJ\VHUYLFHVLQ1RUIRONNQRZQDVWKH
(DVWHUQ3DWKRORJ\$OOLDQFH (3$ 7KHDUUDQJHPHQWKDVEHHQHIIHFWLYHIURPVW1RYHPEHUDQGKDVQRW
LQYROYHGWKHHVWDEOLVKPHQWRIDVHSDUDWHHQWLW\
$FFRUGLQJO\WKH7UXVW VVKDUHRIRSHUDWLQJLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHLVLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHDFFRXQWV

1.4

Revenue from contracts with customers
:KHUHLQFRPHLVGHULYHGIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUVLWLVDFFRXQWHGIRUXQGHU,)567KH*$0H[SDQGV
WKHGHILQLWLRQRIDFRQWUDFWWRLQFOXGHOHJLVODWLRQDQGUHJXODWLRQVZKLFKHQDEOHVDQHQWLW\WRUHFHLYHFDVKRU
DQRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWWKDWLVQRWFODVVLILHGDVDWD[E\WKH2IILFHRI1DWLRQDO6WDWLVWLFV 216 
5HYHQXHLQUHVSHFWRIJRRGVVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGLVUHFRJQLVHGZKHQ RUDV SHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVDUHVDWLVILHG
E\WUDQVIHUULQJSURPLVHGJRRGVVHUYLFHVWRWKHFXVWRPHUDQGLVPHDVXUHGDWWKHDPRXQWRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFH
DOORFDWHGWRWKRVHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQV$WWKH\HDUHQGWKH7UXVWDFFUXHVLQFRPHUHODWLQJWRSHUIRUPDQFH
REOLJDWLRQVVDWLVILHGLQWKDW\HDU:KHUHWKH7UXVW¶VHQWLWOHPHQWWRFRQVLGHUDWLRQIRUWKRVHJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVLV
XQFRQGLWLRQDODFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHZLOOEHUHFRJQLVHG:KHUHHQWLWOHPHQWWRFRQVLGHUDWLRQLVFRQGLWLRQDORQD
IXUWKHUIDFWRURWKHUWKDQWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPHDFRQWUDFWDVVHWZLOOEHUHFRJQLVHG:KHUHFRQVLGHUDWLRQUHFHLYHG
RUUHFHLYDEOHUHODWHVWRDSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQWKDWLVWREHVDWLVILHGLQDIXWXUHSHULRGWKHLQFRPHLVGHIHUUHG
DQGUHFRJQLVHGDVDFRQWUDFWOLDELOLW\
Revenue from NHS contracts
7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVIRUUHYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQDQGWKHDSSOLFDWLRQRI,)56DUHFRQVLVWHQWO\DSSOLHG7KH
FRQWUDFWLQJDUUDQJHPHQWVLQWKH1+6FKDQJHGEHWZHHQDQGDIIHFWLQJWKHDSSOLFDWLRQRIWKH
DFFRXQWLQJSROLF\XQGHU,)567KLVGLIIHUHQFHLQDSSOLFDWLRQLVH[SODLQHGEHORZ

7KHPDLQVRXUFHRILQFRPHIRUWKH7UXVWLVFRQWUDFWVZLWKFRPPLVVLRQHUVIRUKHDOWKFDUHVHUYLFHV,QWKH
PDMRULW\RIWKHWUXVW¶VLQFRPHIURP1+6FRPPLVVLRQHUVZDVLQWKHIRUPRIEORFNFRQWUDFWDUUDQJHPHQWV'XULQJ
WKHILUVWKDOIRIWKH\HDUWKHWUXVWUHFHLYHGEORFNIXQGLQJIURPLWVFRPPLVVLRQHUV)RUWKHVHFRQGKDOIRIWKH\HDU
EORFNFRQWUDFWDUUDQJHPHQWVZHUHDJUHHGDWD6XVWDLQDELOLW\DQG7UDQVIRUPDWLRQ3DUWQHUVKLSOHYHO7KHUHODWHG
SHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQLVWKHGHOLYHU\RIKHDOWKFDUHDQGUHODWHGVHUYLFHVGXULQJWKHSHULRGZLWKWKHWUXVW¶V
HQWLWOHPHQWWRFRQVLGHUDWLRQQRWYDU\LQJEDVHGRQWKHOHYHOVRIDFWLYLW\SHUIRUPHG
2020/21
7KH7UXVWKDVUHFHLYHGDGGLWLRQDOLQFRPHRXWVLGHRIWKHEORFNDQGV\VWHPHQYHORSHVWRUHLPEXUVHVSHFLILFFRVWV
LQFXUUHGDQGRWKHULQFRPHWRSXSVWRVXSSRUWWKHGHOLYHU\RIVHUYLFHV5HLPEXUVHPHQWDQGWRSXSLQFRPHLV
DFFRXQWHGIRUDVYDULDEOHFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
Comparative period (2019/20)
,QWKHFRPSDUDWLYHSHULRG  WKHWUXVW¶VFRQWUDFWVZLWK1+6FRPPLVVLRQHUVLQFOXGHGWKRVHZKHUHWKH
WUXVW¶VHQWLWOHPHQWWRLQFRPHYDULHGDFFRUGLQJWRVHUYLFHVGHOLYHUHG$SHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQUHODWLQJWRGHOLYHU\
RIDVSHOORIKHDOWKFDUHZDVJHQHUDOO\VDWLVILHGRYHUWLPHDVKHDOWKFDUHZDVUHFHLYHGDQGFRQVXPHG
VLPXOWDQHRXVO\E\WKHFXVWRPHUDVWKH7UXVWSHUIRUPHGLW7KHFXVWRPHULQVXFKDFRQWUDFWZDVWKH
FRPPLVVLRQHUEXWWKHFXVWRPHUEHQHILWHGDVVHUYLFHVZHUHSURYLGHGWRWKHLUSDWLHQW(YHQZKHUHDFRQWUDFW
FRXOGEHEURNHQGRZQLQWRVHSDUDWHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVKHDOWKFDUHJHQHUDOO\DOLJQHGZLWKSDUDJUDSK E 
RIWKH6WDQGDUGHQWDLOLQJDGHOLYHU\RIDVHULHVRIJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVWKDWZHUHVXEVWDQWLDOO\WKHVDPHDQGKDGD
VLPLODUSDWWHUQRIWUDQVIHU$WWKH\HDUHQGWKH7UXVWDFFUXHGLQFRPHUHODWLQJWRDFWLYLW\GHOLYHUHGLQWKDW\HDU
ZKHUHDSDWLHQWFDUHVSHOOZDVLQFRPSOHWH7KLVDFFUXDOZDVGLVFORVHGDVDFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHDVHQWLWOHPHQWWR
SD\PHQWIRUZRUNFRPSOHWHGZDVXVXDOO\RQO\GHSHQGHQWRQWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPH
,QWKH3URYLGHU6XVWDLQDELOLW\)XQGDQG)LQDQFLDO5HFRYHU\)XQGHQDEOHGSURYLGHUVWRHDUQLQFRPH
OLQNHGWRWKHDFKLHYHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOFRQWUROVDQGSHUIRUPDQFHWDUJHWV,QFRPHHDUQHGIURPWKHIXQGVLV
DFFRXQWHGIRUDVYDULDEOHFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
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Revenue from research contracts
:KHUHUHVHDUFKFRQWUDFWVIDOOXQGHU,)56UHYHQXHLVUHFRJQLVHGDVDQGZKHQSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVDUH
VDWLVILHG)RUVRPHFRQWUDFWVLWLVDVVHVVHGWKDWWKHUHYHQXHSURMHFWFRQVWLWXWHVRQHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQRYHU
WKHFRXUVHRIWKHPXOWL\HDUFRQWUDFW,QWKHVHFDVHVLWLVDVVHVVHGWKDWWKH7UXVW¶VLQWHULPSHUIRUPDQFHGRHVQRW
FUHDWHDQDVVHWZLWKDOWHUQDWLYHXVHIRUWKH7UXVWDQGWKH7UXVWKDVDQHQIRUFHDEOHULJKWWRSD\PHQWIRUWKH
SHUIRUPDQFHFRPSOHWHGWRGDWH,WLVWKHUHIRUHFRQVLGHUHGWKDWWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQLVVDWLVILHGRYHUWLPH
DQGWKH7UXVWUHFRJQLVHVUHYHQXHHDFK\HDURYHUWKHFRXUVHRIWKHFRQWUDFW
NHS injury cost recovery scheme
7KH7UXVWUHFHLYHVLQFRPHXQGHUWKH1+6LQMXU\FRVWUHFRYHU\VFKHPHGHVLJQHGWRUHFODLPWKHFRVWRIWUHDWLQJ
LQMXUHGLQGLYLGXDOVWRZKRPSHUVRQDOLQMXU\FRPSHQVDWLRQKDVVXEVHTXHQWO\EHHQSDLGIRULQVWDQFHE\DQ
LQVXUHU7KH7UXVWUHFRJQLVHVWKHLQFRPHZKHQSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVDUHVDWLVILHG,QSUDFWLFDOWHUPVWKLV
PHDQVWKDWWUHDWPHQWKDVEHHQJLYHQLWUHFHLYHVQRWLILFDWLRQIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI:RUNDQG3HQVLRQ V
&RPSHQVDWLRQ5HFRYHU\8QLWKDVFRPSOHWHGWKH1+6IRUPDQGFRQILUPHGWKHUHDUHQRGLVFUHSDQFLHVZLWKWKH
WUHDWPHQW7KHLQFRPHLVPHDVXUHGDWWKHDJUHHGWDULIIIRUWKHWUHDWPHQWVSURYLGHGWRWKHLQMXUHGLQGLYLGXDOOHVV
DQDOORZDQFHIRUXQVXFFHVVIXOFRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPVDQGGRXEWIXOGHEWVLQOLQHZLWK,)56UHTXLUHPHQWVRI
PHDVXULQJH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVRYHUWKHOLIHWLPHRIWKHDVVHW
1.5

Other forms of income
Grants and donations
*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVDUHJUDQWVIURPJRYHUQPHQWERGLHVRWKHUWKDQLQFRPHIURPFRPPLVVLRQHUVRUWUXVWVIRUWKH
SURYLVLRQRIVHUYLFHV:KHUHDJUDQWLVXVHGWRIXQGUHYHQXHH[SHQGLWXUHLWLVWDNHQWRWKH6WDWHPHQWRI
&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHWRPDWFKWKDWH[SHQGLWXUH:KHUHWKHJUDQWLVXVHGWRIXQGFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHLWLV
FUHGLWHGWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHRQFHFRQGLWLRQVDWWDFKHGWRWKHJUDQWKDYH
EHHQPHW'RQDWLRQVDUHWUHDWHGLQWKHVDPHZD\DVJRYHUQPHQWJUDQWV
Apprenticeship service income
7KHYDOXHRIWKHEHQHILWUHFHLYHGZKHQDFFHVVLQJIXQGVIURPWKH*RYHUQPHQW VDSSUHQWLFHVKLSVHUYLFHLV
UHFRJQLVHGDVLQFRPHDWWKHSRLQWRIUHFHLSWRIWKHWUDLQLQJVHUYLFH:KHUHWKHVHIXQGVDUHSDLGGLUHFWO\WRDQ
DFFUHGLWHGWUDLQLQJSURYLGHUIURPWKH7UXVW V'LJLWDO$SSUHQWLFHVKLS6HUYLFH '$6 DFFRXQWKHOGE\WKH
'HSDUWPHQWIRU(GXFDWLRQWKHFRUUHVSRQGLQJQRWLRQDOH[SHQVHLVDOVRUHFRJQLVHGDWWKHSRLQWRIUHFRJQLWLRQIRU
WKHEHQHILW

1.6

Expenditure on employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
6DODULHVZDJHVDQGHPSOR\PHQWUHODWHGSD\PHQWVVXFKDVVRFLDOVHFXULW\FRVWVDQGWKHDSSUHQWLFHVKLSOHY\DUH
UHFRJQLVHGLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHVHUYLFHLVUHFHLYHGIURPHPSOR\HHV7KHFRVWRIDQQXDOOHDYHHQWLWOHPHQW
HDUQHGEXWQRWWDNHQE\HPSOR\HHVDWWKHHQGRIWKHSHULRGLVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWRWKHH[WHQW
WKDWHPSOR\HHVDUHSHUPLWWHGWRFDUU\IRUZDUGOHDYHLQWRWKHIROORZLQJSHULRG
Pension Costs
NHS Pension Scheme
3DVWDQGSUHVHQWHPSOR\HHVDUHFRYHUHGE\WKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKHWZR1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHV%RWKVFKHPHVDUH
XQIXQGHGGHILQHGEHQHILWVFKHPHVWKDWFRYHU1+6HPSOR\HUVJHQHUDOSUDFWLFHVDQGRWKHUERGLHVDOORZHG
XQGHUWKHGLUHFWLRQRI6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHIRU+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUHLQ(QJODQGDQG:DOHV7KHVFKHPHLVQRW
GHVLJQHGLQDZD\WKDWZRXOGHQDEOHHPSOR\HUVWRLGHQWLI\WKHLUVKDUHRIWKHXQGHUO\LQJVFKHPHDVVHWVDQG
OLDELOLWLHV7KHUHIRUHWKHVFKHPHLVDFFRXQWHGIRUDVWKRXJKLWLVDGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQVFKHPHWKHFRVWWRWKH
WUXVWLVWDNHQDVHTXDOWRWKHHPSOR\HU VSHQVLRQFRQWULEXWLRQVSD\DEOHWRWKHVFKHPHIRUWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRG
7KHFRQWULEXWLRQVDUHFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVDVDQGZKHQWKH\EHFRPHGXH
$GGLWLRQDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVDULVLQJIURPHDUO\UHWLUHPHQWVDUHQRWIXQGHGE\WKHVFKHPHH[FHSWZKHUHWKH
UHWLUHPHQWLVGXHWRLOOKHDOWK7KHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHOLDELOLW\IRUWKHDGGLWLRQDOFRVWVLVFKDUJHGWRWKHRSHUDWLQJ
H[SHQVHVDWWKHWLPHWKHWUXVWFRPPLWVLWVHOIWRWKHUHWLUHPHQWUHJDUGOHVVRIWKHPHWKRGRISD\PHQW

1.7

Expenditure on other goods and services
([SHQGLWXUHRQJRRGVDQGVHUYLFHVLVUHFRJQLVHGZKHQDQGWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKH\KDYHEHHQUHFHLYHGDQGLV
PHDVXUHGDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKRVHJRRGVDQGVHUYLFHV([SHQGLWXUHLVUHFRJQLVHGLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVH[FHSW
ZKHUHLWUHVXOWVLQWKHFUHDWLRQRIDQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWVXFKDVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
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1.8

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVFDSLWDOLVHGZKHUH
ƔLWLVKHOGIRUXVHLQGHOLYHULQJVHUYLFHVRUIRUDGPLQLVWUDWLYHSXUSRVHV
ƔLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVZLOOIORZWRRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOZLOOEHVXSSOLHGWRWKH7UXVW
ƔLWLVH[SHFWHGWREHXVHGIRUPRUHWKDQRQHILQDQFLDO\HDU
ƔWKHFRVWRIWKHLWHPFDQEHPHDVXUHGUHOLDEO\
ƔWKHLWHPKDVDFRVWRIDWOHDVW RU
ƔFROOHFWLYHO\DQXPEHURILWHPVKDYHDFRVWRIDWOHDVW DQGLQGLYLGXDOO\KDYHDFRVWRIPRUHWKDQ 
ZKHUHWKHDVVHWVDUHIXQFWLRQDOO\LQWHUGHSHQGHQWKDGEURDGO\VLPXOWDQHRXVSXUFKDVHGDWHVDUHDQWLFLSDWHGWR
KDYHVLPXOWDQHRXVGLVSRVDOGDWHVDQGDUHXQGHUVLQJOHPDQDJHULDOFRQWURO
Ɣ,WHPVIRUPSDUWRIWKHLQLWLDOHTXLSSLQJDQG VHWWLQJXSFRVWRIDQHZEXLOGLQJZDUGRUXQLW LUUHVSHFWLYHRIWKHLU
LQGLYLGXDORUFROOHFWLYHFRVW
:KHUHDODUJHDVVHWIRUH[DPSOHDEXLOGLQJLQFOXGHVDQXPEHURIFRPSRQHQWVZLWKVLJQLILFDQWO\GLIIHUHQWDVVHW
OLYHVHJSODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWWKHQWKHVHFRPSRQHQWVDUHWUHDWHGDVVHSDUDWHDVVHWVDQGGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHLU
RZQXVHIXOOLYHV
Subsequent expenditure
6XEVHTXHQWH[SHQGLWXUHUHODWLQJWRDQLWHPRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVUHFRJQLVHGDVDQLQFUHDVHLQWKH
FDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHDVVHWZKHQLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWDGGLWLRQDOIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDO
GHULYLQJIURPWKHFRVWLQFXUUHGWRUHSODFHDFRPSRQHQWRIVXFKLWHPZLOOIORZWRWKHHQWHUSULVHDQGWKHFRVWRIWKH
LWHPFDQEHGHWHUPLQHGUHOLDEO\:KHUHDFRPSRQHQWRIDQDVVHWLVUHSODFHGWKHFRVWRIWKHUHSODFHPHQWLV
FDSLWDOLVHGLILWPHHWVWKHFULWHULDIRUUHFRJQLWLRQDERYH7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHSDUWUHSODFHGLVGH
UHFRJQLVHG2WKHUH[SHQGLWXUHWKDWGRHVQRWJHQHUDWHDGGLWLRQDOIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDO
VXFKDVUHSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFHLVFKDUJHGWRWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKLW
LVLQFXUUHG
Measurement
Valuation
$OOSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGLQLWLDOO\DWFRVWUHSUHVHQWLQJWKHFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WRDFTXLULQJRUFRQVWUXFWLQJWKHDVVHWDQGEULQJLQJLWWRWKHORFDWLRQDQGFRQGLWLRQQHFHVVDU\IRULWWREHFDSDEOHRI
RSHUDWLQJLQWKHPDQQHULQWHQGHGE\PDQDJHPHQW
$VVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGVXEVHTXHQWO\DWYDOXDWLRQ$VVHWVZKLFKDUHKHOGIRUWKHLUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDODQGDUHLQXVH
LHRSHUDWLRQDODVVHWVXVHGWRGHOLYHUHLWKHUIURQWOLQHVHUYLFHVRUEDFNRIILFHIXQFWLRQV DUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHLU
FXUUHQWYDOXHLQH[LVWLQJXVH$VVHWVWKDWZHUHPRVWUHFHQWO\KHOGIRUWKHLUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOEXWDUHVXUSOXVZLWKQR
SODQWREULQJWKHPEDFNLQWRXVHDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHZKHUHWKHUHDUHQRUHVWULFWLRQVRQVDOHDWWKH
UHSRUWLQJGDWHDQGZKHUHWKH\GRQRWPHHWWKHGHILQLWLRQVRILQYHVWPHQWSURSHUWLHVRUDVVHWVKHOGIRUVDOH
5HYDOXDWLRQVRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDUHSHUIRUPHGZLWKVXIILFLHQWUHJXODULW\WRHQVXUHWKDWFDUU\LQJ
YDOXHVDUHQRWPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWIURPWKRVHWKDWZRXOGEHGHWHUPLQHGDWWKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG&XUUHQW
YDOXHVLQH[LVWLQJXVHDUHGHWHUPLQHGDVIROORZV
/DQGDQGQRQVSHFLDOLVHGEXLOGLQJV±PDUNHWYDOXHIRUH[LVWLQJXVH
6SHFLDOLVHGEXLOGLQJV±GHSUHFLDWHGUHSODFHPHQWFRVWRQDPRGHUQHTXLYDOHQWDVVHWEDVLV
)RUVSHFLDOLVHGDVVHWVFXUUHQWYDOXHLQH[LVWLQJXVHLVLQWHUSUHWHGDVWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHDVVHW¶VUHPDLQLQJ
VHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOZKLFKLVDVVXPHGWREHDWOHDVWHTXDOWRWKHFRVWRIUHSODFLQJWKDWVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDO6SHFLDOLVHG
DVVHWVDUHWKHUHIRUHYDOXHGDWWKHLUGHSUHFLDWHGUHSODFHPHQWFRVW '5& RQDPRGHUQHTXLYDOHQWDVVHW 0($ 
EDVLV$Q0($EDVLVDVVXPHVWKDWWKHDVVHWZLOOEHUHSODFHGZLWKDPRGHUQDVVHWRIHTXLYDOHQWFDSDFLW\DQG
PHHWLQJWKHORFDWLRQUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKHVHUYLFHVEHLQJSURYLGHG
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$YDOXDWLRQRIWKH7UXVW V(VWDWHZDVFDUULHGRXWLQE\WKH7UXVW VH[WHUQDOO\DSSRLQWHGLQGHSHQGHQW
YDOXHU0RQWDJX(YDQV&KDUWHUHG6XUYH\RUV7KHHIIHFWLYHGDWHRIWKHYDOXDWLRQZDV0DUFK
7KHUHYDOXDWLRQEDVLVIRUDOORIWKH7UXVWV/DQGDQG%XLOGLQJVZDVGHSUHFLDWHGUHSODFHPHQWFRVWDVD0RGHUQ
(TXLYDOHQW$VVHWZLWKWKHH[FHSWLRQRIWKH5HVLGHQWLDO$FFRPPRGDWLRQRQWKHKRVSLWDOFDPSXVDQGWKHRIILFH
DFFRPPRGDWLRQZLWKLQWKHPDLQKRVSLWDOEXLOGLQJ
7KHVHZHUHYDOXHGDVQRQVSHFLDOLVHGDVVHWVDFFRUGLQJO\ZHUHYDOXHGRQDPDUNHWYDOXHIRUH[LVWLQJXVH
7KLVYDOXDWLRQZDVDFFRXQWHGIRULQWKHDFFRXQWV
)RUWKHYDOXDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRDQLQGH[DWLRQUHYLHZE\0RQDWJX(YDQVWRDVVHVVWKHYDOXDWLRQ
PRYHPHQWRYHUWKH\HDUWR0DUFK7KLVPRYHPHQWKDVEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWVDORQJ
ZLWKFDSLWDODGGLWLRQVLQWKHILQDQFLDO\HDU
9DOXDWLRQJXLGDQFHLVVXHGE\WKH5R\DO,QVWLWXWHRI&KDUWHUHG6XUYH\RUVVWDWHVWKDWYDOXDWLRQVDUHSHUIRUPHGQHW
RI9$7ZKHUHWKH9$7LVUHFRYHUDEOHE\WKHHQWLW\7KLVEDVLVKDVEHHQDSSOLHGWRWKHWUXVW¶V3ULYDWH)LQDQFH
,QLWLDWLYH 3), VFKHPHZKHUHWKHFRQVWUXFWLRQLVFRPSOHWHGE\DVSHFLDOSXUSRVHYHKLFOHDQGWKHFRVWVKDYH
UHFRYHUDEOH9$7IRUWKH7UXVW
3URSHUWLHVLQWKHFRXUVHRIFRQVWUXFWLRQIRUVHUYLFHRUDGPLQLVWUDWLRQSXUSRVHVDUHFDUULHGDWFRVWOHVVDQ\
LPSDLUPHQWORVV&RVWLQFOXGHVSURIHVVLRQDOIHHVDQGZKHUHFDSLWDOLVHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6%RUURZLQJ
&RVWV$VVHWVDUHUHYDOXHGDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQFRPPHQFHVZKHQWKHDVVHWVDUHEURXJKWLQWRXVH
,7HTXLSPHQWWUDQVSRUWHTXLSPHQWIXUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJVDQGSODQWDQGPDFKLQHU\WKDWDUHKHOGIRURSHUDWLRQDOXVH
DUHYDOXHGDWGHSUHFLDWHGKLVWRULFFRVWZKHUHWKHVHDVVHWVKDYHVKRUWXVHIXOOLYHVRUORZYDOXHVRUERWKDVWKLVLV
QRWFRQVLGHUHGWREHPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWIURPFXUUHQWYDOXHLQH[LVWLQJXVH

Depreciation
,WHPVRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDUHGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHLUUHPDLQLQJXVHIXOOLYHVLQDPDQQHUFRQVLVWHQW
ZLWKWKHFRQVXPSWLRQRIHFRQRPLFRUVHUYLFHGHOLYHU\EHQHILWV)UHHKROGODQGLVFRQVLGHUHGWRKDYHDQLQILQLWHOLIH
DQGLVQRWGHSUHFLDWHG
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWZKLFKKDYHEHHQUHFODVVLILHGDVµKHOGIRUVDOH¶FHDVHWREHGHSUHFLDWHGXSRQWKH
UHFODVVLILFDWLRQ$VVHWVLQWKHFRXUVHRIFRQVWUXFWLRQDQGUHVLGXDOLQWHUHVWVLQRII6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
3),FRQWUDFWDVVHWVDUHQRWGHSUHFLDWHGXQWLOWKHDVVHWLVEURXJKWLQWRXVHRUUHYHUWVWRWKH7UXVWUHVSHFWLYHO\
Revaluation gains and losses
5HYDOXDWLRQJDLQVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHH[FHSWZKHUHDQGWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKH\UHYHUVHD
UHYDOXDWLRQGHFUHDVHWKDWKDVSUHYLRXVO\EHHQUHFRJQLVHGLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVLQZKLFKFDVHWKH\DUH
UHFRJQLVHGLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQGLWXUH
5HYDOXDWLRQORVVHVDUHFKDUJHGWRWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKHUHLVDQDYDLODEOHEDODQFHIRUWKH
DVVHWFRQFHUQHGDQGWKHUHDIWHUDUHFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV
*DLQVDQGORVVHVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHDUHUHSRUWHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH
DVDQLWHPRIµRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH¶
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Impairments
,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH*$0LPSDLUPHQWVWKDWDULVHIURPDFOHDUFRQVXPSWLRQRIHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVRURIVHUYLFH
SRWHQWLDOLQWKHDVVHWDUHFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV$FRPSHQVDWLQJWUDQVIHULVPDGHIURPWKHUHYDOXDWLRQ
UHVHUYHWRWKHLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYHRIDQDPRXQWHTXDOWRWKHORZHURI L WKHLPSDLUPHQWFKDUJHGWR
RSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVDQG LL WKHEDODQFHLQWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHDWWULEXWDEOHWRWKDWDVVHWEHIRUHWKH
LPSDLUPHQW
$QLPSDLUPHQWWKDWDULVHVIURPDFOHDUFRQVXPSWLRQRIHFRQRPLFEHQHILWRURIVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOLVUHYHUVHGZKHQ
DQGWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVWKDWJDYHULVHWRWKHORVVLVUHYHUVHG5HYHUVDOVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQ
RSHUDWLQJH[SHQGLWXUHWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKHDVVHWLVUHVWRUHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWLWZRXOGKDYHKDGLIWKH
LPSDLUPHQWKDGQHYHUEHHQUHFRJQLVHG$Q\UHPDLQLQJUHYHUVDOLVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYH:KHUH
DWWKHWLPHRIWKHRULJLQDOLPSDLUPHQWDWUDQVIHUZDVPDGHIURPWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHWRWKHLQFRPHDQG
H[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYHDQDPRXQWLVWUDQVIHUUHGEDFNWRWKHUHYDOXDWLRQUHVHUYHZKHQWKHLPSDLUPHQWUHYHUVDOLV
UHFRJQLVHG
2WKHULPSDLUPHQWVDUHWUHDWHGDVUHYDOXDWLRQORVVHV5HYHUVDOVRIµRWKHULPSDLUPHQWV¶DUHWUHDWHGDVUHYDOXDWLRQ
JDLQV
De-recognition
$VVHWVLQWHQGHGIRUGLVSRVDODUHUHFODVVLILHGDVµKHOGIRUVDOH¶RQFHWKHFULWHULDLQ,)56DUHPHW7KHVDOHPXVW
EHKLJKO\SUREDEOHDQGWKHDVVHWDYDLODEOHIRULPPHGLDWHVDOHLQLWVSUHVHQWFRQGLWLRQ
)ROORZLQJUHFODVVLILFDWLRQWKHDVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHORZHURIWKHLUH[LVWLQJFDUU\LQJDPRXQWDQGWKHLUµIDLU
YDOXHOHVVFRVWVWRVHOO¶'HSUHFLDWLRQFHDVHVWREHFKDUJHGDQGWKHDVVHWVDUHQRWUHYDOXHGH[FHSWZKHUHWKH
IDLUYDOXHOHVVFRVWVWRVHOO IDOOVEHORZWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQW$VVHWVDUHGHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQDOOPDWHULDOVDOH
FRQWUDFWFRQGLWLRQVKDYHEHHQPHW
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWZKLFKLVWREHVFUDSSHGRUGHPROLVKHGGRHVQRWTXDOLI\IRUUHFRJQLWLRQDVµKHOGIRU
VDOH¶DQGLQVWHDGLVUHWDLQHGDVDQRSHUDWLRQDODVVHWDQGWKHDVVHW¶VXVHIXOOLIHLVDGMXVWHG7KHDVVHWLVGH
UHFRJQLVHGZKHQVFUDSSLQJRUGHPROLWLRQRFFXUV
Donated and grant funded assets
'RQDWHGDQGJUDQWIXQGHGSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDVVHWVDUHFDSLWDOLVHGDWWKHLUIDLUYDOXHRQUHFHLSW7KH
GRQDWLRQJUDQWLVFUHGLWHGWRLQFRPHDWWKHVDPHWLPHXQOHVVWKHGRQRUKDVLPSRVHGDFRQGLWLRQWKDWWKHIXWXUH
HFRQRPLFEHQHILWVHPERGLHGLQWKHJUDQWDUHWREHFRQVXPHGLQDPDQQHUVSHFLILHGE\WKHGRQRULQZKLFKFDVH
WKHGRQDWLRQJUDQWLVGHIHUUHGZLWKLQOLDELOLWLHVDQGLVFDUULHGIRUZDUGWRIXWXUHILQDQFLDO\HDUVWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKH
FRQGLWLRQKDVQRW\HWEHHQPHW
7KHGRQDWHGDQGJUDQWIXQGHGDVVHWVDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\DFFRXQWHGIRULQWKHVDPHPDQQHUDVRWKHULWHPVRI
SURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
,QWKLVLQFOXGHVDVVHWVGRQDWHGWRWKHWUXVWE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUHDVSDUWRIWKH
UHVSRQVHWRWKHFRURQDYLUXVSDQGHPLF$VGHILQHGLQWKH*$0WKHWUXVWDSSOLHVWKHSULQFLSOHRIGRQDWHGDVVHW
DFFRXQWLQJWRDVVHWVWKDWWKHWUXVWFRQWUROVDQGLVREWDLQLQJHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVIURPDWWKH\HDUHQG

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
3),DQG/,)7WUDQVDFWLRQVZKLFKPHHWWKH,)5,&GHILQLWLRQRIDVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQDVLQWHUSUHWHGLQ+0
7UHDVXU\¶V)5H0DUHDFFRXQWHGIRUDVµRQ6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ¶E\WKH7UXVW,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWK+0
7UHDVXU\¶V)5H0WKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWWRJHWKHUZLWKDQ
HTXLYDOHQWOLDELOLW\6XEVHTXHQWO\WKHDVVHWVDUHDFFRXQWHGIRUDVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDQGRU
LQWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDVDSSURSULDWH
7KHDQQXDOFRQWUDFWSD\PHQWVDUHDSSRUWLRQHGEHWZHHQWKHUHSD\PHQWRIWKHOLDELOLW\DILQDQFHFRVWWKH
FKDUJHVIRUVHUYLFHVDQGOLIHF\FOHUHSODFHPHQWRIFRPSRQHQWVRIWKHDVVHW7KHHOHPHQWRIWKHDQQXDOXQLWDU\
SD\PHQWLQFUHDVHGXHWRFXPXODWLYHLQGH[DWLRQLVWUHDWHGDVFRQWLQJHQWUHQWDQGLVH[SHQVHGDVLQFXUUHG
7KHVHUYLFHFKDUJHLVUHFRJQLVHGLQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVDQGWKHILQDQFHFRVWLVFKDUJHGWRILQDQFHFRVWVLQWKH
6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
8VHIXOOLYHVUHIOHFWWKHWRWDOOLIHRIDQDVVHWDQGQRWWKHUHPDLQLQJOLIHRIDQDVVHW7KHUDQJHRIXVHIXOOLYHV
LVVKRZQLQWKHWDEOHEHORZ
Min life
Max life
Years
Years
%XLOGLQJVH[FOXGLQJGZHOOLQJV


3ODQW PDFKLQHU\


7UDQVSRUWHTXLSPHQW


,QIRUPDWLRQWHFKQRORJ\


)XUQLWXUH ILWWLQJV


)LQDQFHOHDVHGDVVHWV LQFOXGLQJODQG DUHGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHVKRUWHURIWKHXVHIXOOLIHRUWKHOHDVHWHUP
XQOHVVWKH7UXVWH[SHFWVWRDFTXLUHWKHDVVHWDWWKHHQGRIWKHOHDVHWHUPLQZKLFKFDVHWKHDVVHWVDUH
GHSUHFLDWHGLQWKHVDPHPDQQHUDVRZQHGDVVHWVDERYH
1.9

Inventories
,QYHQWRULHVDUHYDOXHGDWWKHORZHURIFRVWDQGQHWUHDOLVDEOHYDOXH7KHFRVWRILQYHQWRULHVLVPHDVXUHG
XVLQJWKHILUVWLQILUVWRXW ),)2 PHWKRG
,QWKH7UXVWUHFHLYHGLQYHQWRULHVLQFOXGLQJSHUVRQDOSURWHFWLYHHTXLSPHQWIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI
+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUHDWQLOFRVW,QOLQHZLWKWKH*$0DQGDSSO\LQJWKHSULQFLSOHVRIWKH,)56&RQFHSWXDO
)UDPHZRUNWKH7UXVWKDVDFFRXQWHGIRUWKHUHFHLSWRIWKHVHLQYHQWRULHVDWDGHHPHGFRVWUHIOHFWLQJWKH
EHVWDYDLODEOHDSSUR[LPDWLRQRIDQLPSXWHGPDUNHWYDOXHIRUWKHWUDQVDFWLRQEDVHGRQWKHFRVWRI
DFTXLVLWLRQE\WKH'HSDUWPHQW

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents
&DVKLVFDVKLQKDQGDQGGHSRVLWVZLWKDQ\ILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQUHSD\DEOHZLWKRXWSHQDOW\RQQRWLFHRIQRW
PRUHWKDQKRXUV&DVKHTXLYDOHQWVDUHLQYHVWPHQWVWKDWPDWXUHLQPRQWKVRUOHVVIURPWKHGDWHRI
DFTXLVLWLRQDQGWKDWDUHUHDGLO\FRQYHUWLEOHWRNQRZQDPRXQWVRIFDVKZLWKLQVLJQLILFDQWULVNRIFKDQJHLQ
YDOXH
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1.11

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDULVHZKHUHWKH7UXVWLVSDUW\WRWKHFRQWUDFWXDOSURYLVLRQVRID
ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWDQGDVDUHVXOWKDVDOHJDOULJKWWRUHFHLYHRUDOHJDOREOLJDWLRQWRSD\FDVKRUDQRWKHU
ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQW7KH*$0H[SDQGVWKHGHILQLWLRQRIDFRQWUDFWWRLQFOXGHOHJLVODWLRQDQGUHJXODWLRQVZKLFK
JLYHULVHWRDUUDQJHPHQWVWKDWLQDOORWKHUUHVSHFWVZRXOGEHDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWDQGGRQRWJLYHULVHWR
WUDQVDFWLRQVFODVVLILHGDVDWD[E\216
7KLVLQFOXGHVWKHSXUFKDVHRUVDOHRIQRQILQDQFLDOLWHPV VXFKDVJRRGVRUVHUYLFHV ZKLFKDUHHQWHUHGLQWR
LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH7UXVW¶VQRUPDOSXUFKDVHVDOHRUXVDJHUHTXLUHPHQWVDQGDUHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQDQGWR
WKHH[WHQWZKLFKSHUIRUPDQFHRFFXUVLHZKHQUHFHLSWRUGHOLYHU\RIWKHJRRGVRUVHUYLFHVLVPDGH

Classification and measurement
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHSOXVRUPLQXVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVH[FHSWZKHUHWKHDVVHWRUOLDELOLW\LVQRWPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKLQFRPHDQG
H[SHQGLWXUH)DLUYDOXHLVWDNHQDVWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFHRURWKHUZLVHGHWHUPLQHGE\UHIHUHQFHWRTXRWHG
PDUNHWSULFHVRUYDOXDWLRQWHFKQLTXHV
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVRUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVLQUHVSHFWRIDVVHWVDFTXLUHGRUGLVSRVHGRIWKURXJKILQDQFHOHDVHVDUH
UHFRJQLVHGDQGPHDVXUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHDFFRXQWLQJSROLF\IRUOHDVHVGHVFULEHGEHORZ

)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVVXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVW
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVFODVVLILHGDVVXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVW

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWDUHWKRVHKHOGZLWKWKHREMHFWLYHRIFROOHFWLQJ
FRQWUDFWXDOFDVKIORZVDQGZKHUHFDVKIORZVDUHVROHO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVW7KLVLQFOXGHVFDVK
HTXLYDOHQWVFRQWUDFWDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVWUDGHDQGRWKHUSD\DEOHVULJKWVDQGREOLJDWLRQVXQGHUOHDVH
DUUDQJHPHQWVDQGORDQVUHFHLYDEOHDQGSD\DEOH
$IWHULQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQWKHVHILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWXVLQJWKH
HIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWPHWKRGOHVVDQ\LPSDLUPHQW IRUILQDQFLDODVVHWV 7KHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHLVWKHUDWHWKDW
H[DFWO\GLVFRXQWVHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKSD\PHQWVRUUHFHLSWVWKURXJKWKHH[SHFWHGOLIHRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWRU
ILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\WRWKHJURVVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIDILQDQFLDODVVHWRUWRWKHDPRUWLVHGFRVWRIDILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\
,QWHUHVWUHYHQXHRUH[SHQVHLVFDOFXODWHGE\DSSO\LQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHWRWKHJURVVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRI
DILQDQFLDODVVHWRUDPRUWLVHGFRVWRIDILQDQFLDOOLDELOLW\DQGUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH
,QFRPHDQGDILQDQFLQJLQFRPHRUH[SHQVH,QWKHFDVHRIORDQVKHOGIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG
6RFLDO&DUHWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHLVWKHQRPLQDOUDWHRILQWHUHVWFKDUJHGRQWKHORDQ
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Impairment of financial assets
)RUDOOILQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWLQFOXGLQJOHDVHUHFHLYDEOHVFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHVDQG
FRQWUDFWDVVHWVWKH7UXVWUHFRJQLVHVDQDOORZDQFHIRUH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHV
7KH7UXVWDGRSWVWKHVLPSOLILHGDSSURDFKWRLPSDLUPHQWIRUFRQWUDFWDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVFRQWUDFWDVVHWV
DQGOHDVHUHFHLYDEOHVPHDVXULQJH[SHFWHGORVVHVDVDWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWROLIHWLPHH[SHFWHGORVVHV)RU
RWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKHORVVDOORZDQFHLVLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWRPRQWKH[SHFWHGFUHGLW
ORVVHV VWDJH DQGVXEVHTXHQWO\DWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWROLIHWLPHH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVLIWKHFUHGLWULVN
DVVHVVHGIRUWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWVLJQLILFDQWO\LQFUHDVHV VWDJH 
([SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVIRUDVVHWVUHODWLQJWR1RQ1+6ERGLHVDUHGHWHUPLQHGE\UHIHUHQFHWRDQXQELDVHG
SUREDELOLW\ZHLJKWHGDSSURDFKXVLQJUHFHQWDFWXDOUHFRYHU\H[SHULHQFH$VHSDUDWHDVVHVVPHQWLVHPSOR\HG
IRUHDFKRIWKHPDLQVRXUFHVRI1RQ1+6LQFRPH
([SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVLQUHODWLRQWR1+6ERGLHVDUHQRWQRUPDOO\UHFRJQLVHG7KH\DUHVXEMHFWWRDVHSDUDWH
FUHGLWQRWHULVNDVVHVVPHQW
)RUILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWKDYHEHFRPHFUHGLWLPSDLUHGVLQFHLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQ VWDJH H[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHV
DWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWHDUHPHDVXUHGDVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHDVVHW¶VJURVVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWDQGWKH
SUHVHQWYDOXHRIHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVGLVFRXQWHGDWWKHILQDQFLDODVVHW¶VRULJLQDOHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWH
([SHFWHGORVVHVDUHFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQGLWXUHZLWKLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHDQG
UHGXFHWKHQHWFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ

De-recognition
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHGHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKHFRQWUDFWXDOULJKWVWRUHFHLYHFDVKIORZVIURPWKHDVVHWVKDYH
H[SLUHGRUWKH7UXVWKDVWUDQVIHUUHGVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLS
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHGHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKHREOLJDWLRQLVGLVFKDUJHGFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUHV

1.12

Leases
/HDVHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFHOHDVHVZKHQVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSDUH
WUDQVIHUUHGWRWKHOHVVHH$OORWKHUOHDVHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVRSHUDWLQJOHDVHV
The Trust as a lessee
Finance leases
:KHUHVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSRIDOHDVHGDVVHWDUHERUQHE\WKH7UXVWWKHDVVHWLV
UHFRUGHGDVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDQGDFRUUHVSRQGLQJOLDELOLW\LVUHFRUGHG7KHYDOXHDWZKLFKERWK
DUHUHFRJQLVHGLVWKHORZHURIWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHDVVHWRUWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWV
GLVFRXQWHGXVLQJWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHLPSOLFLWLQWKHOHDVH7KHLPSOLFLWLQWHUHVWUDWHLVWKDWZKLFKSURGXFHVD
FRQVWDQWSHULRGLFUDWHRILQWHUHVWRQWKHRXWVWDQGLQJOLDELOLW\
7KHDVVHWDQGOLDELOLW\DUHUHFRJQLVHGDWWKHFRPPHQFHPHQWRIWKHOHDVH7KHUHDIWHUWKHDVVHWLVDFFRXQWHG
IRUDVDQLWHPRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
7KHDQQXDOUHQWDOFKDUJHLVVSOLWEHWZHHQWKHUHSD\PHQWRIWKHOLDELOLW\DQGDILQDQFHFRVWVRDVWRDFKLHYHD
FRQVWDQWUDWHRIILQDQFHRYHUWKHOLIHRIWKHOHDVH7KHDQQXDOILQDQFHFRVWLVFKDUJHGWRILQDQFHFRVWVLQWKH
6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH
7KHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVGHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKHOLDELOLW\LVGLVFKDUJHGFDQFHOOHGRUH[SLUHV
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Operating leases
2SHUDWLQJOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDQH[SHQVHRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP/HDVH
LQFHQWLYHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQLWLDOO\LQRWKHUOLDELOLWLHVRQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGVXEVHTXHQWO\DVD
UHGXFWLRQRIUHQWDOVRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP
&RQWLQJHQWUHQWDOVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKH\DUHLQFXUUHG
Leases of land and buildings
:KHUHDOHDVHLVIRUODQGDQGEXLOGLQJVWKHODQGFRPSRQHQWLVVHSDUDWHGIURPWKHEXLOGLQJFRPSRQHQWDQGWKH
FODVVLILFDWLRQIRUHDFKLVDVVHVVHGVHSDUDWHO\
The Trust as a lessor
Finance leases
$PRXQWVGXHIURPOHVVHHVXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHVDUHUHFRUGHGDVUHFHLYDEOHVDWWKHDPRXQWRIWKH7UXVW¶VQHW
LQYHVWPHQWLQWKHOHDVHV)LQDQFHOHDVHLQFRPHLVDOORFDWHGWRDFFRXQWLQJSHULRGVWRUHIOHFWDFRQVWDQWSHULRGLF
UDWHRIUHWXUQRQWKH7UXVW¶VQHWLQYHVWPHQWRXWVWDQGLQJLQUHVSHFWRIWKHOHDVHV
Operating leases
5HQWDOLQFRPHIURPRSHUDWLQJOHDVHVLVUHFRJQLVHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHWHUPRIWKHOHDVH,QLWLDO
GLUHFWFRVWVLQFXUUHGLQQHJRWLDWLQJDQGDUUDQJLQJDQRSHUDWLQJOHDVHDUHDGGHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH
OHDVHGDVVHWDQGUHFRJQLVHGDVDQH[SHQVHRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP

1.13

Provisions
7KH7UXVWUHFRJQLVHVDSURYLVLRQZKHUHLWKDVDSUHVHQWOHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYHREOLJDWLRQRIXQFHUWDLQWLPLQJRU
DPRXQWIRUZKLFKLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWWKHUHZLOOEHDIXWXUHRXWIORZRIFDVKRURWKHUUHVRXUFHVDQGDUHOLDEOH
HVWLPDWHFDQEHPDGHRIWKHDPRXQW7KHDPRXQWUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQLVWKHEHVW
HVWLPDWHRIWKHUHVRXUFHVUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQ
:KHUHWKHHIIHFWRIWKHWLPHYDOXHRIPRQH\LVVLJQLILFDQWWKHHVWLPDWHGULVNDGMXVWHGFDVKIORZVDUH
GLVFRXQWHGXVLQJ+07UHDVXU\¶VGLVFRXQWUDWHVHIIHFWLYHIRU0DUFK
Nominal rate
6KRUWWHUP
8SWR\HDUV
PLQXV
0HGLXPWHUP
$IWHU\HDUVXSWR\HDUV

/RQJWHUP
([FHHGLQJ\HDUV

+07UHDVXU\SURYLGHVGLVFRXQWUDWHVIRUJHQHUDOSURYLVLRQVRQDQRPLQDOUDWHEDVLV([SHFWHGIXWXUHFDVK
IORZVDUHWKHUHIRUHDGMXVWHGIRUWKHLPSDFWRILQIODWLRQEHIRUHGLVFRXQWLQJXVLQJQRPLQDOUDWHV7KHIROORZLQJ
LQIODWLRQUDWHVDUHVHWE\+07UHDVXU\HIIHFWLYH0DUFK
Inflation rate
<HDU

<HDU

,QWRSHUSHWXLW\

(DUO\UHWLUHPHQWSURYLVLRQVDQGLQMXU\EHQHILWSURYLVLRQVERWKXVHWKH+07UHDVXU\¶VSHQVLRQGLVFRXQWUDWHRI
PLQXVLQUHDOWHUPV
Clinical negligence costs
1+65HVROXWLRQRSHUDWHVDULVNSRROLQJVFKHPHXQGHUZKLFKWKH7UXVWSD\VDQDQQXDOFRQWULEXWLRQWR1+6
5HVROXWLRQZKLFKLQUHWXUQVHWWOHVDOOFOLQLFDOQHJOLJHQFHFODLPV$OWKRXJK1+65HVROXWLRQLVDGPLQLVWUDWLYHO\
UHVSRQVLEOHIRUDOOFOLQLFDOQHJOLJHQFHFDVHVWKHOHJDOOLDELOLW\UHPDLQVZLWKWKH7UXVW7KHWRWDOYDOXHRIFOLQLFDO
QHJOLJHQFHSURYLVLRQVFDUULHGE\1+65HVROXWLRQRQEHKDOIRIWKH7UXVWLVGLVFORVHGDWQRWHEXWLVQRW
UHFRJQLVHGLQWKH7UXVW¶VDFFRXQWV
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Non-clinical risk pooling
7KH7UXVWSDUWLFLSDWHVLQWKH3URSHUW\([SHQVHV6FKHPHDQGWKH/LDELOLWLHVWR7KLUG3DUWLHV6FKHPH%RWKDUH
ULVNSRROLQJVFKHPHVXQGHUZKLFKWKH7UXVWSD\VDQDQQXDOFRQWULEXWLRQWR1+65HVROXWLRQDQGLQUHWXUQ
UHFHLYHVDVVLVWDQFHZLWKWKHFRVWVRIFODLPVDULVLQJ7KHDQQXDOPHPEHUVKLSFRQWULEXWLRQVDQGDQ\H[FHVVHV
SD\DEOHLQUHVSHFWRISDUWLFXODUFODLPVDUHFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZKHQWKHOLDELOLW\DULVHV
1.14

Contingencies
&RQWLQJHQWDVVHWV WKDWLVDVVHWVDULVLQJIURPSDVWHYHQWVZKRVHH[LVWHQFHZLOORQO\EHFRQILUPHGE\RQHRU
PRUHIXWXUHHYHQWVQRWZKROO\ZLWKLQWKHHQWLW\¶VFRQWURO DUHQRWUHFRJQLVHGDVDVVHWVEXWDUHGLVFORVHGLQ
QRWHZKHUHDQLQIORZRIHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVLVSUREDEOH
&RQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVDUHQRWUHFRJQLVHGEXWDUHGLVFORVHGLQQRWHXQOHVVWKHSUREDELOLW\RIDWUDQVIHURI
HFRQRPLFEHQHILWVLVUHPRWH
&RQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVDUHGHILQHGDV
SRVVLEOHREOLJDWLRQVDULVLQJIURPSDVWHYHQWVZKRVHH[LVWHQFHZLOOEHFRQILUPHGRQO\E\WKHRFFXUUHQFHRI
RQHRUPRUHXQFHUWDLQIXWXUHHYHQWVQRWZKROO\ZLWKLQWKHHQWLW\¶VFRQWURORU
SUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQVDULVLQJIURPSDVWHYHQWVEXWIRUZKLFKLWLVQRWSUREDEOHWKDWDWUDQVIHURIHFRQRPLF
EHQHILWVZLOODULVHRUIRUZKLFKWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQFDQQRWEHPHDVXUHGZLWKVXIILFLHQWUHOLDELOLW\

1.15

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDO 3'& LVDW\SHRISXEOLFVHFWRUHTXLW\ILQDQFHEDVHGRQWKHH[FHVVRIDVVHWVRYHU
OLDELOLWLHVDWWKHWLPHRIHVWDEOLVKPHQWRIWKHSUHGHFHVVRU1+6RUJDQLVDWLRQ+07UHDVXU\KDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDW
3'&LVQRWDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWZLWKLQWKHPHDQLQJRI,$6
7KH6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHFDQLVVXHQHZ3'&WRDQGUHTXLUHUHSD\PHQWVRI3'&IURPWKH7UXVW3'&LV
UHFRUGHGDWWKHYDOXHUHFHLYHG
$FKDUJHUHIOHFWLQJWKHFRVWRIFDSLWDOXWLOLVHGE\WKHWUXVWLVSD\DEOHDVSXEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDOGLYLGHQG7KH
FKDUJHLVFDOFXODWHGDWWKHUDWHVHWE\+07UHDVXU\ FXUUHQWO\ RQWKHDYHUDJHUHOHYDQWQHWDVVHWVRIWKH
WUXVWGXULQJWKHILQDQFLDO\HDU5HOHYDQWQHWDVVHWVDUHFDOFXODWHGDVWKHYDOXHRIDOODVVHWVOHVVWKHYDOXHRI
DOOOLDELOLWLHVZLWKFHUWDLQDGGLWLRQVDQGGHGXFWLRQVDVGHILQHGE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH
7KLVSROLF\LVDYDLODEOHDWKWWSVZZZJRYXNJRYHUQPHQWSXEOLFDWLRQVJXLGDQFHRQILQDQFLQJDYDLODEOHWRQKV
WUXVWVDQGIRXQGDWLRQWUXVWV
,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVODLGGRZQE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH DVWKHLVVXHURI
3'& WKHGLYLGHQGIRUWKH\HDULVFDOFXODWHGRQWKHDFWXDODYHUDJHUHOHYDQWQHWDVVHWVDVVHWRXWLQWKH³SUH
DXGLW´YHUVLRQRIWKHDQQXDODFFRXQWV7KHGLYLGHQGFDOFXODWHGLVQRWUHYLVHGVKRXOGDQ\DGMXVWPHQWWRQHW
DVVHWVRFFXUDVDUHVXOWWKHDXGLWRIWKHDQQXDODFFRXQWV

1.16

Value Added Tax
0RVWRIWKHDFWLYLWLHVRIWKH7UXVWDUHRXWVLGHWKHVFRSHRI9$7DQGLQJHQHUDORXWSXWWD[GRHVQRWDSSO\DQG
LQSXWWD[RQSXUFKDVHVLVQRWUHFRYHUDEOH,UUHFRYHUDEOH9$7LVFKDUJHGWRWKHUHOHYDQWH[SHQGLWXUHFDWHJRU\
RULQFOXGHGLQWKHFDSLWDOLVHGSXUFKDVHFRVWRIIL[HGDVVHWV:KHUHRXWSXWWD[LVFKDUJHGRULQSXW9$7LV
UHFRYHUDEOHWKHDPRXQWVDUHVWDWHGQHWRI9$7

1.17

Corporation Tax
7KH7UXVWGRHVQRWIDOOZLWKLQWKHVFRSHRI&RUSRUDWLRQ7D[IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKQHLWKHUGLGLW
IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

1.18

Climate Change Levy
([SHQGLWXUHRQWKHFOLPDWHFKDQJHOHY\LVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHDVLQFXUUHG
EDVHGRQWKHSUHYDLOLQJFKDUJHDEOHUDWHVIRUHQHUJ\FRQVXPSWLRQ

1.19

Foreign Exchange
7KHIXQFWLRQDODQGSUHVHQWDWLRQDOFXUUHQF\RIWKH7UXVWLVVWHUOLQJ$WUDQVDFWLRQGHQRPLQDWHGLQDIRUHLJQ
FXUUHQF\LVWUDQVODWHGLQWRWKHIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\DWWKHVSRWH[FKDQJHUDWHRQWKHGDWHVRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQ
$WWKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGPRQHWDU\DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVGHQRPLQDWHGLQIRUHLJQFXUUHQFLHVDUH
UHWUDQVODWHGDWWKHVSRWH[FKDQJHUDWHRQ0DUFK5HVXOWLQJH[FKDQJHJDLQVDQGORVVHVIRUHLWKHURIWKHVH
DUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH7UXVW¶VLQFRPHRUH[SHQVHLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKH\DULVH
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1.20

Third party assets
$VVHWVEHORQJLQJWRWKLUGSDUWLHVLQZKLFKWKH7UXVWKDVQREHQHILFLDOLQWHUHVW VXFKDVPRQH\KHOGRQEHKDOI
RISDWLHQWV DUHQRWUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHDFFRXQWV+RZHYHUWKH\DUHGLVFORVHGLQDVHSDUDWHQRWHWRWKH
DFFRXQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRI+07UHDVXU\¶V)5H0

1.21

Losses and Special Payments
/RVVHVDQGVSHFLDOSD\PHQWVDUHLWHPVWKDW3DUOLDPHQWZRXOGQRWKDYHFRQWHPSODWHGZKHQLWDJUHHGIXQGV
IRUWKHKHDOWKVHUYLFHRUSDVVHGOHJLVODWLRQ%\WKHLUQDWXUHWKH\DUHLWHPVWKDWLGHDOO\VKRXOGQRWDULVH7KH\
DUHWKHUHIRUHVXEMHFWWRVSHFLDOFRQWUROSURFHGXUHVFRPSDUHGZLWKWKHJHQHUDOLW\RISD\PHQWV7KH\DUH
GLYLGHGLQWRGLIIHUHQWFDWHJRULHVZKLFKJRYHUQWKHZD\WKDWLQGLYLGXDOFDVHVDUHKDQGOHG/RVVHVDQGVSHFLDO
SD\PHQWVDUHFKDUJHGWRWKHUHOHYDQWIXQFWLRQDOKHDGLQJVLQH[SHQGLWXUHRQDQDFFUXDOVEDVLV
7KHORVVHVDQGVSHFLDOSD\PHQWVQRWHLVFRPSLOHGGLUHFWO\IURPWKHORVVHVDQGFRPSHQVDWLRQVUHJLVWHU
ZKLFKUHSRUWVRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLVZLWKWKHH[FHSWLRQRISURYLVLRQVIRUIXWXUHORVVHV

1.22

Gifts
*LIWVDUHLWHPVWKDWDUHYROXQWDULO\GRQDWHGZLWKQRSUHFRQGLWLRQVDQGZLWKRXWWKHH[SHFWDWLRQRIDQ\UHWXUQ
*LIWVLQFOXGHDOOWUDQVDFWLRQVHFRQRPLFDOO\HTXLYDOHQWWRIUHHDQGXQUHPXQHUDWHGWUDQVIHUVVXFKDVWKHORDQ
RIDQDVVHWIRULWVH[SHFWHGXVHIXOOLIHDQGWKHVDOHRUOHDVHRIDVVHWVDWEHORZPDUNHWYDOXH

1.23

Note 1.1 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations
1RQHZDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVRUUHYLVLRQVWRH[LVWLQJVWDQGDUGVKDYHEHHQHDUO\DGRSWHGLQ

1.24

Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted
IFRS 16 Leases
,)56/HDVHVZLOOUHSODFH,$6/HDVHV,)5,&'HWHUPLQLQJZKHWKHUDQDUUDQJHPHQWFRQWDLQVDOHDVH
DQGRWKHULQWHUSUHWDWLRQVDQGLVDSSOLFDEOHLQWKHSXEOLFVHFWRUIRUSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJ$SULO7KH
VWDQGDUGSURYLGHVDVLQJOHDFFRXQWLQJPRGHOIRUOHVVHHVUHFRJQLVLQJDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWDQGREOLJDWLRQLQ
WKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQIRUPRVWOHDVHVVRPHOHDVHVDUHH[HPSWWKURXJKDSSOLFDWLRQRISUDFWLFDO
H[SHGLHQWVH[SODLQHGEHORZ)RUWKRVHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQWKHVWDQGDUGDOVR
UHTXLUHVWKHUHPHDVXUHPHQWRIOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVLQVSHFLILFFLUFXPVWDQFHVDIWHUWKHFRPPHQFHPHQWRIWKH
OHDVHWHUP)RUOHVVRUVWKHGLVWLQFWLRQEHWZHHQRSHUDWLQJDQGILQDQFHOHDVHVZLOOUHPDLQDQGWKHDFFRXQWLQJ
ZLOOEHODUJHO\XQFKDQJHG
,)56FKDQJHVWKHGHILQLWLRQRIDOHDVHFRPSDUHGWR,$6DQG,)5,&7KH7UXVWZLOODSSO\WKLV
GHILQLWLRQWRQHZOHDVHVRQO\DQGZLOOJUDQGIDWKHULWVDVVHVVPHQWVPDGHXQGHUWKHROGVWDQGDUGVRIZKHWKHU
H[LVWLQJFRQWUDFWVFRQWDLQDOHDVH
2QWUDQVLWLRQWR,)56RQ$SULOWKHWUXVWZLOODSSO\WKHVWDQGDUGUHWURVSHFWLYHO\ZLWKWKHFXPXODWLYH
HIIHFWRILQLWLDOO\DSSO\LQJWKHVWDQGDUGUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYHDWWKDWGDWH)RU
H[LVWLQJRSHUDWLQJOHDVHVZLWKDUHPDLQLQJOHDVHWHUPRIPRUHWKDQPRQWKVDQGDQXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWYDOXH
RIDWOHDVW DOHDVHOLDELOLW\ZLOOEHUHFRJQLVHGHTXDOWRWKHYDOXHRIUHPDLQLQJOHDVHSD\PHQWV
GLVFRXQWHGRQWUDQVLWLRQDWWKHWUXVW¶VLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWH7KHWUXVW VLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWHZLOO
EHGHILQHGE\+07UHDVXU\&XUUHQWO\WKLVUDWHLVEXWWKLVPD\FKDQJHEHWZHHQQRZDQGDGRSWLRQRI
WKHVWDQGDUG7KHUHODWHGULJKWRIXVHDVVHWZLOOEHPHDVXUHGHTXDOWRWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DGMXVWHGIRUDQ\
SUHSDLGRUDFFUXHGOHDVHSD\PHQWV)RUH[LVWLQJSHSSHUFRUQOHDVHVQRWFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFHOHDVHVDULJKW
RIXVHDVVHWZLOOEHPHDVXUHGDWFXUUHQWYDOXHLQH[LVWLQJXVHRUIDLUYDOXH7KHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHDVVHW
YDOXHDQGWKHFDOFXODWHGOHDVHOLDELOLW\ZLOOEHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHUHVHUYHRQ
WUDQVLWLRQ1RDGMXVWPHQWVZLOOEHPDGHRQ$SULOIRUH[LVWLQJILQDQFHOHDVHV
)RUOHDVHVFRPPHQFLQJLQWKHWUXVWZLOOQRWUHFRJQLVHDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWRUOHDVHOLDELOLW\IRUVKRUW
WHUPOHDVHV OHVVWKDQRUHTXDOWRPRQWKV RUIRUOHDVHVRIORZYDOXHDVVHWV OHVVWKDQ  5LJKWRI
XVHDVVHWVZLOOEHVXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHGRQDEDVLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKRZQHGDVVHWVDQGGHSUHFLDWHGRYHU
WKHOHQJWKRIWKHOHDVHWHUP
7KHLPSOHPHQWDWLRQGDWHIRU,)56LQWKH1+6ZDVUHYLVHGWR$SULOLQ1RYHPEHU'XHWRWKH
QHHGWRUHDVVHVVOHDVHFDOFXODWLRQVWRJHWKHUZLWKXQFHUWDLQW\RQH[SHFWHGOHDVLQJDFWLYLW\IURP$SULO
DQGEH\RQGDTXDQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHH[SHFWHGLPSDFWRIDSSO\LQJWKHVWDQGDUGLQLVFXUUHQWO\
LPSUDFWLFDEOH+RZHYHUWKHWUXVWGRHVH[SHFWWKLVVWDQGDUGWRKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
OLDELOLWLHVDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQ
)URP$SULOWKHSULQFLSOHVRI,)56ZLOODOVREHDSSOLHGWRWKH7UXVW¶V3),OLDELOLWLHVZKHUHIXWXUH
SD\PHQWVDUHOLQNHGWR 53,7KH3),LPSXWHGOHDVHOLDELOLW\ZLOOEHUHPHDVXUHGZKHQDFKDQJHLQWKHLQGH[
FDXVHVDFKDQJHLQIXWXUHLPSXWHGOHDVHSD\PHQWVDQGWKDWFKDQJHKDVWDNHQHIIHFWLQWKHFDVKIORZ8QGHU
H[LVWLQJDFFRXQWLQJSUDFWLFHVDPRXQWVUHODWLQJWRFKDQJHVLQWKHSULFHLQGH[DUHH[SHQVHGDVLQFXUUHG7KLV
LVH[SHFWHGWRLQFUHDVHWKH3),OLDELOLW\RQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQXSRQWUDQVLWLRQWR,)567KH
HIIHFWRIWKLVKDVQRW\HWEHHQTXDQWLILHG
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Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
7KHIROORZLQJDUHWKHMXGJHPHQWVDSDUWIURPWKRVHLQYROYLQJHVWLPDWLRQV VHHEHORZ WKDWPDQDJHPHQWKDV
PDGHLQWKHSURFHVVRIDSSO\LQJWKH7UXVW¶VDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDQGWKDWKDYHWKHPRVWVLJQLILFDQWHIIHFWRQWKH
DPRXQWVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$QDVVHVVPHQWRIWKH7UXVWV3),VFKHPHVZDVPDGHDVSDUWRIWKH,)56WUDQVLWLRQLQWKHDFFRXQWV
DQGLWZDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKH3),VFKHPHLQUHVSHFWRIWKHPDLQ+RVSLWDOEXLOGLQJVKRXOGEHDFFRXQWHGIRUDV
DQRQ6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQDVVHWVXQGHU,)5,&7KLVUHTXLUHGMXGJHPHQWVWREHPDGHLQRUGHU
WRGHWHUPLQHWKHUHTXLUHGDFFRXQWLQJWUHDWPHQW7KHNH\MXGJHPHQWVZHUHWRLQLWLDOO\YDOXHWKHKRVSLWDODWWKH
FRVWRIFRQVWUXFWLRQWRDWWULEXWHDQDVVHWOLIHRI\HDUVDQGWRLGHQWLI\WKHFRPSRQHQWVRIWKHKRVSLWDOVXEMHFW
WROLIHF\FOHPDLQWHQDQFHWKDWVKRXOGEHDFFRXQWHGIRUVHSDUDWHO\7KHDQQXDOFRQWULEXWLRQWROLIHF\FOH
PDLQWHQDQFHLVWUHDWHGDVDQRQFXUUHQWSUHSD\PHQWXQWLOLWLVFDSLWDOLVHGFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKHRSHUDWRUV
VFKHGXOHIRUUHSODFHPHQW
$IXOOYDOXDWLRQRIWKH3),KRVSLWDOZDVSHUIRUPHGDVDW0DUFKE\WKH7UXVW VH[WHUQDOO\DSSRLQWHG
LQGHSHQGHQWYDOXHU0RQWDJX(YDQV&KDUWHUHG6XUYH\RUV
7KHUHYDOXDWLRQEDVLVZDVGHSUHFLDWHGUHSODFHPHQWFRVWDVD0RGHUQ(TXLYDOHQW$VVHW
7KHYDOXDWLRQZDVDFFRXQWHGIRULQWKHDFFRXQWV
)RUWKHYDOXDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRDQLQGH[DWLRQUHYLHZE\0RQDWJX(YDQVWRDVVHVVWKH
YDOXDWLRQPRYHPHQWRYHUWKH\HDUWR0DUFK7KLVPRYHPHQWKDVEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKH
DFFRXQWVDORQJZLWKFDSLWDODGGLWLRQVLQWKHILQDQFLDO\HDU

1.26

Sources of estimation uncertainty
7KHIROORZLQJDUHDVVXPSWLRQVDERXWWKHIXWXUHDQGRWKHUPDMRUVRXUFHVRIHVWLPDWLRQXQFHUWDLQW\WKDWKDYHD
VLJQLILFDQWULVNRIUHVXOWLQJLQDPDWHULDODGMXVWPHQWWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVRIDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVZLWKLQWKH
QH[WILQDQFLDO\HDU
(VWLPDWLRQVDVWRWKHUHFRYHUDELOLW\RIUHFHLYDEOHVDQGWKHYDOXDWLRQRILQYHQWRULHVKDYHEHHQPDGHLQ
GHWHUPLQLQJFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVRIWKRVHDVVHWV9DULDWLRQLVQRWH[SHFWHGWREHVLJQLILFDQW
-XGJHPHQWKDVEHHQXVHGWRGHWHUPLQHWKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRISURYLVLRQVGHIHUUDORILQFRPHDQGDFFUXDOVIRU
H[SHQGLWXUH
$QHVWLPDWHKDVEHHQXVHGWRGHWHUPLQHWRWDOIXWXUHREOLJDWLRQVXQGHU3),FRQWUDFWVDVGLVFORVHGLQQRWH
LQUHODWLRQWRIXWXUHUDWHVRILQIODWLRQ7KLVHVWLPDWHGRHVQRWDIIHFWWKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIOLDELOLWLHVLQWKH
6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQDW0DUFKRU0DUFKRUWKHDPRXQWVFKDUJHGWKURXJKWKH
6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH
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2. Operating segments
,)56UHTXLUHVLQFRPHDQGH[SHQGLWXUHWREHEURNHQGRZQLQWRWKHRSHUDWLQJVHJPHQWVUHSRUWHG
WRWKHFKLHIRSHUDWLQJGHFLVLRQPDNHU,QWKHFDVHRIWKH7UXVWWKLVKDVEHHQGHWHUPLQHGWREHWKH([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRUV
7KH([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRUVUHFHLYHVHJPHQWDOLQIRUPDWLRQIRUH[SHQGLWXUH6HJPHQWVDUHGHILQHGDVWKH7UXVW VGLYLVLRQVDVLGHQWLILHGLQ
WKHIROORZLQJWDEOHZKLFKDOVRGHVFULEHVWKHVHUYLFHWKDWHDFKSURYLGHV7KH6HUYLFHVGLYLVLRQGHDOVZLWKDUHDVVXFKDVWKH
FRPPLVVLRQLQJRIFDWHULQJSRUWHULQJDQGFOHDQLQJDVZHOODVVXSSRUWIXQFWLRQV([SHQGLWXUHRQ&RYLGLVUHSRUWHGVHSDUDWHO\WRWKH
([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRUVDVSDUWRIWKHSDQGHPLFLQFLGHQWUHSRQVHDQGKDVEHHQLQFOXGHGDVDVHSDUDWHRSHUDWLQJVHJPHQW$VDUHVXOW
WKHFRPSDUDWLYHVKDYHEHHQUHVWDWHG
,QFRPH DQG DVVHWV DUH QRW UHSRUWHG E\ GLYLVLRQ VR DUH QRW DQDO\VHG LQ WKH GDWD EHORZ 'HWDLOV RI LQFRPH E\ VRXUFH LV SURYLGHG LQ
QRWH7KH7UXVW VPDLQVRXUFHRILQFRPHLVIURPZLWKLQWKH8.IRUWKHSURYLVLRQRIKHDOWKFDUHVHUYLFHV
2020/21:

3D\
1RQ3D\
Total

Medicine

Clinical
Support

Surgery
and
Cromer

Emergency

Services

Pandemic
Incident
Response

Total

£'000

Women,
Children
and Sexual
Health
£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000



224,733



105,955



155,179



57,384



31,609



108,609



33,365

449,684
267,150
716,834

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000



203,081



106,131



167,698



52,841



29,784



98,421



841

402,520
256,277
658,797

2020/21
£'000



449,684

2019/20
£'000



402,520

£'000








267,150

£'000








256,277

2019/20 :

3D\
1RQ3D\
Total

Reconciliation - Pay
(PSOR\HH([SHQVHV1RQH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUV QRWH
(PSOR\HH([SHQVHV6WDIIDQGH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUV QRWH
966 5HGXQGDQF\ QRWH
Total
Reconciliation - Non Pay
2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV QRWH
/HVV3D\ VHHDERYH
/HVV'HSUHFLDWLRQ QRWH
/HVV&RQVRUWLXPSD\PHQWV QRWH
/HVV/RVVRQGLVSRVDO QRWH
/HVV5HVHDUFKDQGGHYHORSPHQW QRWH
/HVV(GXFDWLRQ WUDLQLQJQRWLRQDOH[SHQGLWXUHIXQGHGIURPDSSUHQWLFHVKLSIXQG QRWH
/HVV,PSDLUPHQWV QRWH
Total
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3. Operating income
3.1 Income from activities

1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWV
1+67UXVWV
&&*VDQG1+6(QJODQG
1+62WKHU
1RQ1+63ULYDWHSDWLHQWV
1RQ1+62YHUVHDVSDWLHQWV QRQUHFLSURFDO 
1+6LQMXU\FRVWUHFRYHU\VFKHPH IRUPHUO\57$
1RQ1+62WKHU
Total income from activities

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000









657,541









578,425

6XEVWDQWLDOO\DOOLQFRPHIURPDFWLYLWLHVFRPHVIURPWKHSURYLVLRQRIPDQGDWRU\VHUYLFHV
1+6 LQMXU\ FRVW UHFRYHU\ VFKHPH LQFRPH LV VXEMHFW WR D SURYLVLRQ IRU LPSDLUPHQW RI UHFHLYDEOHV RI 
 WRUHIOHFWH[SHFWHGUDWHVRIFROOHFWLRQ
2YHUVHDV SDWLHQWV QRQUHFLSURFDO LQFRPH LV DPRXQWV UHFHLYHG E\ WKH 7UXVW ZKHUH WKH RYHUVHDV SDWLHQW LV OLDEOH
IRU WKH FRVW 7KLV RFFXUV ZKHQ WKHUH LV QRW D QDWLRQDO UHFLSURFDO DUUDQJHPHQW ZLWK WKH FRXQWU\ WKDW WKH SDWLHQW LV D
QDWLRQDORI
6XEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO LQFRPH DULVHV LQ WKH 8. 7KHUH DUH WZR  IRXU PDLQ FXVWRPHUV RI WKH 7UXVW ZKR HDFK
DFFRXQW IRU WKH PDMRULW\ RI LWV LQFRPH IURP DFWLYLWLHV 7KH\ DUH 1+6 1RUIRON DQG :DYHQH\ &&*  DQG
1+6 (QJODQG   ,Q  WKH\ ZHUH 1+6 (QJODQG   1+6 6RXWK 1RUIRON &&*   1+6
1RUZLFK&&*  DQG1+61RUWK1RUIRON&&*  
3.2 Income from activities by category
Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000

%ORFNFRQWUDFWV\VWHPHQYHORSHLQFRPH
+LJKFRVWGUXJVLQFRPHIURPFRPPLVVLRQHUV
2WKHU1+6FOLQLFDOLQFRPH
3ULYDWHSDWLHQWLQFRPH
$GGLWLRQDOSHQVLRQFRQWULEXWLRQFHQWUDOIXQGLQJ
2WKHUFOLQLFDOLQFRPH















Total income from activities

657,541

578,425

3.3 Overseas Visitors (patient charged direct by the Trust)
Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000











Year ended 31
March 2021

Year ended 31
March 2020







657,541

578,425

,QFRPHUHFRJQLVHGWKLV\HDU
&DVKSD\PHQWVUHFHLYHGLQ\HDU DOO\HDUV
$PRXQWVDGGHGWRSURYLVLRQIRULPSDLUPHQWRIUHFHLYDEOHV DOO\HDUV
$PRXQWVZULWWHQRIILQ\HDU DOO\HDUV
3.4 Income from Commissioner Requested Services
2SHUDWLQJLQFRPHLQFOXGHVLQFRPHIURP&RPPLVVLRQHU5HTXHVWHG6HUYLFHVDVIROORZV

&RPPLVVLRQHU5HTXHVWHG6HUYLFHV
1RQ&RPPLVVLRQHU5HTXHVWHG6HUYLFHV
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4. Other operating income

5HVHDUFKDQGGHYHORSPHQW
(GXFDWLRQDQGWUDLQLQJ
'RQDWLRQVJUDQWVRISK\VLFDODVVHWV QRQFDVK UHFHLYHGIURP1+6
FKDULWLHV
'RQDWLRQVJUDQWVRISK\VLFDODVVHWV QRQFDVK UHFHLYHGIURP
RWKHUERGLHV
'RQDWHGHTXLSPHQWIURP'+6&IRU&29,'UHVSRQVH QRQFDVK
&DVKGRQDWLRQVIRUWKHSXUFKDVHRIFDSLWDODVVHWVUHFHLYHGIURP
1+6FKDULWLHV
&RQWULEXWLRQVWRH[SHQGLWXUHFRQVXPDEOHV LQYHQWRU\ GRQDWHG
IURP'+6&JURXSERGLHVIRU&29,'UHVSRQVH
5HQWDOUHYHQXHIURPRSHUDWLQJOHDVHV
6XVWDLQDELOLW\DQGWUDQVIRUPDWLRQIXQG 67)
5HLPEXUVHPHQWDQGWRSXSIXQGLQJ
2WKHU
6WDIIUHFKDUJHV
&DUSDUNLQJ
3KDUPDF\VDOHV
6WDIIDFFRPPRGDWLRQUHQWDOV
&OLQLFDOWHVWV
&OLQLFDOH[FHOOHQFHDZDUGV
*URVVLQJXSFRQVRUWLXPDUUDQJHPHQWV
2WKHULQFRPH
Total other operating income

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000







































145,828









93,171

5. Total operating income
7RWDORSHUDWLQJ,QFRPHLVIURPWKHVXSSO\RIVHUYLFHV  LVLQFRPHIURPDFWLYLWLHVDQG
 IURPRWKHURSHUDWLQJLQFRPH

6. Operating expenses

6HUYLFHVIURP1+6WUXVWV
3XUFKDVHRIKHDOWKFDUHIURPQRQ1+6ERGLHV
(PSOR\HHH[SHQVHVQRQH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUV
(PSOR\HHH[SHQVHVVWDIIDQGH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUV
6XSSOLHVDQGVHUYLFHVFOLQLFDO
6XSSOLHVDQGVHUYLFHVJHQHUDO
(VWDEOLVKPHQW
5HVHDUFKDQGGHYHORSPHQW
7UDQVSRUW
&KDUJHVWRRSHUDWLQJH[SHQGLWXUHIRURQ6R)3,)5,&VFKHPHV HJ
3),/,)7 RQ,)56EDVLV
3UHPLVHV
0RYHPHQWLQFUHGLWORVVDOORZDQFHFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHV
0RYHPHQWLQFUHGLWORVVDOORZDQFHDOORWKHUUHFHLYDEOHV
&KDQJHLQSURYLVLRQVGLVFRXQWUDWH V
,QYHQWRULHVZULWWHQGRZQ
,QYHQWRULHVFRQVXPHG
5HQWDOVXQGHURSHUDWLQJOHDVHV
'HSUHFLDWLRQRQSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
,PSDLUPHQWV
$XGLWIHHVSD\DEOHWRWKHH[WHUQDODXGLWRU
DXGLWVHUYLFHVVWDWXWRU\DXGLW
RWKHUDXGLWRUUHPXQHUDWLRQ H[WHUQDODXGLWRURQO\
&OLQLFDOQHJOLJHQFH
/RVVRQGLVSRVDORIQRQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
/HJDOIHHV
&RQVXOWDQF\FRVWV
,QWHUQDODXGLW
(GXFDWLRQDQGWUDLQLQJQRWLRQDOH[SHQGLWXUHIXQGHGIURP
DSSUHQWLFHVKLSIXQG
7UDLQLQJFRXUVHVDQGFRQIHUHQFHV
3DWLHQWWUDYHO
5HGXQGDQF\
,QVXUDQFH
2WKHUVHUYLFHVHJH[WHUQDOSD\UROO
*URVVLQJXSFRQVRUWLXPDUUDQJHPHQWV
/RVVHVH[JUDWLD VSHFLDOSD\PHQWV
2WKHU
Total operating expenses

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000




































































764,895










692,050

7KH HQJDJHPHQW OHWWHU VLJQHG RQ WK 0D\  VWDWHV WKDW WKH OLDELOLW\ RI .30* //3 LWV PHPEHUV SDUWQHUV DQG
VWDII ZKHWKHU FRQWUDFW QHJOLJHQFH RU RWKHUZLVH LQ UHVSHFW RI VHUYLFHV SURYLGHG LQ FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK RU DULVLQJ RXW RI
WKHDXGLWVKDOOLQQRFLUFXPVWDQFHVH[FHHG NLQWKHDJJUHJDWHLQUHVSHFWRIDOOVXFKVHUYLFHV
3DJH
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6.1 Auditor's Remuneration

$XGLW)HHVVWDWXWRU\DXGLW
$VVXUDQFHVHUYLFHV
TOTAL

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000



103



82

7KH7UXVW VDXGLWRUV.30*//3 .30*//3 DOVRDXGLWWKHDVVRFLDWHGFKDULW\ 1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK
+RVSLWDOV&KDULW\ IRUDIHHRI N  N 

7. Operating leases
7.1 As lessee

Payments recognised as an expense

0LQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWV
Total

Total future aggregate minimum lease payments
3D\DEOH
1RWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
%HWZHHQRQHDQGILYH\HDUV
$IWHU\HDUV
Total

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000


10,751


8,818

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000




64,837




73,606

7.2 As lessor
7KH7UXVWOHDVHVWKHUHWDLOXQLWVDWLWV&ROQH\/DQHVLWHWRDWKLUGSDUW\7KHFRQWUDFWLVIRUDSHULRGRI\HDUV
DQGZDVHQWHUHGLQWRLQ

Rentals, recognised as other operating income

5HQWVUHFRJQLVHGDVLQFRPHLQWKH\HDU
&RQWLQJHQWUHQWVUHFRJQLVHGDVLQFRPHLQWKH\HDU
Total

Total future aggregate minimum lease payments
5HFHLYDEOH
1RWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
%HWZHHQRQHDQGILYH\HDUV
$IWHU\HDUV
Total

3DJH

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000



147



220

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000




962




1,050
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8. Employee costs and numbers
8.1 Employee costs

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000









449,536









402,377

Year ended 31
March 2021
Number

Year ended 31
March 2020
Number









8,846









8,331

6DODULHVDQGZDJHV
6RFLDOVHFXULW\FRVWV
$SSUHQWLFHVKLSOHY\
(PSOR\HU VFRQWULEXWLRQVWR1+6SHQVLRQV
3HQVLRQFRVWHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQVSDLGE\1+6(RQSURYLGHU VEHKDOI
3HQVLRQFRVWRWKHU
7HUPLQDWLRQEHQHILWV
$JHQF\FRQWUDFWVWDII
Total
$ERYHWRWDOH[FOXGHVFRVWVRIQRQH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUV
'HWDLOVRQWKHUHPXQHUDWLRQRINH\PDQDJHPHQWSHUVRQQHOFDQEHIRXQGLQQRWH
8.2 Monthly average number of people employed

0HGLFDODQGGHQWDO
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGHVWDWHV
+HDOWKFDUHDVVLVWDQWVDQGRWKHUVXSSRUWVWDII
1XUVLQJPLGZLIHU\DQGKHDOWKYLVLWLQJVWDII
1XUVLQJPLGZLIHU\DQGKHDOWKYLVLWLQJOHDUQHUV
6FLHQWLILFWKHUDSHXWLFDQGWHFKQLFDOVWDII
+HDOWKFDUHVFLHQFHVWDII
2WKHU
Total
7KHDERYHQXPEHUVDUHEDVHGRQZKROHWLPHHTXLYDOHQWV
8.3 Staff exit packages
Staff exit packages for the year ended 31 March 2021

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
 N
N N



4

Staff exit packages for the year ended 31 March 2020
Number of
compulsory
redundancies
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 N
N N
N N
N N
N N

3DJH
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9. Pension costs
3DVWDQGSUHVHQWHPSOR\HHVDUHFRYHUHGE\WKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKHWZR1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHV'HWDLOVRIWKH
EHQHILWVSD\DEOHDQGUXOHVRIWKH6FKHPHVFDQEHIRXQGRQWKH1+63HQVLRQVZHEVLWHDW
ZZZQKVEVDQKVXNSHQVLRQV%RWKDUHXQIXQGHGGHILQHGEHQHILWVFKHPHVWKDWFRYHU1+6HPSOR\HUV*3
SUDFWLFHVDQGRWKHUERGLHVDOORZHGXQGHUWKHGLUHFWLRQRIWKH6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHIRU+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUHLQ
(QJODQGDQG:DOHV7KH\DUHQRWGHVLJQHGWREHUXQLQDZD\WKDWZRXOGHQDEOH1+6ERGLHVWRLGHQWLI\WKHLUVKDUH
RIWKHXQGHUO\LQJVFKHPHDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV7KHUHIRUHHDFKVFKHPHLVDFFRXQWHGIRUDVLILWZHUHDGHILQHG
FRQWULEXWLRQVFKHPHWKHFRVWWRWKH1+6ERG\RISDUWLFLSDWLQJLQHDFKVFKHPHLVWDNHQDVHTXDOWRWKHFRQWULEXWLRQV
SD\DEOHWRWKDWVFKHPHIRUWKHDFFRXQWLQJSHULRG
,QRUGHUWKDWWKHGHILQHGEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVGRQRWGLIIHUPDWHULDOO\IURPWKRVH
WKDWZRXOGEHGHWHUPLQHGDWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWHE\DIRUPDODFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQWKH)5H0UHTXLUHVWKDW³WKHSHULRG
EHWZHHQIRUPDOYDOXDWLRQVVKDOOEHIRXU\HDUVZLWKDSSUR[LPDWHDVVHVVPHQWVLQLQWHUYHQLQJ\HDUV´$QRXWOLQHRI
WKHVHIROORZV
a) Accounting valuation
$YDOXDWLRQRIVFKHPHOLDELOLW\LVFDUULHGRXWDQQXDOO\E\WKHVFKHPHDFWXDU\ FXUUHQWO\WKH*RYHUQPHQW$FWXDU\¶V
'HSDUWPHQW DVDWWKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG7KLVXWLOLVHVDQDFWXDULDODVVHVVPHQWIRUWKHSUHYLRXVDFFRXQWLQJ
SHULRGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKXSGDWHGPHPEHUVKLSDQGILQDQFLDOGDWDIRUWKHFXUUHQWUHSRUWLQJSHULRGDQGLVDFFHSWHG
DVSURYLGLQJVXLWDEO\UREXVWILJXUHVIRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSXUSRVHV7KHYDOXDWLRQRIWKHVFKHPHOLDELOLW\DVDW
0DUFKLVEDVHGRQYDOXDWLRQGDWDDV0DUFKXSGDWHGWR0DUFKZLWKVXPPDU\JOREDOPHPEHU
DQGDFFRXQWLQJGDWD,QXQGHUWDNLQJWKLVDFWXDULDODVVHVVPHQWWKHPHWKRGRORJ\SUHVFULEHGLQ,$6UHOHYDQW
)5H0LQWHUSUHWDWLRQVDQGWKHGLVFRXQWUDWHSUHVFULEHGE\+07UHDVXU\KDYHDOVREHHQXVHG
7KHODWHVWDVVHVVPHQWRIWKHOLDELOLWLHVRIWKHVFKHPHLVFRQWDLQHGLQWKHUHSRUWRIWKHVFKHPHDFWXDU\ZKLFKIRUPV
SDUWRIWKHDQQXDO1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPH$FFRXQWV7KHVHDFFRXQWVFDQEHYLHZHGRQWKH1+63HQVLRQVZHEVLWH
DQGDUHSXEOLVKHGDQQXDOO\&RSLHVFDQDOVREHREWDLQHGIURP7KH6WDWLRQHU\2IILFH
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLVYDOXDWLRQLVWRDVVHVVWKHOHYHORIOLDELOLW\LQUHVSHFWRIWKHEHQHILWVGXHXQGHUWKHVFKHPHV
WDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWUHFHQWGHPRJUDSKLFH[SHULHQFH DQGWRUHFRPPHQGFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVSD\DEOHE\HPSOR\HHV
DQGHPSOR\HUV
7KHODWHVWDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQXQGHUWDNHQIRUWKH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHZDVFRPSOHWHGDVDW0DUFK7KH
UHVXOWVRIWKLVYDOXDWLRQVHWWKHHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHSD\DEOHIURP$SULOWRRISHQVLRQDEOHSD\7KH
IXQGLQJYDOXDWLRQZDVDOVRH[SHFWHGWRWHVWWKHFRVWRIWKH6FKHPHUHODWLYHWRWKHHPSOR\HUFRVWFDSWKDWZDV
VHWIROORZLQJWKHYDOXDWLRQ,Q-DQXDU\WKH*RYHUQPHQWDQQRXQFHGDSDXVHWRWKHFRVWFRQWUROHOHPHQW
RIWKHYDOXDWLRQVGXHWRWKHXQFHUWDLQW\DURXQGPHPEHUEHQHILWVFDXVHGE\WKHGLVFULPLQDWLRQUXOLQJUHODWLQJ
WR WKH 0F&ORXG FDVH
7KH*RYHUQPHQWVXEVHTXHQWO\DQQRXQFHGLQ-XO\WKDWWKHSDXVHKDGEHHQOLIWHGDQGVRWKHFRVWFRQWURO
HOHPHQWRIWKHYDOXDWLRQVFRXOGEHFRPSOHWHG7KH*RYHUQPHQWKDVVHWRXWWKDWWKHFRVWVRIUHPHG\RIWKH
GLVFULPLQDWLRQZLOOEHLQFOXGHGLQWKLVSURFHVV+07YDOXDWLRQGLUHFWLRQVZLOOVHWRXWWKHWHFKQLFDOGHWDLORIKRZWKH
FRVWVRIUHPHG\ZLOOEHLQFOXGHGLQWKHYDOXDWLRQSURFHVV7KH*RYHUQPHQWKDVDOVRFRQILUPHGWKDWWKH*RYHUQPHQW
$FWXDU\LVUHYLHZLQJWKHFRVWFRQWUROPHFKDQLVP DVZDVRULJLQDOO\DQQRXQFHGLQ 7KHUHYLHZZLOODVVHVV
ZKHWKHUWKHFRVWFRQWUROPHFKDQLVPLVZRUNLQJLQOLQHZLWKRULJLQDOJRYHUQPHQWREMHFWLYHVDQGUHSRUWHGWR
*RYHUQPHQWLQ$SULO7KHILQGLQJVRIWKLVUHYLHZZLOOQRWLPSDFWWKHYDOXDWLRQVZLWKWKHDLPIRUDQ\
FKDQJHVWRWKHFRVWFDSPHFKDQLVPWREHPDGHLQWLPHIRUWKHFRPSOHWLRQRIWKHDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQV

c) Scheme provisions
7KH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHSURYLGHGGHILQHGEHQHILWVZKLFKDUHVXPPDULVHGEHORZ7KLVOLVWLVDQLOOXVWUDWLYHJXLGH
RQO\DQGLVQRWLQWHQGHGWRGHWDLODOOWKHEHQHILWVSURYLGHGE\WKH6FKHPHRUWKHVSHFLILFFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPXVWEH
PHWEHIRUHWKHVHEHQHILWVFDQEHREWDLQHG
7KH6FKHPHLVD³ILQDOVDODU\´VFKHPH$QQXDOSHQVLRQVDUHQRUPDOO\EDVHGRQWKIRUWKHVHFWLRQDQGRI
WKHEHVWRIWKHODVWWKUHH\HDUVSHQVLRQDEOHSD\IRUHDFK\HDURIVHUYLFHDQGWKIRUWKHVHFWLRQRI
UHFNRQDEOHSD\SHU\HDURIPHPEHUVKLS0HPEHUVZKRDUHSUDFWLWLRQHUVDVGHILQHGE\WKH6FKHPH5HJXODWLRQV
KDYHWKHLUDQQXDOSHQVLRQVEDVHGXSRQWRWDOSHQVLRQDEOHHDUQLQJVRYHUWKHUHOHYDQWSHQVLRQDEOHVHUYLFH
:LWKHIIHFWIURP$SULOPHPEHUVFDQFKRRVHWRJLYHXSVRPHRIWKHLUDQQXDOSHQVLRQIRUDQDGGLWLRQDOWD[
IUHHOXPSVXPXSWRDPD[LPXPDPRXQWSHUPLWWHGXQGHU+05&UXOHV7KLVQHZSURYLVLRQLVNQRZQDV³SHQVLRQ
FRPPXWDWLRQ´
$QQXDOLQFUHDVHVDUHDSSOLHGWRSHQVLRQSD\PHQWVDWUDWHVGHILQHGE\WKH3HQVLRQV ,QFUHDVH $FWDQGDUH
EDVHGRQFKDQJHVLQUHWDLOSULFHVLQWKHWZHOYHPRQWKVHQGLQJ6HSWHPEHULQWKHSUHYLRXVFDOHQGDU\HDU)URP
WKH&RQVXPHU3ULFH,QGH[ &3, KDVEHHQXVHGDQGUHSODFHGWKH5HWDLO3ULFHV,QGH[ 53, 
(DUO\SD\PHQWRIDSHQVLRQZLWKHQKDQFHPHQWLVDYDLODEOHWRPHPEHUVRIWKHVFKHPHZKRDUHSHUPDQHQWO\
LQFDSDEOHRIIXOILOOLQJWKHLUGXWLHVHIIHFWLYHO\WKURXJKLOOQHVVRULQILUPLW\$GHDWKJUDWXLW\RIWZLFHILQDO\HDU¶V
SHQVLRQDEOHSD\IRUGHDWKLQVHUYLFHDQGILYHWLPHVWKHLUDQQXDOSHQVLRQIRUGHDWKDIWHUUHWLUHPHQWLVSD\DEOH
3DJH
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9. Pension costs (continued)
c) Scheme provisions (continued)
)RUHDUO\UHWLUHPHQWVRWKHUWKDQWKRVHGXHWRLOOKHDOWKWKHDGGLWLRQDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVDUHQRWIXQGHGE\WKH
VFKHPH7KHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHOLDELOLW\IRUWKHDGGLWLRQDOFRVWVLVFKDUJHGWRWKHHPSOR\HU
0HPEHUVFDQSXUFKDVHDGGLWLRQDOVHUYLFHLQWKH1+66FKHPHDQGFRQWULEXWHWRPRQH\SXUFKDVH$9&¶VUXQE\
WKH6FKHPH¶VDSSURYHGSURYLGHUVRUE\RWKHU)UHH6WDQGLQJ$GGLWLRQDO9ROXQWDU\&RQWULEXWLRQV )6$9& 
SURYLGHUV

10. Retirements due to ill-health
'XULQJWKHUHZHUH  HDUO\UHWLUHPHQWVIURPWKH7UXVWDJUHHGRQWKHJURXQGVRILOOKHDOWK
7KHHVWLPDWHGDGGLWLRQDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVRIWKHVHLOOKHDOWKUHWLUHPHQWVDUH N  N 7KHFRVW
RIWKHVHLOOKHDOWKUHWLUHPHQWVZLOOEHERUQHE\WKH1+6%XVLQHVV6HUYLFHV$XWKRULW\3HQVLRQV'LYLVLRQ

11. Better Payment Practice Code
11.1

Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance

7KLVQRWHKDVEHHQPRYHGWRSDJHRIWKHDQQXDOUHSRUW
11.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
7KH7UXVWPDGHSD\PHQWVRI QLOXQGHUWKLVOHJLVODWLRQLQWKH\HDU  QLO

Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000

,QWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOHRQEDQNGHSRVLWV





Total

0

208

12. Finance income

Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000

/RVVRQGLVSRVDORISODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW





Total

250

509

13. Other gains and losses

14. Finance expense - financial liabilities
including unwinding of discount on provisions

Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000

,QWHULP5HYHQXH6XSSRUW)DFLOLW\&RVW'HSWRI+HDOWK
)LQDQFHOHDVHV
)LQDQFH&RVWVLQ3),REOLJDWLRQV
0DLQILQDQFHFRVWV
&RQWLQJHQWILQDQFHFRVWV
8QZLQGLQJRIGLVFRXQWRQSURYLVLRQV















Total

31,307

34,535

3DJH






11,611





11,563

Net book value
1%92ZQHGDW$SULO
1%9)LQDQFHOHDVHDW$SULO
1%93),DW$SULO
1%9'RQDWHGDW$SULO
NBV total at 1 April 2020




216,320





273,077

3DJH





7,864





7,953

0





0






7,953

Assets under
construction
£000
7,864



/DQGEXLOGLQJVDQGGZHOOLQJVDUHDOOGHHPHGWRIDOOZLWKLQWKHGHILQLWLRQRISURWHFWHGDVVHWV





11,611

4,029





5,367






278,444

Land
£000
11,563



0





0

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000
220,349



Net book value
1%92ZQHGDW0DUFK
1%9)LQDQFHOHDVHDW0DUFK
1%93),DW0DUFK
1%9'RQDWHGDW0DUFK
NBV total at 31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020
3URYLGHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
5HFODVVLILFDWLRQV
5HYHUVDORILPSDLUPHQWV
5HYDOXDWLRQ(OLPLQDWHG
'LVSRVDOV
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2020
$GGLWLRQVSXUFKDVHG
$GGLWLRQVGRQDWHG
$GGLWLRQVHTXLSPHQWGRQDWHGIURP'+6&IRU&29,'
UHVSRQVH
5HFODVVLILFDWLRQV
,PSDLUPHQWV
5HYDOXDWLRQ
'LVSRVDOV
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2021

15. Property, plant and equipment





20,750





33,895

55,869





57,187






91,082

Plant &
machinery
£000
76,619
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65

80





88






153

Transport
equipment
£000
127







11,556





21,669

15,413





19,938






41,607

Information
technology
£000
26,969







12





751

858





898






1,649

Furniture &
fittings
£000
870



92,492
209
159,625
15,786
268,112

138,992
37
187,510
22,482
349,021

76,249
16,882
0
0
(6,317)
(3,336)
83,478

6,189
0
(7,201)
(4,192)
(3,732)
432,499

Total
£000
344,361
94,748
2,326





11,710

Net book value
1%92ZQHGDW$SULO
1%9)LQDQFHOHDVHDW$SULO
1%93),DW$SULO
1%9'RQDWHGDW$SULO
NBV total at 1 April 2019





514





7,864

0





0

Assets under
construction
£000
514






0
7,864

3DJH





201,020





216,320

15,273





4,029

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000
216,293






0
220,349

/DQGEXLOGLQJVDQGGZHOOLQJVDUHDOOGHHPHGWRIDOOZLWKLQWKHGHILQLWLRQRISURWHFWHGDVVHWV





11,563

0





0

Land
£000
11,710






0
11,563

Net book value
1%92ZQHGDW0DUFK
1%9)LQDQFHOHDVHDW0DUFK
1%93),DW0DUFK
1%9'RQDWHGDW0DUFK
NBV total at 31 March 2020

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019
3URYLGHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
5HYHUVDOVRILPSDLUPHQWV
5HFODVVLILFDWLRQV
5HYDOXDWLRQ(OLPLQDWHG
'LVSRVDOV
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2020

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2019
$GGLWLRQVSXUFKDVHG
$GGLWLRQVOHDVHG
$GGLWLRQVGRQDWHG
,PSDLUPHQWV
5HFODVVLILFDWLRQV
5HYDOXDWLRQ
'LVSRVDOV
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2020

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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16,830





20,750

54,396





55,869

Plant & machinery
£000
71,226






(1,740)
76,619





19





47

59





80

Transport
equipment
£000
78






0
127





2,489





11,556

14,184





15,413

Information
technology
£000
16,673






0
26,969





16





12

854





858

Furniture &
fittings
£000
870






0
870

64,335
373
153,997
13,893
232,598

92,492
209
159,625
15,786
268,112

84,766
10,072
(964)
0
(16,436)
(1,189)
76,249

Total
£000
317,364
31,949
0
3,805


(3,955)
(1,740)
344,361
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
'XULQJ WKH \HDU DVVHWV WR WKH YDOXH RI N  N ZHUH SXUFKDVHG XVLQJ FKDULWDEOH VXSSRUW ,Q DGGLWLRQ
N  N RIHTXLSPHQWUHODWLQJWRWKH7UXVW V&29,'UHVSRQVHZHUHGRQDWHGE\'+6&
3ODQW DQG (TXLSPHQW PDLQO\ FRQVLVWV RI ORZ YDOXH HTXLSPHQW ZLWK VKRUW DVVHW OLYHV ,W LV WKHUHIRUH FRQVLGHUHG WKDW
'HSUHFLDWHG+LVWRULF&RVWLVDSSURSULDWHWREHXVHGDVDSUR[\IRU'HSUHFLDWHG5HSODFHPHQW&RVWDQGIRU)DLU9DOXH
$ YDOXDWLRQ RI WKH 7UXVWV (VWDWH ZDV FDUULHG RXW LQ  E\ WKH 7UXVWV H[WHUQDOO\ DSSRLQWHG LQGHSHQGHQW YDOXHU
0RQWDJX(YDQV&KDUWHUHG6XUYH\RUV7KHHIIHFWLYHGDWHRIWKHYDOXDWLRQZDV0DUFK
7KH UHYDOXDWLRQ EDVLV IRU DOO RI WKH 7UXVWV /DQG DQG %XLOGLQJV ZDV GHSUHFLDWHG UHSODFHPHQW FRVW DV D 0RGHUQ
(TXLYDOHQW $VVHW ZLWK WKH H[FHSWLRQ RI WKH 5HVLGHQWLDO $FFRPPRGDWLRQ RQ WKH KRVSLWDO FDPSXV DQG WKH RIILFH
DFFRPPRGDWLRQZLWKLQWKHPDLQKRVSLWDOEXLOGLQJ
7KHVHZHUHYDOXHGDVQRQVSHFLDOLVHGDVVHWVDFFRUGLQJO\ZHUHYDOXHGRQDPDUNHWYDOXHIRUH[LVWLQJXVH
7KHYDOXDWLRQKDVEHHQDFFRXQWHGIRULQWKHDFFRXQWV
)RUWKHYDOXDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRDQLQGH[DWLRQUHYLHZE\0RQDWJX(YDQVWRDVVHVVWKHYDOXDWLRQ
PRYHPHQWRYHUWKH\HDUWR0DUFK7KLVPRYHPHQWKDVEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWVDORQJZLWK
FDSLWDODGGLWLRQVLQWKHILQDQFLDO\HDU
9DOXDWLRQJXLGDQFHLVVXHGE\WKH5R\DO,QVWLWXWHRI&KDUWHUHG6XUYH\RUVVWDWHVWKDWYDOXDWLRQVDUHSHUIRUPHGQHWRI
9$7ZKHUHWKH9$7LVUHFRYHUDEOHE\WKHHQWLW\7KLVEDVLVKDVEHHQDSSOLHGWRWKHWUXVW¶V3ULYDWH)LQDQFH,QLWLDWLYH
3), VFKHPHZKHUHWKHFRQVWUXFWLRQLVFRPSOHWHGE\DVSHFLDOSXUSRVHYHKLFOHDQGWKHFRVWVKDYHUHFRYHUDEOH9$7
IRUWKH7UXVW
3URSHUWLHVLQWKHFRXUVHRIFRQVWUXFWLRQIRUVHUYLFHRUDGPLQLVWUDWLRQSXUSRVHVDUHFDUULHGDWFRVWOHVVDQ\
LPSDLUPHQWORVV&RVWLQFOXGHVSURIHVVLRQDOIHHVDQGZKHUHFDSLWDOLVHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6%RUURZLQJ
&RVWV$VVHWVDUHUHYDOXHGDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQFRPPHQFHVZKHQWKHDVVHWVDUHEURXJKWLQWRXVH
,7HTXLSPHQWWUDQVSRUWHTXLSPHQWIXUQLWXUHDQGILWWLQJVDQGSODQWDQGPDFKLQHU\WKDWDUHKHOGIRURSHUDWLRQDOXVH
DUHYDOXHGDWGHSUHFLDWHGKLVWRULFFRVWZKHUHWKHVHDVVHWVKDYHVKRUWXVHIXOOLYHVRUORZYDOXHVRUERWKDVWKLVLVQRW
FRQVLGHUHGWREHPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWIURPFXUUHQWYDOXHLQH[LVWLQJXVH
7KHHFRQRPLFOLYHVRIWKHGHSUHFLDEOHLWHPVRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVGLVFORVHGLQWKHWDEOHEHORZ
Minimum
Life Maximum
(years) Life (years)
%XLOGLQJVH[FOXGLQJGZHOOLQJV
3ODQWDQGPDFKLQHU\
7UDQVSRUWHTXLSPHQW
,QIRUPDWLRQWHFKQRORJ\
)XUQLWXUH ILWWLQJV













$VVHWVXQGHUFRQVWUXFWLRQDUHQRWGHSUHFLDWHGXQWLOWKH\DUHEURXJKWLQWRXVH
/DQGLVQRWGHSUHFLDWHG
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16. Capital commitments
&RQWUDFWHGFDSLWDOFRPPLWPHQWVDW0DUFKQRWRWKHUZLVHLQFOXGHGLQWKHVHDFFRXQWV
31 March
2021
£'000

31 March
2020
£'000


7,534


7,943

31 March
2021
£'000

31 March
2020
£'000




13,129




11,865

Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000



139,607



128,991

3URSHUW\3ODQWDQG(TXLSPHQW
Total

17. Inventories
17.1. Inventories

'UXJV
&RQVXPDEOHV
&RQVXPDEOHVGRQDWHGIURP'+6&
Total
17.2 Inventories recognised in expenses

,QYHQWRULHVUHFRJQLVHGDVDQH[SHQVHLQWKH\HDU
:ULWHGRZQRILQYHQWRULHV LQFOXGLQJORVVHV
Total

18. Trade and other receivables
18.1 Trade and other receivables

31 March 2021

&RQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHVLQYRLFHG
&RQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHV QRW\HWQRQLQYRLFHG
$OORZDQFHIRULPSDLUHGFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHV
$OORZDQFHIRULPSDLUHGFRQWUDFWUHFHLYDEOHV QRW\HW
QRQLQYRLFHG
3UHSD\PHQWV QRQ3),
3),SUHSD\PHQWV
/LIHF\FOHUHSODFHPHQWV
,QWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOH
9$7UHFHLYDEOH
&OLQLFLDQSHQVLRQWD[SURYLVLRQUHLPEXUVHPHQW
IXQGLQJIURP1+6(
2WKHUUHFHLYDEOHV
Total

31 March 2020

Current
£'000

Non Current
£'000

Current
£'000

Non Current
£'000















































32,260



62,463



35,135



85,484

7KHVLJQLILFDQWPDMRULW\RIWUDGHLVZLWK&OLQLFDO&RPPLVVLRQLQJ*URXSVDVFRPPLVVLRQHUVIRU1+6SDWLHQWFDUH
VHUYLFHV$V&OLQLFDO&RPPLVVLRQLQJ*URXSVDUHIXQGHGE\JRYHUQPHQWWREX\1+6SDWLHQWFDUHVHUYLFHVQR
FUHGLWVFRULQJRIWKHPLVFRQVLGHUHGQHFHVVDU\
18.2 Provision for impairment of receivables

31 March
2021
£'000

31 March
2020
£'000

3,961



4,933

3,041



3,961

At 1 April as previously stated
,QFUHDVHLQSURYLVLRQ
$PRXQWVXWLOLVHG
8QXVHGDPRXQWVUHYHUVHG
At 31 March
3DJH
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19. Cash and cash equivalents

%DODQFHDW$SULO
1HWFKDQJHLQ\HDU
Balance at 31 March
Comprising:
&DVKDWFRPPHUFLDOEDQNVDQGLQKDQG
&DVKZLWKWKH*RYHUQPHQW%DQNLQJ6HUYLFH
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial
position and statement of cash flows

20. Trade and other payables

1+6WUDGHSD\DEOHV
$PRXQWVGXHWRRWKHUUHODWHGSDUWLHV
&DSLWDOSD\DEOHV
6RFLDOVHFXULW\FRVWV
2WKHUSD\DEOHV
$FFUXDOV
Total

Year ended 31
March 2021
£'000

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000



68,945



13,432







68,945

13,432

31 March 2021
Current
£'000

31 March 2020
Current
£'000







114,272







68,824

,QFOXGHGLQ$PRXQWVGXHWRRWKHUUHODWHGSDUWLHVDW0DUFKLV N 0DUFK N 
RIRXWVWDQGLQJSHQVLRQFRQWULEXWLRQV
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21. Borrowings

,QWHULP5HYHQXH6XSSRUW)DFLOLW\'HSWRI+HDOWK
&DSLWDO/RDQV'HSWRI+HDOWK
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHV
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHU3ULYDWH)LQDQFH,QLWLDWLYH
FRQWUDFWV
Total

31 March 2021
Current
£'000

31 March 2021
Non-current
£'000

31 March 2020
Current
£'000

31 March 2020
Non-current
£'000


















5,037


182,368


199,270


187,403

'HWDLOVRIWKH3),VFKHPHVFRPSULVLQJWKHOLDELOLWLHVGHWDLOHGDERYHFDQEHIRXQGLQQRWH
2Q$SULO'+6&DQG1+6( ,DQQRXQFHGUHIRUPVWRWKH1+6FDVKUHJLPHIRU7KHDQQRXQFHPHQWFRQILUPHG
WKDWLQ3'&ZRXOGEHLVVXHGWRHQDEOHSURYLGHUVWRUHSD\DOOH[LVWLQJLQWHULPORDQV7KHYDOXHRILQWHULPORDQVDVDW
0DUFKZDV NWKLVLQFOXGHGLQWHUHVWRI N7KHORDQYDOXHKDVEHHQUHSDLGDQGUHLVVXHGDV3'&LQ


22. Other liabilities

'HIHUUHG,QFRPH
Total

31 March 2021
Current
£'000

31 March 2021
Non-current
£'000

31 March 2020
Current
£'000

31 March 2020
Non-current
£'000


16,734


2,128


14,833


3,515

23. Finance lease obligations
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Minimum PV of Minimum
Lease
Lease
Payments
Payments
£'000
£'000
Gross lease liabilities
RIZKLFKOLDELOLWLHVDUHGXH
QRWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
ODWHUWKDQRQH\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
)LQDQFHFKDUJHVDOORFDWHGWRIXWXUHSHULRGV
Net lease liabilities
6SOLWLQWR
QRWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
ODWHUWKDQRQH\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
Net lease liabilities

3DJH

31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Minimum PV of Minimum
Lease
Payments
Lease Payments
£'000
£'000











66



66



252



252



66



66



252



252
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24. Private Finance Initiative contracts
24.1 PFI schemes on-Statement of Financial Position
New Hospital
2Q  -DQXDU\  WKH 7UXVW FRQFOXGHG FRQWUDFWV XQGHU WKH 3ULYDWH )LQDQFH ,QLWLDWLYH 3), ZLWK 2FWDJRQ
+HDOWKFDUH /LPLWHG IRU WKH FRQVWUXFWLRQ RI D QHZ  EHG KRVSLWDO DQG WKH SURYLVLRQ RI KRVSLWDO UHODWHG
VHUYLFHV ,Q DGGLWLRQ DQG DV D FRQVHTXHQFH RI UHYLVHG SDWLHQW DFWLYLW\ SURMHFWLRQV WKH 7UXVW HQWHUHG LQWR D
FRQWUDFW YDULDWLRQ ZLWK 2FWDJRQ +HDOWKFDUH /LPLWHG WR H[WHQG WKH QHZ KRVSLWDO E\ D IXUWKHU  EHGV 7KLV
FRQWUDFWYDULDWLRQZDVDSSURYHGE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQGZDVVLJQHGRQ-XO\
7KH 3), VFKHPH ZDV DSSURYHG E\ WKH 1+6 ([HFXWLYH DQG +0 7UHDVXU\ DV EHLQJ EHWWHU YDOXH IRU PRQH\
WKDQ WKH SXEOLF VHFWRU FRPSDUDWRU 8QGHU ,)5,&  WKH 3), VFKHPH LV GHHPHG WR EH RQ 6WDWHPHQW RI
)LQDQFLDO 3RVLWLRQ PHDQLQJ WKDW WKH KRVSLWDO LV WUHDWHG DV DQ DVVHW RI WKH 7UXVW WKDW LV EHLQJ DFTXLUHG
WKURXJK D ILQDQFH OHDVH 7KH SD\PHQWV WR 2FWDJRQ LQ UHVSHFW RI LW KDYH WKHUHIRUH EHHQ DQDO\VHG LQWR
ILQDQFH OHDVH FKDUJHV DQG VHUYLFH FKDUJHV 7KH DFFRXQWLQJ WUHDWPHQW RI WKH 3), VFKHPH LV GHWDLOHG LQ
DFFRXQWLQJSROLF\
7KH VHUYLFH HOHPHQW RI WKH FRQWUDFW ZDV N  N  ZLWK FRQWLQJHQW UHQW EHLQJ N
 N 
7KH HVWLPDWHG YDOXH RI WKH VFKHPH DW LQFHSWLRQ ZDV N 3D\PHQWV XQGHU WKH VFKHPH FRPPHQFHG
RQ  $XJXVW  ,Q  WKH 7UXVW HQWHUHG LQWR DQG FRQFOXGHG D UHILQDQFLQJ DUUDQJHPHQW ZLWK
2FWDJRQ +HDOWKFDUH /WG RQ WKH LQYHVWPHQW LQ WKH KRVSLWDO 7KLV UHVXOWHG LQ DQ H[WHQVLRQ RI WKH PLQLPXP
WHUPRIWKHVFKHPHIURPWR\HDUVDQGDUHGXFWLRQLQWKHDQQXDOFKDUJHE\ NSHUDQQXP

3DJH

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2020/21
24.2 PFI schemes on-Statement of Financial Position (on-SoFP)
7RWDOREOLJDWLRQVIRURQVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ3),FRQWUDFWVDUH

31 March 2021
£000
Gross PFI, LIFT or other service concession liabilities
Of which liabilities are due:
QRWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
ODWHUWKDQRQH\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
ODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
/LIHF\FOH0DLQWHQDQFHH[SHQGLWXUH
)LQDQFHFKDUJHVDOORFDWHGWRIXWXUHSHULRGV
Net PFI, liabilities
QRWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
ODWHUWKDQRQH\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
ODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV

31 March 2020
£000

810,267

880,838













187,339



187,339

190,510



190,510

*URVV3),OLDELOLWLHVLQFOXGHV N  N LQUHVSHFWRIOLIHF\FOHPDLQWHQDQFHH[SHQGLWXUHRQWKH
KRVSLWDO3),VFKHPH7KHVHDUHSD\PHQWVWRUHSODFHFRPSRQHQWVRIWKHKRVSLWDOLQIUDVWUXFWXUHWKURXJKRXWWKH
FRXUVHRIWKH3),DJUHHPHQW
)LQDQFHFKDUJHVLQFOXGHERWKLQWHUHVWSD\DEOHDQGFRQWLQJHQWUHQWSD\DEOH&RQWLQJHQWUHQWLVYDULDEOHGHSHQGHQW
RQWKHIXWXUHUDWHRILQIODWLRQXVLQJWKH5HWDLO3ULFHV,QGH[ 53, 7KH7UXVWKDVDVVHVVHGWKHIXWXUHUDWHRI53,ZLWK
UHJDUGWRKLVWRULFDOWUHQGVDQGFXUUHQWIRUZDUGORRNLQJHVWLPDWHV
24.3 The Trust is committed to make the following payments for on-SoFP PFI obligations during the next year
in which the commitment expires:

WKWRWK\HDUV LQFOXVLYH 
Total

31 March 2021
£'000

31 March 2020
£'000


42,529


42,483

24.4 The Trust is committed to make the following payments in respect of the service element of the On-SoFP
PFIs.

&KDUJHLQUHVSHFWRIWKHVHUYLFHHOHPHQWRIWKH3),/,)7
RURWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQDUUDQJHPHQWIRUWKHSHULRG
&RPPLWPHQWVLQUHVSHFWRIWKHVHUYLFHHOHPHQWRIWKH
3),/,)7RURWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQDUUDQJHPHQW
QRWODWHUWKDQRQH\HDU
ODWHUWKDQRQH\HDUDQGQRWODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
ODWHUWKDQILYH\HDUV
Total
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31 March 2021
£'000

31 March 2020
£'000








494,564




516,593
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25. Provisions

3HQVLRQV(DUO\GHSDUWXUHFRVWV
3HQVLRQV,QMXU\EHQHILWV
/HJDOFODLPV
966 5HGXQGDQF\
&OLQLFLDQSHQVLRQWD[
2WKHU
Total

Current
31 March 2021
£'000

Non-current
31 March 2021
£'000

Current
31 March 2020
£'000

Non-current
31 March 2020
£'000







468







8,087







453







4,572

Pensions
£'000

Legal claims
£'000

VSS &
Redundancy
£'000

Clinician
Pension Tax
Reimbursement
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000






3,318






98






0






1,877






3,262

5,025
113
3,742
(296)
(29)
8,555




3,318




98




0




1,877




3,262

468
4,496
3,591
8,555

2020/21

At 1 April 2020
&KDQJHLQWKHGLVFRXQWUDWH
$ULVLQJGXULQJWKH\HDU
8WLOLVHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
8QZLQGLQJRIGLVFRXQW
At 31 March 2021
Expected timing of cash flows:
:LWKLQRQH\HDU
%HWZHHQRQHDQGILYH\HDUV
$IWHUILYH\HDUV

3HQVLRQVFRYHUVOLDELOLWLHVLQUHVSHFWRIIRUPHUVWDIIPHPEHUV'XHWRWKHQDWXUHRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ SHQVLRQUHODWHG WKHUHLVXQFHUWDLQW\RYHUWKH
H[SHFWHGWLPLQJRIFDVKIORZVGXUDWLRQDQGPDJQLWXGH
/HJDOFODLPVLQFOXGH(PSOR\HU V/LDELOLW\DQG3XEOLF/LDELOLW\FODLPV,QFLGHQWVRFFXUULQJDIWHU$SULODUHFRYHUHGE\WKH1+6/LWLJDWLRQ$XWKRULW\
/LDELOLWLHVWR7KLUG3DUWLHV6FKHPH
7KH1+6/LWLJDWLRQ$XWKRULW\KROGVSURYLVLRQVDW0DUFKRI N 0DUFK N LQUHVSHFWRIFOLQLFDOQHJOLJHQFHOLDELOLWLHVRI
WKH7UXVW
7KHFOLQLFLDQSHQVLRQWD[UHLPEXUVHPHQWUHODWHVWRFOLQLFLDQVZKRDUHPHPEHUVRIWKH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHDQGZKRDVDUHVXOWRIZRUNXQGHUWDNHQLQ
WKLVWD[\HDU  IDFHDWD[FKDUJHLQUHVSHFWRIWKHJURZWKRIWKHLU1+6SHQVLRQEHQHILWVZKLFKZLOOEHSDLGIRUE\WKH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPH
$FFRUGLQJO\ZHKDYHUHIOHFWHGWKHSURYLVLRQIRUWKLVOLDELOLW\,WZLOOEHPHWLQIXOOE\WKH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPH:HKDYHDQHTXDODQGRSSRVLWHDVVHWLQ
LQFRPHDFFUXDOV
2WKHUSURYLVLRQVODUJHO\FRQVLVWRISURYLVLRQVIRU+05&GHWHUPLQDWLRQV
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25. Provisions (continued)
2019/20

Legal claims
£'000

VSS &
Redundancy
£'000

Clinician Pension
Tax
Reimbursement
£'000

£'000







3,329







94







3







1,599

2,410
198
2,708
(280)
0
(11)
5,025




3,329




94




3




1,599

453
1,200
3,372
5,025

Held at
amortised cost
£0

Held at fair
value through
I&E
£000

Held at fair value
through OCI
£000

Total book
value
£000







24,851


93,796


0


0

68,945
93,796

Held at
amortised cost
£000

Held at fair
value through
I&E
£000

Held at fair value
through OCI
£000

Total book
value
£000







27,863


41,295


0


0

13,432
41,295

Pensions

At 1 April 2019
&KDQJHLQWKHGLVFRXQWUDWH
$ULVLQJGXULQJWKH\HDU
8WLOLVHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
5HYHUVHGXQXVHG
8QZLQGLQJRIGLVFRXQW
At 31 March 2020
Expected timing of cash flows:
:LWKLQRQH\HDU
%HWZHHQRQHDQGILYH\HDUV
$IWHUILYH\HDUV

Total

26. Financial Instruments
26.1 Carrying values of financial assets

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31
March 2021

7UDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVH[FOXGLQJ
QRQILQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWEDQN
DQGLQKDQG
Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31
March 2020

7UDGHDQGRWKHUUHFHLYDEOHVH[FOXGLQJ
QRQILQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWEDQN
DQGLQKDQG
Total at 31 March 2020

3DJH
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

26.2 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Held at amortised
cost
£000

Held at fair
value through
the I&E
£000

Total book
value
£000








297,582








0

0
66
187,338
0
104,884
0
5,294
297,582

Held at amortised
cost
£000

Held at fair
value through
the I&E
£000

Total book
value
£000








451,916








0

195,911
252
190,510
0
60,218
0
5,025
451,916

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021

/RDQVIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHV
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHU3),/,)7DQGRWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQFRQWUDFWV
2WKHUERUURZLQJV
7UDGHDQGRWKHUSD\DEOHVH[FOXGLQJQRQILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
2WKHUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
3URYLVLRQVXQGHUFRQWUDFW
Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020

/RDQVIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHV
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHU3),/,)7DQGRWKHUVHUYLFHFRQFHVVLRQFRQWUDFWV
2WKHUERUURZLQJV
7UDGHDQGRWKHUSD\DEOHVH[FOXGLQJQRQILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
2WKHUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
3URYLVLRQVXQGHUFRQWUDFW
Total at 31 March 2020

26.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
%RRNYDOXH FDUU\LQJYDOXH LVDUHDVRQDEOHDSSUR[LPDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXHRIWKHDERYHILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV
26.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

,QRQH\HDURUOHVV
,QPRUHWKDQRQH\HDUEXWQRWPRUHWKDQWZR\HDUV
,QPRUHWKDQWZR\HDUVEXWQRWPRUHWKDQILYH\HDUV
,QPRUHWKDQILYH\HDUV
Total
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31 March 2021
£000

31 March 2020
£000





920,524





1,142,262
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26.5

Financial risk management
)LQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ VWDQGDUG ,)56  UHTXLUHV GLVFORVXUH RI WKH UROH WKDW ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV KDYH KDG GXULQJ WKH
SHULRG LQ FUHDWLQJ RU FKDQJLQJ WKH ULVNV D ERG\ IDFHV LQ XQGHUWDNLQJ LWV DFWLYLWLHV %HFDXVH RI WKH FRQWLQXLQJ
VHUYLFH SURYLGHU UHODWLRQVKLS WKDW WKH 7UXVW KDV ZLWK &OLQLFDO &RPPLVVLRQLQJ *URXSV DQG WKH ZD\ WKRVH &OLQLFDO
&RPPLVVLRQLQJ *URXSV DUH ILQDQFHG WKH 7UXVW LV QRW H[SRVHG WR WKH GHJUHH RI ILQDQFLDO ULVN IDFHG E\ EXVLQHVV
HQWLWLHV $OVR ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWV SOD\ D PXFK PRUH OLPLWHG UROH LQ FUHDWLQJ RU FKDQJLQJ ULVN WKDQ ZRXOG EH
W\SLFDO RI OLVWHG FRPSDQLHV WR ZKLFK WKH ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ VWDQGDUGV PDLQO\ DSSO\ 7KH 7UXVW KDV OLPLWHG SRZHUV
WR ERUURZ RU LQYHVW VXUSOXV IXQGV DQG ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DUH JHQHUDWHG E\ GD\WRGD\ RSHUDWLRQDO
DFWLYLWLHVUDWKHUWKDQEHLQJKHOGWRFKDQJHWKHULVNVIDFLQJWKH7UXVWLQXQGHUWDNLQJLWVDFWLYLWLHV
7KH 7UXVW¶V WUHDVXU\ PDQDJHPHQW RSHUDWLRQV DUH FDUULHG RXW E\ WKH ILQDQFH GHSDUWPHQW ZLWKLQ SDUDPHWHUV
GHILQHG IRUPDOO\ ZLWKLQ WKH 7UXVW¶V VWDQGLQJ ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXFWLRQV DQG SROLFLHV DJUHHG E\ WKH ERDUG RI GLUHFWRUV
7UXVWWUHDVXU\DFWLYLW\LVVXEMHFWWRUHYLHZE\WKH7UXVW¶VLQWHUQDODXGLWRUV

26.5.1

Currency risk
7KH 7UXVW LV SULQFLSDOO\ D GRPHVWLF RUJDQLVDWLRQ ZLWK WKH JUHDW PDMRULW\ RI WUDQVDFWLRQV DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV EHLQJ
LQ WKH 8. DQG VWHUOLQJ EDVHG 7KH 7UXVW KDV QR RYHUVHDV RSHUDWLRQV 7KH 7UXVW WKHUHIRUH KDV ORZ H[SRVXUH WR
FXUUHQF\UDWHIOXFWXDWLRQV

26.5.2

Interest rate risk
7KH 7UXVW KDV ERUURZLQJV LQ WKH IRUP RI 3), DUUDQJHPHQWV DQG D )LQDQFH /HDVH )RU ERWK W\SHV RI ERUURZLQJV
WKH LQWHUHVW UDWH LV IL[HG UHVXOWLQJ LQ D ORZ OHYHO RI DVVRFLDWHG ULVN &RQWLQJHQW UHQW GRHV DSSO\ WR WKH ODUJHVW 3),
VFKHPH DV LW LV LQGH[HG WKURXJK D WZLFH \HDUO\ DSSOLFDWLRQ RI 53, 7KHUH LV WKHUHIRUH DQ LQWHUHVW UDWH ULVN
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKDWWKRXJKLWLVGHHPHGWREHORZGXHWRLWVFRPSDUDWLYHVL]HDQGFXUUHQWPDUNHWFRQGLWLRQV

26.5.3

Credit risk
%HFDXVH WKH PDMRULW\ RI WKH 7UXVW¶V LQFRPH FRPHV IURP FRQWUDFWV ZLWK RWKHU SXEOLF VHFWRU ERGLHV WKH 7UXVW KDV
ORZ H[SRVXUH WR FUHGLW ULVN 7KH PD[LPXP H[SRVXUHV DV DW  0DUFK  DUH LQ UHFHLYDEOHV IURP FXVWRPHUV DV
GLVFORVHGLQWKH7UDGHDQG2WKHU5HFHLYDEOHVQRWH
7KH 7UXVW V 7UHDVXU\ 0DQDJHPHQW 3ROLF\ KDV FOHDU FULWHULD LV XSGDWHG UHJXODUO\ DQG DGYLFH LV WDNHQ IURP LW V
LQYHVWPHQW DGYLVHUV VR DV WR HQVXUH WKDW WKHUH LV D YHU\ ORZ OHYHO RI ULVN DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK FDVK DQG DQ\ GHSRVLWV
ZLWKILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV

26.5.4

Liquidity risk

7KH 7UXVW¶V RSHUDWLQJ FRVWV DUH LQFXUUHG XQGHU FRQWUDFWV ZLWK &OLQLFDO &RPPLVVLRQLQJ *URXSV ZKLFK DUH ILQDQFHG
IURPUHVRXUFHVYRWHGDQQXDOO\E\3DUOLDPHQW7KH7UXVWLVQRWWKHUHIRUHH[SRVHGWRVLJQLILFDQWOLTXLGLW\ULVNV

27. Events after the reporting year
7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRHYHQWVDIWHUWKHUHSRUWLQJ\HDUWKDWKDYHKDGDPDMRULPSDFWRQWKHVHDFFRXQWV

28. Capital cost absorption rate (PDC)
7KH 7UXVW LQFXUV D FKDUJH RQ WKH EDODQFH RI DQ\ IXQGLQJ UHFHLYHG IURP WKH JRYHUQPHQW 7KLV LV LQ WKH IRUP RI D
3'& GLYLGHQG FKDUJH WKDW LV EURDGO\ FDOFXODWHG DV  RI WKH 7UXVW V DYHUDJH QHW UHOHYDQW DVVHWV ,Q 
WKLVHTXDWHGWRD NFKDUJH NLQ 

3DJH

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2020/21

29. Related party transactions
7KH 1RUIRON DQG 1RUZLFK 8QLYHUVLW\ +RVSLWDOV 1+6 )RXQGDWLRQ 7UXVW LV D ERG\ FRUSRUDWH HVWDEOLVKHG E\ RUGHU RI WKH
6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHIRU+HDOWK
'XULQJ WKH \HDU QRQH RI WKH %RDUG 0HPEHUV RU PHPEHUV RI WKH NH\ PDQDJHPHQW VWDII RU SDUWLHV UHODWHG WR WKHP KDV
XQGHUWDNHQDQ\PDWHULDOWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKWKH)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW
7KH 'HSDUWPHQW RI +HDOWK DQG 6RFLDO &DUH LV UHJDUGHG DV D UHODWHG SDUW\ ,W LV WKH SDUHQW GHSDUWPHQW IRU '+6& JURXS
ERGLHV $FFRUGLQJO\ ZH DUH UHTXLUHG WR SURYLGH D QRWH RI WKH PDLQ HQWLWLHV ZLWKLQ WKH SXEOLF VHFWRU ZLWK ZKLFK ZH KDYH
KDGGHDOLQJV7KH\DUH1RUIRON&&*V1+6(QJODQG+05&DQG1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPHV
Related Party Transactions

Income
Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Expenditure
Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Income
Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000

Expenditure
Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000




























Receivables
31 March
2021
£'000

Payables
31 March
2021
£'000

Receivables
31 March
2020
£'000

Payables
31 March
2020
£'000

9DOXHRIWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKERDUGPHPEHUV
9DOXHRIWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKNH\VWDIIPHPEHUV
9DOXHRIWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKRWKHUUHODWHGSDUWLHV
&KDULWDEOH)XQGV
2WKHU
1+66KDUHG%XVLQHVV6HUYLFHV
Related Party Balances

9DOXHRIEDODQFHV RWKHUWKDQVDODU\ ZLWK
UHODWHGSDUWLHVLQUHODWLRQWRGRXEWIXOGHEWV
9DOXHRIEDODQFHV RWKHUWKDQVDODU\ ZLWK
UHODWHGSDUWLHVLQUHVSHFWRIGRXEWIXOGHEWV
ZULWWHQRIILQ\HDU
9DOXHRIEDODQFHVZLWKRWKHUUHODWHGSDUWLHV
&KDULWDEOH)XQGV
2WKHU
1+66KDUHG%XVLQHVV6HUYLFHV

































Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHDQDO\VHVWKHUHPXQHUDWLRQRINH\PDQDJHPHQWSHUVRQQHO GHHPHGWREHWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6

6KRUWWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV SD\
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV HPSOR\HUVSHQVLRQFRQWULEXWLRQ

Year ended
31 March
2021
£'000

Year ended
31 March
2020
£'000







7KHKLJKHVWSDLG'LUHFWRULQUHFHLYHGUHPXQHUDWLRQRI NH[FOXGLQJSHQVLRQUHODWHGEHQHILWVDQGH[LW
SDFNDJHVIRUWKHLUVHUYLFHVDV0HGLFDO'LUHFWRULQFOXGLQJDQHOHPHQWUHODWLQJWRWKHLUQRQPDQDJHULDOUROH,Q
WKHKLJKHVWSDLG'LUHFWRUUHFHLYHGUHPXQHUDWLRQRI NQRWLQFOXGLQJSHQVLRQUHODWHGEHQHILWVDQGH[LWSDFNDJHV
IRUWKHLUVHUYLFHVDV0HGLFDO'LUHFWRULQFOXGLQJDQHOHPHQWUHODWLQJWRWKHLUQRQPDQDJHULDOUROH
)XUWKHUGHWDLOVRQUHPXQHUDWLRQRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVFDQEHIRXQGLQWKH5HPXQHUDWLRQ5HSRUW
,Q DGGLWLRQ WKH 7UXVW KDG D QXPEHU RI PDWHULDO WUDQVDFWLRQV ZLWK RWKHU *RYHUQPHQW 'HSDUWPHQWV DQG RWKHU FHQWUDO DQG
ORFDO *RYHUQPHQW ERGLHV 0RVW RI WKHVH WUDQVDFWLRQV ZHUH ZLWK +0 5HYHQXH &XVWRPV LQ UHVSHFW RI WKH GHGXFWLRQ
DQGSD\PHQWRI3$<(DQGZLWK6RXWK1RUIRON&RXQFLOLQUHVSHFWRIUDWHV
7KH 7UXVW KDV DOVR UHFHLYHG UHYHQXH DQG FDSLWDO SD\PHQWV IURP WKH 1RUIRON DQG 1RUZLFK +RVSLWDOV &KDULW\ WKH
&RUSRUDWH7UXVWHHRIZKLFKLVWKH7UXVW7KHVHSD\PHQWVDUHRXWOLQHGEHORZ
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29. Related party transactions (continued)
7KHVHUYLFHVRIWKH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWKDYHEHQHILWHGIURPSD\PHQWVRI
NIRUHQKDQFHPHQWRIWKHSDWLHQWHQYLURQPHQWLQYHVWPHQWLQVWDIIDGGLWLRQDOHTXLSPHQWDQGUHVHDUFK 
N IURPWKH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK+RVSLWDOV&KDULW\
'XULQJWKH\HDUDVVHWVWRWKHYDOXHRI N  N ZHUHGRQDWHGWRWKH)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWRIZKLFK
N  N FDPHIURPWKH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK+RVSLWDOV&KDULW\
7KH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWKDVUHFKDUJHGWKHVXPRI N  N 
WRWKH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK+RVSLWDOV&KDULW\IRUWKHSURYLVLRQRIWKHDGPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGPDQDJHPHQWRIWKHFKDULW\
7KH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWKDVUHFHLYHGSD\PHQWVRI N  N 
IURPWKH(DVWHUQ$FDGHPLF+HDOWK6FLHQFH1HWZRUN7KH&KLHI([HFXWLYH2IILFHULVDPHPEHURIWKHERDUGRIWKLV
QHWZRUN
7KH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWKDVPDGHSD\PHQWVRI N  N WR
1RUZLFK5HVHDUFK3DUWQHUV//37KH&KLHI([HFXWLYH2IILFHUDQGD1RQ([HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUDUHPHPEHUVRIWKHERDUG
RIWKLVRUJDQLVDWLRQ
7KH1RUIRONDQG1RUZLFK8QLYHUVLW\+RVSLWDOV1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWKDVPDGHSD\PHQWVRI N
 N WRWKH8QLYHUVLW\RI(DVW$QJOLDDQGUHFHLYHGLQFRPHRI N  N $1RQ([HFXWLYH
GLUHFWRULVWKH9LFH&KDQFHOORURIWKLVRUJDQLVDWLRQ

30. Third Party Assets
7KH 7UXVW KHOG N  N FDVK DW EDQN DQG LQ KDQG DW  0DUFK  ZKLFK UHODWHV WR PRQLHV KHOG E\ WKH
7UXVWRQEHKDOIRISDWLHQWV7KLVKDVEHHQH[FOXGHGIURPWKHFDVKDWEDQNDQGLQKDQGILJXUHUHSRUWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWV

31. Losses and Special Payments
7KHUH ZHUH  FDVHV RI ORVVHV DQG VSHFLDO SD\PHQWV WRWDOOLQJ N SDLG GXULQJ WKH \HDU   FDVHV
WRWDOOLQJ N 
31 March 2021
Number
£'000
Losses
&DVKORVVHV LQFOXGLQJRYHUSD\PHQWVSK\VLFDOORVVHV
XQYRXFKHGSD\PHQWVDQGWKHIW
%DGGHEWVDQGFODLPVDEDQGRQHG H[FOXGLQJFDVHVEHWZHHQ
)7DQGRWKHU1+6ERGLHV
6WRUHVORVVHV LQFOXGLQJGDPDJHWREXLOGLQJVDQGRWKHU
SURSHUWLHVDVDUHVXOWRIWKHIWFULPLQDOGDPDJHDQGQHJOHFW
Special Payments
([JUDWLDSD\PHQWV

































1,390

185

3,050

291

7KHVHDPRXQWVDUHUHFRUGHGRQDQDFFUXDOVEDVLVEXWH[FOXGHVSURYLVLRQVIRUIXWXUHORVVHV

32. Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
7KHUHDUHQRFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVRUFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHV
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31 March 2020
Number
£'000

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Colney Lane
Norwich
NR4 7UY

Website: http://www.nnuh.nhs.uk
Email: communications@nnuh.nhs.uk

